
CWN_LEGAL_226251.1

AUDIT & CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
Meeting of the Committee 

Wednesday, 12 August 2020 at 11.00am
by videoconference

CRW.507.005.2469



page 1

CWN_LEGAL_226250.1

Audit & Corporate Governance Committee
Meeting of the Committee to be held on Wednesday, 12 August 2020 

at 11.00am by video conference

Attendees

Committee: Toni Korsanos (Chair)
Jane Halton
Mike Johnston

Mary Manos (Secretary)

By Invitation: Ken Barton
Angelina Bowden-Jones
Helen Coonan
Lauren Harris
Alan McGregor
John Salomone
Michael Collins, Ernst & Young
Lachlan Cobon, Ernst & Young
Jeremy Nash, Ernst & Young
Alison Parker, Ernst & Young
Leigh Walker, Ernst & Young

AGENDA

1. Minutes of Meetings

1.1. Minutes of Meeting held on 12 February 2020 and 18 June 2020

1.2. Written Resolution of the Committee dated 8 July 2020

2. Matters Arising

3. Results for the Full Year ending 30 June 2020

3.1. Accounting Issues

3.2. ASX Appendix 4E

3.2.1. Draft Statutory Accounts

3.3. Dividend Recommendation

CRW.507.005.2470



page 2

CWN_LEGAL_226250.1

3.4. Assurance from Associates

3.5. Resolutions

4. Treasury and Compliance Report

5. Auditor’s Report

5.1. Closing Report for the Full Year ended 30 June 2020

5.2. Assessment of Auditor Independence

6. Tax Status Report

7. Continuous Disclosure Report

8. Diversity Report

9. 2020 Annual Report

9.1. Draft Directors’ Statutory Report – Risk Disclosure 

9.2. Draft Corporate Governance Statement

10. Political Donations Report

11. Other Business

11.1. External Auditor Appointment

11.2. Annual Financial Report – CEO and DFO Declarations

11.3. Tax Governance Policy Review

11.4. Future Meetings

CRW.507.005.2471



CWN_LEGAL_229025.1

AGENDA ITEM 1:
Minutes of Meetings

1

CRW.507.005.2472



CRW .507 .005.24 73 

Audit & Corporate Governance Committee 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Committee on Wednesday, 12 February at Level 3, 
Crown Towers, 8 Whiteman Street, Southbank, Victoria at 11.30am 

Members Present: 

By Invitation: 

Apologies: 

Opening Business: 

Minutes of Meeting: 

CWN_LEGAL_207728.l 

Toni Korsanos (Chair) 

Helen Coonan 
Michael Johnston 

Mary Manos (Secretary) 

Ken Barton 
Angelina Bowden-Jones 
Lauren Harris 

Alan McGregor 
John Salomone 
Michael Collins, Ernst & Young 
Justin Law, Ernst & Young 
Lachlan Cobon, Ernst & Young 

Nil 

The members of the Committee elected Toni Korsanos to chair the 
meeting. 

It was RESOLVED that the M inutes of the Audit and Corporate 

Governance Committee Meetings held on 12 August 2019, 4 
September 2019, 20 September 2019, 4 October 2019, 4 December 
2019 and 23 January 2020 be approved. 

Page 1of7 



Matt ers Arising: 

Results for the Half Year ended 31 
December 2019: 

CWN_lEGAl_207728.1 

CRW.507.005.2474 

The Matters Arising and the Status Update on Review of Statutory 
Auditor papers were taken as read. 

Ken Barton provided the Committee with an update on t he tender 
process for the statutory auditor noting that consideration is being 
given to disclosing t he process in t he Company's half year results 
announcement. 

The Committee thanked the Ernst & Young audit team for their 
support throughout t he process. 

It was RESOLVED that the Company's selection panel for the 
statutory auditor tender process be comprised of Toni Korsanos, 
Michael Johnston, Ken Barton and Alan McGregor. 

Accounting Issues 

Ken Barton spoke to the key accounting issues noted in the 
Accounting Issues paper, including: 

• 

• Carrying Value Analysis - management undertook an 
assessment of the key impairment indicators for each of its 
subsidiaries and associat es as required by AASB 136. In re lation 
to Crown Aspinalls, 

• 

• AASB 16 Leases - t his new standard essentially resu lts in 
operating leases being accounted for similar to finance leases. 
The Committee was taken through the balance sheet and profit 
& loss impacts on adopt ion of t he new standard. 

The Committee d iscussed the Dinner by Heston Blumenthal matter, 
Crown Sydney costs and ot her corporate costs. 

It was RESOLVED that the Accounting Issues Report be noted. 

ASX Appendix 4D 

Ken Barton led a page turn of the draft Appendix 40. 

Page 201 7 



CWN_LEGAL_207728.l 

CRW.507.005.2475 

The Committee discussed the draft Regulatory Matters disclosure in 
the Results of Operations and requested that the disclosure be 
expanded to refer to the matters to be considered by the Inquiry as 
set out in the Terms of Reference. In addit ion, it was requested that 
consideration be given to referring to the ILGA Inquiry by way of 
example in the Contingent Liabilities note. 

It was RESOLVED that the draft Appendix 4D be approved subject to 
those amendments suggested in the meeting and agreed to by the 
Committee, and that the Committee recommend the draft Appendix 
4D to the Board for approval. 

It was further RESOLVED that in the opinion of the Committee: 

(a) the financial statements and notes of the consolidated entity 
for the half year ended 31 December2019 are in accordance 
with the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) including that they: 

(i) give a true and fair view of the consolidated entity's 
financia l position as at 31 December 2019 and the 
performance for the half year ended 31 December 
2019;and 

(ii) comply with Accounting Standard AASB 134 "Interim 
Financial Reporting" and the Corporations Regulations 
2001 (Cth); and 

(b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company 
will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due 
and payable. 

Interim Dividend Recommendation 

Ken Barton spoke to the Interim Dividend Recommendation paper 
and noted that, in accordance with the Company's dividend policy, 
management had recommended an interim dividend of 30.0 cents 
per share. 

The Committee noted the Franking of Future Dividends paper and, 
having regard to the matters set out in the paper, determined to 
recommend to the Board that the Company should continue to pay 
a 25% interim franked dividend for F20. 

It was noted that the unfranked portion of the dividend would be 
declared to be conduit foreign income. 

It was RESOLVED that it be recommended to the Board that an 
interim dividend be declared as follows: 

"Subject to finalisation of the Appendix 40 and on the basis that, 
immediately before the dividend is declared and, at the proposed 
date of payment: 

the proposed dividend will be paid out of the Company's current 
year profits; 

the current year profits from which the proposed dividend is to be 
paid have not been appropriated for any other purpose, including 

Page 3ol7 



Treasury and Compliance Report: 

CWN_lEGAl_207728.1 

CRW.507.005.2476 

against accumulated prior year losses (if any) of the Company; 

the proposed dividend will not be debited against an amount 
standing to the credit of the Company's share capital account; 

the Company's assets will exceed its liabilities and the excess will 
be sufficient for the payment of the proposed dividend; 

the proposed dividend payment is considered by the Board to be 
fair and reasonable to the Company's shareholders as a whole; 
and 

the proposed dividend payment will not materially prejudice the 
Company's ability to pay its creditors, 

it was RESOLVED that: 

(a) an interim dividend of 30 cents per ordinary share be 
declared and paid, out of the Company's current year 
profits as at 31January2020, on 3 April 2020; 

{b} the dividend be franked to 25%; 

(c) the unfranked portion of the dividend be paid from conduit 
foreign income; and 

(d) the dividend be paid to the holders of ordinary shares on 
the register of members as at 20 March 2020." 

Assurance from Associates 

The Committee noted that the Company had obtained assurance 
certificates from its significant associates, Aspers and Nobu. 

In relat ion to Aspers, Ken Barton advised t he Committee that 

It was RESOLVED that the Aspers and Nobu Assurance Certificates 
be noted. 

The Treasury and Compliance Report was t aken as read. 



Auditor's Report: 

CWN_lEGAl_207728.1 

could not achieve an acceptable outcome, alternative financing 
arrangements could be considered. 

It was RESOLVED that the Treasury and Compliance Report be 
noted. 

Closing Report for Half Year ended 31 December 2019 

The Auditor's Closing Report was taken as read. 

Michael Collins advised the Committee of the following: 

• 

CRW.507.005.2477 

• An unqualified review opinion would be issued in respect of the 
half year accounts . 

• 

It was RESOLVED that the Ernst & Young Closing Report to the Audit 
Committee for the half year ended 31December2019 be noted. 

Audit Plan for the Full Year ending 30 June 2020 

The Audit Plan for the year ending 30 June 2020 was taken as read. 

Michael Collins advised the Committee of the following: 

• Work would continue with management in respect of IT General 
Controls for Crown Melbourne and Crown Perth. 

• Ernst & Young would continue to monitor capitalised costs for 
Crown Sydney. 

It was RESOLVED that the Ernst & Young Audit Plan for the year 
ending 30 June 2020 be noted. 

Assessment of Auditor Independence 

It was noted that Article 5.5 of t he Committee's Charter requires 
that the Committee periodically review the independence of its 
external auditors, having regard to any relationships with the 
Company beyond the external audit function that could impair the 
external auditor's independence or judgment of Crown. 

The Committee considered the independence statement provided 
by Ernst & Young and RESOLVED that, having conducted a formal 
review, the Committee is satisfied that its Auditor remains 
independent. 

Page Sol 7 



Tax Report: 

Continuous Disclosure Report: 

Politica l Donat ions Report: 

Other Business: 

CWN_LEGAL_207728.l 

CRW.507.005.2478 

Angelina Bowden-Jones present ed t he Tax Report to t he Committee 
not ing, among other matters, t hat the Company had met a ll its tax 
compliance deadlines in the period and was cont inuing to engage 
proactively wit h t he Aust ra lian Taxation Office (ATO) in respect of 
certain matters. 

It was also noted that whilst the Company had not yet received t he 
Annual Risk Rat ing Letter in respect of FY19, in the draft letter 
circulated by the ATO late last year, t he Company was categorised as 
a "Key Taxpayer with significant concerns" even after the 
implementation by the Company of recommended tax corporate 
governance init iatives. 

Lachlan Cobon provided t he Committee wit h an update on various 
taxat ion matters including in relation to the Crown Melbourne 
licence. 

It was RESOLVED t hat t he Tax Report be noted. 

The Continuous Disclosure Report was taken as read. 

It was RESOLVED t hat t he Continuous Disclosure Report be noted. 

The Political Donat ions Report was taken as read. 

It was RESOLVED t hat t he Donor to Polit ical Party Return for t he 
pe riod 1 July2018 to 30 June 2019 and the list of Political Donat ions 
made by t he Crown group during the period commencing 1 July 
2019 t o 31 December2019 be noted. 

CEO and CFO Declarations: 

The paper wit h respect to t his item was t aken as read. 

It was RESOLVED t hat t he draft CEO/CFO Declaration be approved 
for use in a form substantially the same as t he draft presented to t he 
Committee. 

Review of Com mittee Charter: 

The paper with respect to this item was taken as read. 

Having reviewed its Charte r, t he Committee RESOLVED t o 
recommend t he updated Charter in the form presented to the 
Committee for approval by t he Board. 

Future Meetings: 

Page 6ol7 



Closure : 

Signed as a correct record 

Toni Korsanos 
Chair 

CWN_LEGAL_207728.l 

CRW.507.005.2479 

The 2020 Committee meeting dates were noted. 

There being no further business, the meeting was declared closed at 
12.59pm. 

Page 7ol7 



CRW.507.005.2480 

Audit & Corporate Governance Committee 

Minutes of a Meeting of the Committees held on Thursday, 18 June 2020 
at 12.00pm by videoconference 

Members Present: 

By Invitation: 

Apologies: 

Opening Business: 

Accounting Issues: 

CWN_lEGAl_207728.1 

Toni Korsanos (Chair) 
Jane Halton 
Michael Johnston 

Mary Manos (Secretary) 

Ken Barton 
Helen Coonan 
Lauren Harris 
Alan McGregor 
John Salomone 
Michael Collins, Ernst & Young 
Alison Parker, Ernst & Young 

Nil 

Toni Korsanos noted that, having regard to recent COVID-19 events, 
this meeting was scheduled as a special purpose meeting in 
preparation for full year results. 

The Accounting Issues paper was taken as read. 

Ken Barton and Alan McGregor led a page turn of the Accounting 
Issues paper, highlighting, among other matters, the following: 

• 

Page lol 3 



CWN_lEGAl_207728.1 

CRW.507.005.2481 

• 

• Significant Items - A meeting was being scheduled with ASIC to 
discuss t he proposed t reatment of closure costs as significant 
items . 

• 

• 

• 

Page 2013 



Audit Plan Update: 

Closure: 

Signed as a correct record 

Toni Korsanos 
Chair 

CWN_lEGAl_207728.1 

CRW.507.005.2482 

• Crown Sydney Costs - Pre-opening costs would be treated as a 
significant item. 

The Audit Plan Updat e for the year ending 30 June 2020 was taken 
as read. 

Among other matters, Michael Collins advised the Committee of t he 
fol lowing: 

• Disclosures in the fu ll year accounts were expected to increase 
due to COVID-19 and the impact it has had on the Company. 

• Ernst & Young had been focussing on the carrying value analysis 
w ith some additional work required over the coming weeks . 

• 

The Committee discussed the treat ment of closure costs in the fu ll 
year results w ith Michael Col lins and it was noted t hat the matter 
was sti ll under consideration, particularly having regard to the 
approach the Company was proposing to make to ASIC. 

There being no fu rther business, the meeting was declared closed at 

l.02pm. 

Page 3ol 3 



 

 Page 1 of 2 

 

Audit and Corporate Governance Committee 
Circulating Resolution made in accordance with the Committee’s Charter 

 

We, being all the Members of the Crown Resorts Limited (the Company) Audit and Corporate 
Governance Committee (the Committee) at the date of this circulating resolution, entitled to receive 
notice of a Committee meeting and to vote on the resolutions contained in this circulating resolution, by 
assenting to this document each state that we are in favour of the resolutions set out in this document. 

The resolutions are passed by the Members without a Committee meeting on the date and at the time 
when the last Member assents.  Separate copies of this document may be used for signing by any one or 
more of the Members. 

AUDIT TENDER PROCESS 

Background 

In December 2019, on the recommendation of the Committee, the Board approved a proposal to 
undertake a tender process to consider alternative statutory auditors for the Company.  

In February 2020, the Company commenced a competitive tender process for the role of external 
auditor after the release of the H20 results.  

After conducting initial meetings with a number of accounting firms, Requests for Proposals were issued 
to KPMG, Deloitte and PwC on 11 May 2020. 

While PwC advised that it could not participate in the tender process due to the required timeframes 
and other internal considerations, each of KPMG and Deloitte underwent a competitive tender process 
involving detailed presentations to the Company’s elected Selection Panel which the Members 
acknowledge having participated in.  

The Committee has determined to recommend to the Board the appointment of KPMG as the 
Company’s external auditor. 

Resolution 

Having regard to the competitive external auditor tender process undertaken by the Company, it is 
RESOLVED that it be recommended to the Board that KPMG be appointed as the Company’s external 
auditor for the financial year beginning 1 July 2020 subject to receipt of the following: 

• written consent from KPMG to act as the Company’s external auditor; 

• consent from the Australian Securities and Investments Commission to Ernst & Young’s 
resignation to take effect from the conclusion of the Company’s 2020 Annual General Meeting; 

• all necessary regulatory approvals; and 

• shareholder approval at the Company’s 2020 Annual General Meeting. 

 

 

1.2

CRW.507.005.2483



 

 Page 2 of 2 

 

……………………………………….     ……………………………………….  

Jane Halton      Toni Korsanos 

Date:       Date:  

 

 

……………………………………….  

Michael Johnston 

Date:  

1.2

CRW.507.005.2484



AGENDA ITEM 2:
Matters Arising

2

CRW.507.005.2485



CWN_LEGAL_226255.1

Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

Memorandum

To: Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

From: Mary Manos

Date: 7 August 2020

Subject: Matters Arising

Dear Committee Members

At the last meeting of the Committee, the Committee requested that the risk disclosure in the 2020 
Directors’ Statutory Report on debtors be considered having regard the expected recoverability of these 
debts over the COVID-19 period.

A copy of the draft disclosure is included at Agenda Item 9.1 for consideration.

Kind Regards

Mary Manos
General Counsel & Company Secretary

2

CRW.507.005.2486



CWN_LEGAL_229027.1

AGENDA ITEM 3:
Results for the Full Year ending 30 June 2020

3

CRW.507.005.2487



Introduction 

Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

CRW.507.005.2488 

This paper discusses the key accounting issues arising in relation to the fu ll year results for the 
year ended 30 June 2020. 

1. Doubtful Debts Provisioning 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

CRW.507.005.2489 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

3 

CRW.507.005.2490 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

4 

CRW.507.005.2491 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

5 

CRW.507.005.2492 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

6 

CRW.507.005.2493 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

7 

CRW.507.005.2494 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

8 

CRW.507.005.2495 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

9 

CRW.507.005.2496 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

10 

CRW.507.005.2497 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

11 

CRW.507.005.2498 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

12 

CRW.507.005.2499 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

CRW.507.005.2500 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

14 

CRW.507.005.2501 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

CRW.507.005.2502 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

16 

CRW.507.005.2503 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

17 

CRW.507.005.2504 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee 
Key Accounting Issues - 12 August 2020 

18 

CRW.507.005.2505 



CRW.507.005.2506 

Updated Covenant Calculations 



CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

A.B.N. 39 125 709 953 

Appendix 4E 

Year ended 30 June 2020 

(previous corresponding period: 30 June 2019) 

CRW.507.005.2507 

PAGE 1 



CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

A.B.N. 39 125 709 953 

Appendix 4E continued 

CRW.507.005.2508 

PAGE 2 



CRW.507.005.2509 

CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

Statement of Profit or Loss 

PAGE 3 



CRW.507.005.2510 

CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

PAGE4 



CRW.507.005.2511 

CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

Statement of Financial Position 
As at 30 June 2020 

PAGE 5 



CRW.507.005.2512 

CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

Cash Flow Statement 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

PAGES 



CRW.507.005.2513 

CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

PAGE 7 



CRW.507.005.2514 

CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

Notes 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 
1. Segment Information 



CRW.507.005.2515 

CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

Notes 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 



CRW.507.005.2516 

CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

Notes 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

2. Revenue and Expenses 

PAGE10 



CRW.507.005.2517 

CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

Notes 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

2. Revenue and Expenses continued 

PAGE 11 



CRW.507.005.2518 

CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

Notes 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

PAGE12 



CRW.507.005.2519 

CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

Notes 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

PAGE13 



CRW.507.005.2520 

CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

Notes 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

PAGE14 



CRW.507.005.2521 

CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

Notes 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 



CRW.507.005.2522 

CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

Notes 
RM" the year ended 30 June 2020 

PAGE16 



CRW .507 .005.2523 

CROWN RESORTS UMITED 

Appendix 4E - Additional Information 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Commentary on results 

The commentary on the results is contained in Crown's Announcement made to the ASX on the same date as this Appendix 
4E. 

Audit 

This report is based on accounts which are in the process of being audited. It is not considered likely any audit qualification 
will arise. 

The Honourable Helen Coonan 
Director 

19th day of August, 2020. 

PAGE 17 



CROWN RESORTS LIMITED 

A.B.N. 39 125 709 953 

FINANCIAL REPORT 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020 

CONTENTS: 

Statement of Profit or Loss 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 
Statement of Financial Position 
Cash Flow Statement 
Statement of Changes in Equity 
Notes to the Financial statements 

CRW .507 .005.2524 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Statement of Profit or Loss 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Revenues 

Other income 

Expenses 

Share of profrt:s of associates and joint venture entities 

Profit before income tax and finance costs 

Filance costs 

Profit before income tax 

Income tax expense 

Net profit after t ax 

Attributable to: 

Equity holders of the Parent 

Non-<:ontrolilg ilterests 

Note 

3 

3 

3 

2,8 

3 

2.5 

2020 

$111 

2,237.2 

0.1 

(2,074.2) 

0 .3 

163.4 

(10.2) 

153.2 

(71.3) 

81.9 

79.5 

2.4 

2019 

$111 

2,929.2 

0.2 

(2,326.8) 

13.3 

615.9 

(36.6) 

579.3 

(176.4) 

402.9 

401.8 

1.1 

81.9 402.9 

The above Statement of Profit or Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

Note 

Eamings per share (EPS) 

Basic EPS 26 

Diuted EPS 26 

EPS calculatton IS based on the weighted average nurrber of shares on issue throughout the 
period 

Dividends per share 

Current year fnal dividend declared 

Current year interim dividend paid 

4 

4 

2020 
Cents 

l!er share 

11.74 

11.74 

30.00 

2019 
Cents 

l!er share 

59.07 

59.00 

30.00 

30.00 

CRW .507 .005.2525 

PAGE 2 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Net profit after tax 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that may be reclassif'ied subsequently to profit or loss: 

Foreign currency translation 

Movement in cash fbw hedge reserve 

Other comprehensive income I (loss) for the period, net of income tax 

Total comprehensive income I (loss) for the period 

Attributable to: 

Equity holders of the Parent 

Non,ontroUing interests 

CRW .507 .005.2526 

2020 2019 

m m 

81.9 402.9 

5.3 14.0 

{6.6) 4.1 

(1.3) 18.1 

80.6 421.0 

78.1 419.6 

2.5 1.4 

80.6 421.0 

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

PAGE 3 



CRW .507 .005.2527 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Statement of Financial Position 
As at 30 June 2020 

2020 2019 

Note ~ Ill im 
Current asset s 

Cash and cash equivalents 21 286.9 1,126.0 

Trade and other receivables 6 111.2 98.7 

Inventories 17.2 16.7 

Prepayments 41.6 38.1 

Other financial assets 7 5.5 

Total current asset s 456.9 1 285.0 

Non-current assets 

Receivables 6 157.8 

Other financial assets 7 29.3 37.5 

Investments in associates 8 186.0 206.9 

Property, plant and equ~ment 9 4,871.2 4,259.0 

Intangible assets - icences 11 1,047.3 1,064.0 

Other intangble assets 12 355.6 415.3 

Deferred tax assets 5 170.7 159.5 

Other assets 14 48.8 48.8 

Total non-current asset s 6 708.9 6 348.8 

Total asset s 7 165.8 7 633.8 

Current liabilit ies 

Trade and other payables 15 426.5 433.1 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 16 8.2 287.6 

Income tax payable 47.3 153.9 

Provisions 17 200.3 186.0 

Other financial liabilities 2.4 

Total current liabilities 684.7 1 060.6 

Non-current liabilities 

Other payables 15 172.3 255.1 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 16 1,121.8 791.0 

Deferred tax liab~ities 5 405.7 401.5 

Provisions 17 27.0 24.2 

Other financial liabiities 4.5 

Total non-current liabilities 1 726.8 1 476.3 

Total liabilities 2 411.5 2 536.9 

Net assets 4 754.3 5 096.9 

Equity 

Contrbuted equity 18 (203.3) (203.3) 

Reserves 19 3.1 1.4 

Retained earnings 19 4 ,954.5 5,298.8 
Total equity 4 754.3 5 096.9 

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

PAGE4 



CRW .507 .005.2528 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Cash Flow Statement 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

2020 2019 

Note ~Ill i m 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts from customers 2,258.3 3,070.1 

Payments to suppliers and employees (1,847.5) (2,177.4) 

Dividends received 5.9 8.9 

Interest received 12.2 28.6 

Borrowing costs paid (66.0) (76.6) 

Income tax l?aid (36.0l (75.5l 

Net cash flows froml(used in) o~erating activities 21b 326.9 778.1 

Cash flows fro m investing activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment (746.3) (538.7) 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 0.1 0.2 

Investment i1 equty accounted associates (3.9) (5.5) 

Proceeds from disposal of ilvestments 7.6 

Other (netl 4.4 

Net cash flows froml(used in} investing activit ies (750.1} (532.0l 

Cash flows from financing activit ies 

Proceeds from borrowilgs 315.1 56.1 

Repayment of borrow ngs (328.8) (481.1) 

Dividends paid (406.2) (409.0) 

Payments for share buy-back (131.4) 

Net cash flows froml(used in} financing activities (419.9} (965.4) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (843.1) (719.3} 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 1,126.0 1,844.6 

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 4.0 0.7 

Cash and cash ec1uivalents at the end of the financial year 21a 286.9 1126.0 

The above Cash Flow Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

PAGE S 



CRW .507 .005.2529 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Non-
Ot'dinary Shares Held Retained ControllS.g Total 
Shares in Trust Earnings Reserves Total Interest Equity 

$m $m $111 $111 $m $111 $m 

Vear ended 30 June 2020 

Balance at 1 July 2019 (203.3) - 5,298.8 1.4 5,096.9 - 5,096.9 
Adootlon lmoact of AASB 16 - (17.6) - (17.6) (17.6) 

Adjusted balance at 1 July 2019 I {203.3) - 5,281.2 1.4 5,079.3 5,079.3 

Proft for the period - 79.5 - 79.5 2.4 81.9 

Other comn,..henst,,e incomelllossl - 11.41 {] 4) 0.1 (1.31 

Total comprehensive income for the - - 79.5 (1.4) 78.1 2.5 80.6 

period 

Dividends pall - - (406.2) - {406.2) (406.2) 
Movement in non-controlng interest - - - (0.3) {0.3) (2.5) (2.8) 
put option 

Share based n:ivm<>nts - - - 3.4 3.4 - 3.4 

Balance at 30 June 2020 (203.3) - 4 954.5 3.1 4 754.3 - 4 754.3 

Vear ended 30 June 2019 

Balance at 1 July 2018 {71.9) (15.7) 5,306.0 (60.5) 5,157.9 - 5,157.9 

Proft for the period - - 401.8 - 401.8 1.1 402.9 

Other comorehenslve ncome - - - 17.8 17.8 0.3 18.1 
Total comprehensN0 income for the - - 401.8 17.8 419.6 1.4 421.0 
period 

Dividends paid (409.0) - (409.0) - (409.0) 
Transactions with non-controlng - - {0.6) (0.6) 
interests 

Share buy·back (131.4) - - (131.4) - (131.4) 
Movement In non-controlling interest - 40.8 40.8 {0.8) 
put option 40.0 

Share ba=..t oavments - 15.7 3.3 10 n - 19.0 

Balance at 30 June 2019 1203.3) - 5 298.8 1.4 s 096.9 - 5 096.9 

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 

PAGE 6 



CRW .507 .005.2530 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

1. Significant Accounting Policies 

1.1 Basis of preparation 

This financial report is a general-purpose financial report, which has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the 
Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting 
Standards Board. The financial report has also been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for derivative financial 
instruments, contingent consideration and investments that have been measured at fair value and investments in associates 
accounted for using the equity method. 

The amounts contained in this report and in the financial report have been rounded to the nearest hundred thousand dollars 
unless otherwise stated under the option available to the Company under ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors' 
Reports) Instrument 2016/191. Crown is an entity to which this Instrument applies. 

The financial report of Crown Resorts Limited and its controlled entities (the Group) for the year ended 30 June 2020 was 
authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the directors on [11 September 2020] subject to final approval by a 
subcommittee. Crown is a for profit company limited by shares incorporated in Australia whose shares are publicly traded on the 
Australian Securities Exchange. 

Statement of Compliance 
The financial report complies with Australian Accounting Standards as issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Board and 
International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRS) as issued by the I nternational Accounting Standards Board. 

1.2 Changes in accounting policies 

The Group has adopted, for the first time, AASB 16 Leases {AASB 16) effective as of 1 July 2019. 

Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time from July 2019, but do not have a material impact on the 
financial position or performance of the Group during the period. 

AASB 16 Leases 

AASB 16 supersedes AASB 117 Leases(AASB 117) and related interpretations. The standard sets out the principles for the 
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for most leases under a single 
on-balance sheet model. 

Lessor accounting under AASB 16 is substantially unchanged from AASB 117, other than in respect of subleases. Lessors will 
continue to classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in AASB 117. Therefore, AASB 16 did 
not have an impact for leases where the Group is the lessor. 

The Group adopted AASB 16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of initial application of 1 July 
2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard 
recognised at the date of initial application, being 1 July 2019, and comparatives are not restated. The Group elected to use the 
transition practical expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases 
applying AASB 117 and related interpretations at the date of initial application. The Group also elected to use the recognition 
exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a 
purchase option (short-term leases'), and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (low-value assets'). 

PAGE 7 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

1.2 Changes in accounting policies continued 

The effect of adoption of AASB 16 as at 1 July 2019 (increase/( decrease)) is as follows: 

A ssets 

Property, plant and equipment 

Prepayments 

Deferred tax assets 

Total assets 

Liabilit ies 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 

Total liabilities 

Equity 

Retained earnings 

Total adjustment on equity 

a) Nature of the effect o f adoption of AASB 16 

$111 

32.0 

(1. 7) 

6.6 

36.9 

54.S 

54.5 

(17.6) 

(17.6) 

CRW.507.005.2531 

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property (including the Crown Melbourne main site), offices, warehouses, 
vehicles and other equipment. Before the adoption of AASB 16, the Group classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception 
date as either a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease was classified as a finance lease if it transferred substantially all of 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset to the Group; otherwise it was classified as an operating lease. 
finance leases were capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if 
lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments were apportioned between interest (recognised as 
finance costs) and reduction of the lease liability. In an operating lease, the leased property was not capitalised and the lease 
payments were recognised as rent expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term. Any prepaid rent and 
accrued rent were recognised under Prepayments and Trade and other payables, respectively. 

Upon adoption of AASB 16, the Group applied a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short
terrn leases and leases of low-value assets. The standard provides specific transition requirements and practical expedients, 
which has been applied by the Group. 

Leases previously accounted for as operating leases 
The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases previously classified as operating leases, except for 
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The right-of-use assets for leases were recognised based on the carrying 
amount as if the standard had always been applied, apart from the use of incremental borrowing rate which applied the rate at 
the date of initial application. Lease liabilities were recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease payments, 
discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. 

The Group also applied the available practical expedients wherein it: 
• Used a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics 
• Relied on its assessment of whether leases are onerous immediately before the date of initial application as an alternative to 

performing an impairment review 
• Applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with a lease term that ends within 12 months at the date of initial 

application 
• Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application 
• Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease 

PAGE 8 



CRW .507 .005.2532 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

1.2 Changes in accounting policies continued 

The lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019 can be reconciled to the operating lease commitments as of 30 June 2019 as follows: 

Operating lease commitments as at 30 June 2019 

Weighted average incremental borrowing rate as at 1 July 2019 

Discounted operating lease commitments at 1 July 2019 

Less: 

Commitments relating to short-term leases 

Add: 
Crown Melbourne main site lease \ tJ 

Lease liabilities as at 1 July 2019 

$111 

32.5 

5.06% 

25.0 

(0.1) 

29.6 
54.5 

(1) In 1993 Crown Melbourne entered into a ninety-nine year lease agreement for the site upon which the Crown Melbourne 
Entertainment Complex is located. For years one to forty inclusive, the annual rent payable is one dollar per annum. For 
years forty-<>ne to ninety-nine inclusive, the annual rent payable will be the then current market rent for the site. In the 30 
June 2019 financial statements, the aggregate lease expenditure contracted for at balance date but not provided for did not 
include an estimate for the rent payable for years forty-<>ne to ninety-nine inclusive due to the uncertainty of these 
amounts. On adoption of AASB 16, this lease has been recognised as a right-<>f-use asset and lease liability. The carrying 
value of the right-<>f-use asset has been determined as if the standard had always applied, based on the payments in years 
forty-<>ne to ninety-nine using the estimated market rent at commencement date of the lease, applying the incremental 
borrowing rate at date of initial application of the standard. In estimating the market rent at commencement date, the 
Group engaged an independent property valuer. The lease liability is measured at the present value of the lease payments 
to be made in years forty-one to ninety-nine using the estimated market rent at commencement date of the lease. 

AASB Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment 

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for income taxes when tax treatments involve uncertainty that affects the application 
of AASB 112 Income Taxes. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of AASB 112, nor does it specifically include 
requirements relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments. The Interpretation specifically addresses 
the following: 

• Whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately 
• The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities 
• How an entity determines taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates 
• How an entity considers changes in facts and circumstances 

An entity has to determine whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or more other 
uncertain tax treatments. The approach that better predicts the resolution of the uncertainty needs to be followed. 

The Group has applied Australian Interpretation 23 from 1 July 2019. In the past, the Group has only recognised claims against 
tax authorities when considered virtually certain. Following transition, claims are recognised when probable. This interpretation 
did not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group. 

1.3 standards issued but not yet effective 

Standards and Interpretations not expected to be material 

Certain other new Accounting Standards and Interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2020 
reporting period. The Group has assessed the impact of these new Accounting Standards and Interpretations that are relevant to 
the Group, and does not expect any material impact on net assets, net profit, presentation or disclosures when these standards 
become effective and are adopted. 

PAGE 9 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

1 . Significant Accounting Policies continued 

1.4 Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements are those of the 
consolidated entity, comprising Crown Resorts Limited (the 
parent entity) and all entities that Crown Resorts Limited 
controlled from time to time during the year and at reporting 
date (the Group). Control is achieved when the Group is 
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its 
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect 
those returns through its power over the investee. 

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee 
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to 
one or more of the three elements of control. 

Information from the financial statements of subsidiaries is 
included from the date the parent entity obtains control until 
such time as control ceases. Where there is loss of control of 
a subsidiary, the consolidated financial statements include the 
results for the part of the reporting period during which the 
parent entity has control. Oiange of ownership interest of a 
subsidiary without the loss of control is accounted for as an 
equity transaction. 

Subsidiary acquisitions are accounted for using the acquisition 
method of accounting. The financial statements of 
subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the 
parent entity, using consistent accounting policies. 
Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar 
accounting policies that may exist. 

All inter-company balances and transactions, including 
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions, have 
been eliminated in full. 

The accounting policies adopted have been applied 
consistently throughout the two reporting periods. 

1.5 Significant accounting judgements, 
estimates and assumptions 

The carrying amounts of certain assets and liabilities are often 
determined based on judgements, estimates and assumptions 
of future events. The key judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts of certain assets and 
liabilities within the next annual reporting period are: 

Impairment of 11011-financial assets 
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash 
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the 
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in 
use. The Group determines whether goodwill and intangibles 
with indefinite useful lives are impaired at least on an annual 
basis. This requires an estimation of the recoverable amount 
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill and 
intangibles with indefinite useful lives are allocated. The 
assumptions used in this estimation of recoverable amount 
and the carrying amount of non-financial assets are discussed 
in note 13. 

Fair value of fi11a11dal i11strome11ts 

In accordance with accounting standards the Group uses the 
Level Three method in estimating the fair value of certain 

CRW .507 .005.2533 

financial assets. Accordingly, the fair value is estimated using 
inputs for the asset that are not based on observable market 
data. 

Contingent consideration resulting from business 
combinations is valued at fair value at the acquisition date as 
part of the business combination. When contingent 
consideration meets the definition of a financial liability, it is 
subsequently remeasured to fair value at each reporting date. 
Refer note 15 for further details. 

Taxes 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to 
the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be 
available against which the losses can be utilised. 
Management judgement is required to determine the amount 
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the 
likely timing and the level of future taxable profits. 

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax 
regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes 
provisions where appropriate. 

Doubtful debts 

An allowance for doubtful debts is recognised based on the 
expected credit loss from the time the financial instrument is 
initially recognised. 

The allowance for doubtful debts is based on a provision 
matrix that reflects the Group's historical credit loss 
experience, adjusted for management's knowledge of specific 
customers' circumstances, as well as current collection trends 
and business conditions. 

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable 
expectation of recovery. 

Put option liability 

Crown entered into an agreement with the DGN minority 
shareholders, which contained put options and call options 
over the remaining non-controlling interest. Crown has 
recognised a financial liability to reflect the carrying amount 
of the put option. In arriving at the carrying value of the put 
option liability, management estimated the future expected 
cash outflow upon exercise of the put option by the 
counterparty, discounted to present value using an 
appropriate discount rate. 

Market value rent for Crown Melbourne Main Site 

In 1993 Crown Melbourne entered into a ninety-nine year 
lease agreement for the site upon which the Crown 
Melbourne Entertainment Complex is located. For years one 
to forty inclusive, the annual rent payable is one dollar per 
annum. For years forty-one to ninety-nine inclusive, the 
annual rent payable will be the then current market rent for 
the site. On acloption of AASB 16, this lease was recognised 
as a right-of-use asset and lease liability. The carrying value 
of the right-of-use asset has been determined as if the 
standard had always applied, based on the payments in years 
forty-one to ninety-nine using the estimated market rent at 

PAGE 10 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

1.5 Significant accounting judgements, 
estimates and assumptions continued 

commencement date of the lease, applying the incremental 
borrowing rate at date of initial application of the standard. In 
estimating the market rent at commencement date, the 
Group engaged an independent property valuer. The lease 
liability is measured at the present value of the lease 
payments to be made in years forty-one to ninety-nine using 
the estimated market rent at commencement date of the 
lease. 

Lease - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate 
The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit 
in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing rate 
(IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of 
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a 
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary 
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset 
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects 
what the Group 'would have to pay', which requires 
estimation when no observable rates are available (such as 
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) 
or when they need to be adjusted to reflect the terms and 
conditions of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using 
observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when 
available and is required to make certain entity-specific 
estimates. 

Significant items 

Significant items are transactions or events that fall outside 
the ordinary course of business. Significant items are 
disclosed separately to allow users of the financial report to 
see the performance of the Group in a comparable form to 
that of the comparative period. 

1.6 Summary of significant accounting 
policies 

(a) Income tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior 
periods are measured at the amount expected to be 
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities based on 
the current period's taxable income. The tax rates and tax 
laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted 
or substantively enacted by the reporting date. 

Deferred tax is provided on most temporary differences at the 
reporting date between the tax ba.ses of assets and liabilities 
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary 
differences except: 

where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial 
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is 
not a business combination and, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor 
taxable profit or loss; or 

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated 
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests 
in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable 

CRW .507 .005.2534 

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible 
temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax assets 
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that 
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible 
temporary differences, and the carry-forward of unused tax 
assets and unused tax losses can be utilised except: 

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible 
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of 
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business 
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; or 

• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated 
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests 
in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only 
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary 
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and 
taxable profit will be available against which the 
temporary differences can be utilised. 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at 
each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available 
to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax 
rates that are expected to apply to the year when the asset is 
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax 
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the 
reporting date. 

Income taxes relating to items recognised directly in equity 
are recognised in equity and not the Statement of Profit or 
Loss. 

(b) other taxes 

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the 
amount of GST except: 

where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and 
services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in 
which case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item as 
applicable; 

gaming revenues; and 

receivables and payables are stated with the amount of 
GST included. 

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the 
taxation authority is included as part of receivables or 
payables in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Cash flows are included in the Cash Flow Statement on a 
gross basis and the GST component of cash flows arising from 
investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, 
or payable to, the taxation authority, are classified as 
operating cash flows. 

Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the 
amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation 
authority. 

PAGE 11 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

1.6 Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies continued 

(c) Foreign currency translation 

Both the functional and presentation currency of Crown 
Resorts limited and its Australian subsidiaries is Australian 
dollars. 

Each foreign entity in the Group determines its own functional 
currency and items included in the financial statements of 
each foreign entity are measured using that functional 
currency, which is translated to the presentation currency for 
Group reporting purposes. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in the 
functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the date of 
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rate of exchange 
ruling at the reporting date. 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical 
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange 
rate as at the date of the initial transaction. Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair 
value was determined. 

As at the reporting date the assets and liabilities of overseas 
subsidiaries are translated into the presentation currency of 
Crown Resorts limited at the rate of exchange ruling at the 
reporting date and the profit or loss is translated at the 
weighted average exchange rates for the period. The 
exchange differences arising on the retranslation are 
recognised through Other Comprehensive Income {OCI) and 
accumulated in the foreign currency translation reserve in 
equity. 

On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative 
amount recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve 
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

(d) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents in the Statement of Financial 
Position comprises of cash at bank and on hand, and short 
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or 
less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in 
future value. 

For the purposes of the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash 
equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined 
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. 

(e) Trade and other receivables 

Trade receivables are recognised and carried at original 
invoice amount less an allowance for any uncollectible 
amounts. 

An allowance for doubtful debts is recognised based on the 
expected credit loss from the time the financial instrument is 
initially recognised. Trade receivables are written off when 
there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. 

Receivables from associates and other related parties are 
carried at amortised cost less an allowance for impairment . 

CRW .507 .005.2535 

Interest, when charged is taken up as income on an accrual 
basis. 

(f) Inventories 

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable 
value. 

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location 
and condition are accounted for as follows: 

Lwltm'la which lnc:ble food, ..... end other 
CGnUllllbl8I .. mlllld on a WlldDd 1M111g11 i..; 
end 

net n ' He -. II the eldl111Dd ~ price In the 
onhry ..... d ......, - ednlbld allls d 
CXllll ... 1 end the e6ilillt9ct allls M' I I I ry tD mm 
the Ille. 

(I} lntllllw•~ an~ ..... 
11ie ~ iTblt&ilil1ta d the ..o-W.. .. .- by the 
Q'OUp tD llJply the eqJl.y rnllhod. ~ - w.. llJply 
clft'wn acccU'lllng poldm tD the Q'lq), ~ .. 
made upon ......... d the eqJl.y rnllhod. 

llwllbillll'ltll In - ...... c:m1ed In the SM.1116t d 
AWldll Pollllar'I at cmt pU ~ dmVll In the 
Q'OUp'a .._. d net _.. d the wa W-, ie. ,.,, 
••'*111111"t In -.. 11ie SM.li1•1t d Praftt or Lem n6lds 
the Q'OUp'a .._. d the.._... d opat61i• d the _, .... 
~ tt... t. tie.i a dlllve In the wa WW OCI or 
eqJl.y, the Q'OUp ~ ....... d,.,, dmVll end 
--- thll, we.. ..,... ... In the SM.li••lt d 
Oll1 ........ lncame. 

When the Q'OUp'a .._.di.- In an a.x:ID ~or 
........ lrllawt In the _..., lnduclrv ,.,, lneand 
lcq tarn .......... end low, the Q'OUp dam nat 
~ fWk i.- lrim It t. lnamd d:JlgatblS or 
made pmyinenta on behalf dthe a.x:ID 

(h} lln•llw•md ._.._.r::llll ..... 
Awdll ....... c....-11-t on: 
(I) 11ie objedlv9 d the erdy'a ~ model far mmllClllng 
the~ ..... ;end 

(I) 11ie chnd&..U d the cormdull Clllh flow. 
11ie • I r!'laillllll1 dllpanda on the pwpcm far which the 
~ ......... ~ Mlliagemn dmii11 .... the 
•I !k:llllon d b ~ ..... at lntirl l'9CIJIJllian. kl 
~ eledlan II made by lnlbumn tD dmii11tl• f the 
lnlbumn II .,....ci at r.lr .... ..,_ tfraudi OCI or In 
the SM.li1•"1t d Praftt or I.a& 

When ~ ....... NCIOCll-.d lnlllly, tt., .. 
.,....ci atr.lr .... In the~ d ..... atr.lr .... 
tfraudi oa, chdly aarbDllle trllwdan am. 

PAGE 12 



CRW .507 .005.2536 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

1.6 Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies co11ti11ued 

The best evidence of fair value is quoted prices in an active 
market. The fair value of the investments and other financial 
assets that do not have a price quoted in an active market 
have been estimated using valuation techniques based on 
assumptions that are not supported by observable market 
prices or rates. The fair value is reassessed each reporting 
period. 

If the fair value through Statement of Profit or Loss approach 
is adopted, increments and decrements on the fair value of 
the financial asset at each reporting date are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

If the fair value through OCI approach is adopted, increments 
and decrements on the fair value are recognised in OCI, 
without recycling of gains and losses between the Statement 
of Profit or Loss and OCI, even on disposal of the 
investment. Dividends in respect of these investments that 
are a return on investment are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss. 

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of 
assets within a time frame established by regulation or 
convention in the market place (regular way trades} are 
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group 
commits to purchase or sell the asset. 

(i) Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. 

Depreciation and amortisation is calculated on a straight-line 
basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as follows: 

IWclnga - 40 tD 75 ymw; 
Aldlnl 11111 Fmlg In~ - 4 tD 20 ymw; and 
Plll'lt 11111 equlpnent- 2 tD 20 Y9'&o 

The asset's residual values, useful lives and amortisation 
methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each 
financial year end. 

Cost for construction work in progress includes any costs 
directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and 
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the 
manner intended by management. 

Impairment 
The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are 
reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be 
recoverable. For an asset that does not generate largely 
independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is 
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset 
belongs. If any such indication exists and where the carrying 
values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets 
or cash-generating units are written down to their recoverable 
amount. 

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is 
the greater of fair value less costs of disposal and value in 
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash 
flows are discounted to their present value using a post-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the 
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. 

Derecognition 
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are 
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. 

Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset 
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal 
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss in the period the item is 
derecognised. 

(j) Intangible assets 

licences 
Licences are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 
and any accumulated impairment losses. 

The directors regularly assess the carrying value of casino 
licences so as to ensure they are not carried at a value 
greater than their recoverable amount. 

The casino licences are carried at cost of acquisition. The 
Crown Melbourne licence is being amortised on a straight-line 
basis over the remaining life of the licence to 2050. The 
Crown Perth licence is assessed as having an indefinite useful 
life and, as such, no amortisation is charged. The Crown Perth 
licence is subject to an annual impairment assessment. 
Amortisation will commence on the Crown Sydney licence 
once the property is operational. 

Goodwill 
Goodwill on acquisition is initially measured at cost, being the 
excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and 
the amount recognised for non-controlling interest and any 
previous interest held over the net identifiable assets acquired 
and liabilities assumed. Following initial recognition, goodwill 
is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 
Goodwill is not amortised. 

As at the acquisition date, any goodwill acquired is allocated 
to each of the cash-generating units expected to benefit from 
the combination's s~ies. 

Goodwill 1s reviewed for impairment, annually or more 
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that 
the carrying value may be impaired. Impairment is 
determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the cash 
generating unit to which the goodwill relates. Where the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than 
the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. 

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part 
of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill 
associated with the operation disposed of is included in the 
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain 
or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in 
this circumstance is measured on the basis of the relative 
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the 
cash-generating unit retained. 

Other intangible assets - Acquired both separately and 
from a business combination 

Intangible assets acquired separately are capitalised at cost 
and from a business combination are capitalised at fair value 
as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, the 
cost model is applied to the class of intangible assets. 

PAGE 13 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

1.6 Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies continued 

The useful lives of these intangible assets are assessed to be 
either finite or indefinite. Where amortisation is charged on 
assets with finite lives, this expense is taken to the Statement 
of Profit or Loss. 

Intangible assets created within the business are not 
capitalised and expenditure is charged against profits in the 
period in which the expenditure is incurred. 

Intangible assets are tested for impairment where an 
indicator of impairment exists, and annually in the case of 
intangible assets with indefinite lives, either individually or at 
the cash generating unit level. Useful lives are also examined 
on an annual basis and adjustments, where applicable, are 
made on a prospective basis. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible 
asset are measured as the difference between the net 
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and 
are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the 
asset is derecognised. 

(k) Recoverable amount of non-financial 
assets 

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is 
any indication that an asset may be impaired. Where an 
indicator of impairment exists, the Group makes a formal 
estimate of recoverable amount. Where the carrying amount 
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount the asset is 
considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable 
amount. 

Recoverable amount is the greater of fair value less costs of 
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing 
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which 
there are separately identifiable cash flows that are largely 
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups 
of assets (cash-generating units). In assessing value in use, 
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their 
present value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects 
current market assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset. 

(I) Trade and other payables 

Trade and other payables are recognised for amounts payable 
in relation to goods received and services rendered, whether 
or not billed to the Group at reporting date. The Group 
operates in a number of diverse markets, and accordingly the 
terms of trade vary by business. 

(m) Interest-bearing loans and borrowings 

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair 
value of the consideration received less directly attributable 
transaction costs. 

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method. 

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group 
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for 
at least 12 months after the reporting date. 

CRW .507 .005.2537 

Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs directly associated with qualifying assets are 
capitalised, including any other associated costs directly 
attributable to the borrowing. The capitalisation rate to 
determine the amount of borrowing costs to be capitalised is 
the weighted average interest rate applicable to the Group's 
outstanding borrowings during the year, in this case 5.4% 
(2019: 5.8%). 

All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they are 
incurred. 

(n) Provisions 

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) to make a future sacrifice of 
economic benefits to other entities as a result of past 
transactions or other events, it is probable that a future 
sacrifice of economic benefit will be required and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. 

Where the Group expects some or all of a provision to be 
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate 
asset. The expense relating to any provision is presented in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss net of any reimbursement. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions 
are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the 
risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the 
increase in the provision due to the passage of t ime is 
recognised as a finance cost. 

A provision for dividends is not recognised as a liability unless 
the dividends are declared, or publicly recommended on or 
before the reporting date. 

( o) Employee benefits 

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a 
result of employees rendering services up to reporting date 
including related on-costs. The benefits include wages and 
salaries, incentives, compensated absences and other 
benefits, which are charged against profits in their respective 
expense categories when services are provided or benefits 
vest with the employee. 

The provision for employee benefits is measured at the 
remuneration rates expected to be paid when the liability is 
settled. Benefits expected to be settled after twelve months 
from the reporting date are measured at the present value of 
the estimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of 
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. 

The liability for long service leave is recognised in the 
provision for employee benefits and measured as the present 
value of expected future payments to be made in respect of 
services provided by employees up to the reporting date using 
the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to 
expected future wage and salary levels, experience of 
employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future 
payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting 
date on bonds with terms to maturity and currencies that 
match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash 
outflows. 

PAGE 14 



CRW .507 .005.2538 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

1.6 Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies continued 

(p) Leases 

Group as lessee 
(i) Rjght-of-use assets 
The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the 
commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the 
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are 
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and 
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of 
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the 
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs 
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date less any lease incentives received. 
Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of 
the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised 
right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis 
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease 
term. Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment. 

Right-of-use assets are included in the heading Property, 
plant and equipment on the Statement of Financial Position. 

(ii) Lease liabilities 
At the commencement date of the lease, the Group 
recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of 
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease 
payments include flXed payments (including in-substance 
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable 
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate initially 
measured using the index or rate as at commencement date, 
and amounts expected to be paid under residual value 
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise 
price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised 
by the Group and payments of penalties for terminating a 
lease, if the lease term reAects the Group exercising the 
option to terminate. The variable lease payments that do not 
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in 
the period on which the event or condition that triggers the 
payment occurs. 

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group 
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease 
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is 
not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the 
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion 
of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In 
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured 
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a 
change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change 
in the assessment to purchase the underlying asset. 

Lease liabilities are included in the headings current and non
current Interest-bearing loans and borrowings on the 
Statement of Financial Position. 

(iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets 
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption 
to its short-term leases of property, plant and equipment (i.e., 
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from 
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase 
option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets 
recognition exemption to leases that are considered of low 

value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of 
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight
line basis over the lease term. 

Group as lessor 

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all 
the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified 
as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating 
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying 
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease 
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents 
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are 
earned. 

(q) Derecognition of financial instruments 

The derecognition of a financial asset takes place when the 
Group no longer controls the contractual rights that comprise 
the financial asset, which is normally the case when the 
instrument is sold, or all the cash flows attributable to the 
instrument are passed through to an independent third party. 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under 
the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. 

( r) Derivative financial instruments and 
hedging 

Derivatives are carried as assets when their fair value is 
positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative. Any 
gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of 
derivatives, except for those that qualify as cash flow hedges, 
are taken directly to profit or loss for the year. 

The fair value of forward exchange contracts are calculated 
by reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts 
with similar maturity profiles. The fair values of interest rate 
swaps are determined by reference to market values for 
similar instruments. 

Hedges that meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are 
accounted for as follows: 

{I} Fair value hedges 

Fair value hedges are hedges of the Group's exposure to 
changes in the fair value of a recognised asset or liability or 
an unrecognised firm commitment, or an identified portion of 
such an asset, liability or firm commitment that is attributable 
to a particular risk and could affect profit or loss. For fair 
value hedges, the carrying amount of the hedged item is 
adjusted for gains and losses attributable to the risk being 
hedged and the derivative is remeasured to fair value. Gains 
and losses from both are taken to profit or loss. 

The Group discontinues fair value hedge accounting if the 
hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or 
exercised, the hedge no longer meets the criteria for hedge 
accounting or the Group revokes the designation. Any 
adjustment to the carrying amount of a hedged financial 
instrument for which the effective interest method is used is 
amortised to profit or loss. Amortisation may begin as soon as 
an adjustment exists and shall begin no later than when the 
hedged item ceases to be adjusted for changes in its fair 
value attributable to the risk being hedged. 

PAGE15 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

1.6 Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies continued 

(ii) Cash flow hedges 

Cash Aow hedges are hedges of the Group's exposure to 
variability in cash Aows that is attributable to a particular risk 
associated with a recognised asset or liability that is a firm 
commitment and that could affect profit or loss. The effective 
portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is 
recognised directly in equity, while the ineffective portion is 
recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

Amounts taken to OCI are accumulated in the cash Aow 
hedge reserve in equity and are t ransferred out of equity and 
included in the measurement of the hedged transaction 
(finance costs or inventory purchases) when the forecast 
transaction occurs. If the hedging instrument expires or is 
sold, terminated or exercised without replacement or rollover, 
or if the hedging relationship is discontinued, amounts 
previously recognised in equity remain in equity until the 
forecast transaction occurs. 

(s) Put options over non-controlling interests 

Put options granted to holders of non-controlling interests 
{'NO puts') at the date of acquiring control of a subsidiary (or 
after gaining control) gives rise to a financial liability. 

When the Group does not have a present ownership interest 
in the shares subject to the NCI put, the Group applies the 
partial recognition of NCI approach. Under this approach, the 
following accounting method is applied at the end of each 
reporting period: 

• The Group determines the amount that would have 
been recognised for the NCI, including an update to 
reAect allocations of profit or loss, allocations of 
changes in other comprehensive income and dividends 
declared for the reporting period; 

• The Group derecognises the NO as if it was acquired 
at that date; 

• The Group recognises a financial liability and continues 
to re-assess the liability at the present value of the 
amount payable on exercise of the NCI put; and 

• The Group accounts for the difference between the 
NO derecognised and the financial liability recognised 
as an equity transaction. 

If the NO put is exercised, the same treatment is applied up 
to the date of exercise. The amount recognised as the 
financial liability at that date is extinguished by the payment 
of the exercise price. 

If the NO put expires unexercised, the position is unwound 
so that the NO is recognised at the amount it would have 
been, as if the NO put had never been granted. The financial 
liability is derecognised as an equity transaction. 

(t) Contributed equity 

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Issued capital is 
recognised at the fair value of the considerat ion received, less 
transaction costs and share buy-backs. 

CRW .507 .005.2539 

(u) Revenue from contracts with customers 

The Group's accounting policy for Revenue from Contracts 
with Customers and impact on adoption of AASB 15 is as 
follows 

Crown Melbourne. Crown Perth and Crown Aspinalls 

Gaming Re venue 

Gaming revenue is the net difference between gaming wins 
and losses, and is recognised upon the outcome of the game. 
Commissions rebated to customers or promoters are recorded 
as a reduction of revenue. Prior to adoption of AASB 15, 
commissions rebated to customers or promoters were 
recorded within operating expenses. 

Food and be verage revenue 

Food and beverage revenue is recognised as the goods are 
provided. 

Hotel, entertainment and other operating revenues 

Hotel, entertainment and other operating revenues are 
recognised as services are performed, which for hotels is over 
the term of the customer's stay and for entertainment is when 
the event is held. Advance deposits for hotels and advance 
ticket sales for entertainment are recorded as customer 
deposits (i.e. contract liability) until services are provided to 
the customer. 

Complimentary goods or services 

For gaming transactions that include complimentary goods or 
services being provided to customers, the Group allocates 
revenue from the gaming transaction to the good or service 
provided based on the standalone selling price which is the 
arm's length price for that good or service available to the 
public. 

Contract and contract-related liabilities 

In providing goods and services to its customers, there may 
be a timing difference between cash receipts from customers 
and recognition of revenues, resulting in a contract or 
contract-related liability. 

The Group primarily has liabilities related to contracts with 
customers as follows: 

- Unredeemed casino chips, which represent the amounts 
owed to customers for chips in their possession. 

- Loyalty program liabilities, which represent the deferral of 
revenue until loyalty points are redeemed. 

- Advance customer deposits, which represent casino front 
money deposits that are funds deposited by customers 
before gaming play occurs, gift vouchers and advance 
payments on goods and services yet to be provided such as 
deposits on hotel rooms and convention space. 

These liabilities are generally expected to be recognised as 
revenues within one year of being purchased, earned, or 
deposited and are recorded within current trade and other 
payables on the Statement of Financial Position. Decreases in 
these balances generally represent the recognition of 
revenues and increases in the balances represent additional 
chips held by customers, increases in customer loyalty 
program balances and additional deposits made by 
customers. 

PAGE 16 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

1.6 Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies continued 

(u) Revenue from contracts with customers 
continued 

Wagering and Online 

Revenue from exchange betting 

Revenue from exchange betting represents commission and 
other charges earned on betting activity. Revenue is 
recognised as the performance obligations are satisfied, which 
is considered to be upon the outcome of the bet being 
determined. 

Social gaming revenue 

Social gaming revenue is derived from the purchase of 
credits. Revenue is recognised in the accounting periods in 
which the transactions occur on a gross basis and commission 
costs are expensed as incurred. 

(v) Other revenue 

Leases 

Lease revenue is recognised on a time proportion basis over 
the lease term. Contingent lease revenue is recognised in the 
period in which it is earned. 

Interest 

Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues (using the 
effective interest method, which is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the 
expected life of the financial instrument) to the net carrying 
amount of the financial asset. 

Dividends 

Revenue is recognised when the shareholders' right to receive 
the payment is established. 

(w) Government Grants 

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable 
assurance that the grant will be received and all attached 
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an 
expense item, it is deducted against the relevant expense on 
a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for 
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. 

(x) Share-based payments 

Employees (including senior executives) of the Group receive 
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby 
employees render services as consideration for equity 
instruments. 

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the 
fair value at the date when the grant is made using an 
appropriate valuation model. 

That cost is recognised in employee benefits expense, 
together with a corresponding increase in equity (reserves), 
over the period in which the service is fulfilled (the vesting 
period). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled 

CRW .507 .005.2540 

transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date 
reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired. 

If the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the 
minimum expense recognised is the grant date fair value of 
the unmodified award, provided the original terms of the 
award are met. An additional expense, measured as at the 
date of modification, is recognised for any modification that 
increases the total fair value of the share-based payment 
t ransaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee. Where 
an award is cancelled by the ent ity or by the counterparty, 
any remaining element of the fair value of the award is 
expensed immediately through profit or loss. 

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as 
additional share dilution in the computation of diluted 
earnings per share. 

(y) Earnings per share (EPS) 

Basic EPS is calculated as net profit after tax, adjusted to 
exclude any costs of servicing equity (other than dividends), 
divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares, 
adjusted for any bonus element. 

Diluted EPS is calculated as net profit after tax, adjusted for: 

costs of servicing equity (other than dividends); 

the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated 
with dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been 
recognised as expenses; and 

other non-discretionary changes in revenues or 
expenses during the period that would result from the 
dilution of potential ordinary shares; 

divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
and dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus 
element. 

(z) Segment Information 

The Group's operating segments have been determined based 
on geographic location, management reporting structure and 
the nature of the products and services offered by the Group. 
Crown has identified the Board of Directors as its chief 
operating decision maker that allocates resources and 
assesses the performance of the operating segments. The 
segment information presented below is consistent with 
internal management reporting. 

The Group has four operating segments being Crown 
Melbourne, Crown Perth, Crown Aspinalls and Wagering & 
Online. 

PAGE 17 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

1.6 Summary of Significant Accounting 
Policies continued 

(aa) Business Combinations 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition 
method. The consideration transferred in a business 
combination shall be measured at fair value, which shall be 
calculated as the sum of the acquisition date fair values of the 
assets transferred by the acquirer, the liabilities incurred by 
the acquirer to former owners of the acquiree and the equity 
issued by the acquirer, and the amount of any non-controlling 
interest in the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are 
expensed as incurred. 

for each business combination the group elects whether to 
measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree at the 
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's 
identifiable net assets. 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial 
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification 
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, 
economic conditions, the Group's operating or accounting 
policies and other pertinent conditions as at the acquisition 
date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in 
host contracts by the acquiree. 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the 
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held 
equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at 
the acquisition date through profit or loss. 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer 
will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. 
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent 
consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability will 
be recognised in accordance with AASB 9 in the Statement of 
Profit or Loss. If the contingent consideration is classified as 
equity, it should not be remeasured until it is finally settled 
within equity. 

CRW .507 .005.2541 

PAGE 18 



CROWN RESORTS UMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 
2. Segment Information 

JO June 2020 

Operating revenue 
Mail fbor tables 
Mail fbor machiles 
VIP program play 
Wageri'lg & Non gaming 
C.ommission adjustment 
Intersegment 

Operating revenue 
Interest revenue 

Total revenue 

EBITDA before Cbsure C.osts C'l & SignR:ant Items en 
C.osts ilcurred during mandated cbsure CJ> 
Crown Sydney pre-0penilg costs <41 

EBITDA after Closure Costs <•> & Significant items <SJ<7l 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Impaiment - Oown Aspilalls <4> 
Impaiment - Nobu «> 
Reassessment of contngent consideration - DGN <4> 

Earnings before interest and t ax "EBIT' en 
Equty accounted share of associates' net prof~/(bss) <6> 

Crown 
Mel>oume 

sm 

548.7 
341.9 
224.9 
362.3 

1,477.8 

1477.8 

354.3 
(65.8) 

288.5 
(176.0) 

-

112.5 

bsure <•> Equty accounted share of associates' net prof~/(bss) during mandated c 
Net ilterest ilcome/(expense) 

Profit/(loss) before tax 
Income tax benef~/(expense) 

Profit/(loss) after tax 
Non<ontrollng ilterest 

Profit/(loss) attnbutable to equity holders of the Parent 

Theoretical Result <1><7l 

Crown Crown Wagering 

Perth Aspinalls &On~ne 
sm sm sm 

137.6 -
207.0 
49.5 32.3 -

219.2 0.8 135.5 

613.3 33.1 135.5 

613.3 33.1 135.5 

161.8 (2.7) 34.7 
(19.7) ( 1.2) 

-
142.1 (3.9) 34.7 
(79.6) (4.8) (9.4) 

(52.8) -

11,7\ 
62.5 (61.5) 23.6 

VIP Win Rate & 
Commission 

lklallocated Crown Adjust- Crown 
Group ment<1><2> Group 

~Ill sm sm ~m 

- 686.3 - 686.3 
- 548.9 548.9 

306.7 133.4 440.1 
0.3 718.1 718.1 

- (165.0) (165.0) 
11.4\ - 11,4\ 

0.3 2,258.6 (31.6) 2,227.0 
10.2 10.2 

0.3 2 268.8 (31.6) 2 237.2 

(44.3) 503.8 111.6 615.4 
(20.6) (107 3) (107.3) 
(3.5) (3.5) - (3.5) 

(68.4 ) 393.0 111.6 504.6 
(5.7) (275 5) (275.5) 

- (52.8) - (52.8) 
(21.7) (21.7) (21.7) 

- (1,7\ - 11,7\ 
(95.8) 41.3 111.6 152.9 

6.7 
(6.4) 
0.0 

153.2 
(71.3\ 

81.9 
(2.4) 

79.5 

(1) Theoretical results have been adjusted to exclude the impact of any variance from theoretical w in rate on VIP program play (at Crown Melbourne, Crown Perth and Crown Aspinalls). The theoretical win rate 
is the expected hold percentage on VIP program play over time. Accordingly, the theoretical result gives rise to adjustments to VIP program play revenue, operating expenses and income tax expense. 
Revenue from gaming transactions that include complimentary goods or services being provided to customers is not allocated from gaming revenue to the good or service provided. 

<2> During the year Crown incurred $165.0 million of actual VIP program play commission expenses. In the actual results, the commission expenses have been allocated out of Operating Expenses and 
recognised as a reduction to revenue. This difference between the theoretical and actual result is included in the VIP Win Rate & Commission Adjustment column above. 

C3l Closure Costs reflect all costs incurred whilst the properties were closed due to Government direction (refer commentary below), excluding costs in relation to hotel quarantine services and Crown's Wagering 
and Online businesses during the closure period. The operating segments impacted by the closures were Crown Melbourne, Crown Perth, Crown Aspinalls, corporate costs and Crown's share of associates. 

C•l These items have been classified as Significant items. Refer note 3{e) for further details. 
C5l Significant items in 'EBITDA after dosure Costs & Significant items' includes EBITDA related Significant items only. 
<6> In addition to the mandated closure of Crown's core businesses, Crown's associates, Aspers and Nobu, were also subject to mandated closure orders. Accordingly, Crown's equity accounted share of losses 

during these mandated closure periods have been separately identified in the table above, consistent w ith the treatment of Crown's core businesses. 
C7l Non-IFRS measures. 

PAGE 19 

CRW .507 .005.2542 



CROWN RESORTS UMITED 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

2. Segment Information continued 

30 June 2019 

Operating revenue 
Mail floor tables 
Mail floor machnes 

VIP program play 
Wagemg & Non gaming 
commission adjustment 
Intersegment 

Operating revenue 

Interest revenue 
Total revenue 

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 
amortisation " EBITOA" «l 

Depreciation and amortisation 
Impaiment - DGN (3) 

Reassessment of continqent consideration - DGN (3) 

Earnings before interest and tax " EBir' <•l 

Equity accounted share of associates' net proft/(k>ss) 
Net interest income/{ expense) 

Profit/Closs) before tax 
Income tax beneft/{ expense) 

Profit/{loss) after tax 

Non-controlli1q n terest 

Profit/{loss) attributable to equity holders of the Parent 

Crown 

Melbourne 
$m 

772.4 
462.7 
441.4 

478.9 

2,155.4 

2155.4 

589.5 
(175.2} 

414.3 

Theoretical Result <1H•l 

Crown Crown Wagering & 

Perth Aspinals Online 
$m $m $m 

186.8 
267.4 -

72.0 54.9 
273.0 1.1 130.1 

799.2 56.0 130.1 

799.2 56.0 130.1 

221.8 6.4 26.1 
(85.3} {2.7} {6.8} 

(48.9} 
48.9 

136.5 3 .7 19.3 

·'-
VIPWIO Rate 
& COnvnission 

Unallocated Crown Adjust-

Group ment<1H2l Crown Group 
$m $ 111 $m Sm 

959.2 - 959.2 
730.1 - 730.1 

- 568.3 25.0 593.3 
1.5 884.6 - 884.6 

{261.3) (261.3) 
13.2) - 13.2) 

1.5 3,139.0 (236.3) 2,902.7 
26.5 - 26.5 

1.5 3 165.5 1236.3) 2 929.2 

{41.7) 802.1 47.6 849.7 
{3.6) {273.6) - (273.6) 

(48.9) - {48.9) 
48.9 - 48.9 

145.3) 528.5 47.6 576.1 

13.3 
110.1) 
579.3 

1176.4) 

402.9 
11.ll 

401.8 

(1) 

(2) 

Theoretical results have been adjusted to exclude the impact of any variance from theoretical win rate on VIP program play (at crown Melbourne, Crown Perth and Crown Aspinalls). The theoretical win rate 
is the expected hold percentage on VIP program play over time. Accordingly, the theoretical result gives rise to adjustments to VIP program play revenue, operating expenses and income tax expense. 
Revenue from gaming transact ions that include complimentary goods or services being provided to customers is not allocated from gaming revenue to the good or service provided. 

(3) 

(•) 

During the year Crown incurred $261.3 million of actual VIP program play commission expenses. In the actual results, the commission expenses have been allocated out of Operating Expenses and 
recognised as a reduction to revenue. This difference between the theoretical and actual result is included in the VIP Win Rate & commission Adjustment column above. 
These items have been classified as Significant items. Refer note 3( e) for further details. 
Non-IFRS measures. 

PAGE 20 

CRW .507 .005.2543 



CRW .507 .005.2544 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

2. Segment Information continued 

Closure of Crown's Operations 
During the financial year, Crown was directed by relevant State and Federal Governments to suspend its gaming activities and 
other non-essential services in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Government mandated closures were effective from 
20 March 2020 for Crown Aspinalls and 23 March 2020 for Crown Melbourne and Crown Perth. Gaming activities at Crown 
Melbourne and Crown Aspinalls remained closed at 30 June 2020. With effect from 27 June 2020, Crown Perth re
commenced gaming activities and operations of its gaming floor food and beverage outlets under temporary restrictions 
agreed with the Western Australian Government. During the mandated closure period, Crown Melbourne and Crown Perth 
hotels remained open largely to provide the State Government with hotel quarantine services for returning overseas travelers. 
All other operations were dosed or severely limited during this period in accordance with the Government direction. 

Crown's businesses ordinarily operate each day of the year and, apart from minor exceptions, 24 hours each day. Due to the 
unprecedented nature of the Government mandated closures during the period, Crown considers the circumstances 
surrounding its closure to be exceptional. During the closure period, whilst Crown did not generate any gaming revenues, 
Crown continued to incur expenses to maintain its operations and corporate responsibilities (including meeting certain 
financial and legal requirements). Given these exceptional circumstances, Crown has separately disclosed all costs incurred 
during the mandated closure period. The closure costs exclude costs in relation to hotel quarantine services provided during 
the closure period but include the impact of the JobKeeper grant and other similar reimbursements, such as the Government 
support scheme in the UK. There were no closure costs associated with Crown's Wagering and Online businesses as their 
operations were not suspended during the reporting period. 

3 . Revenue and Expenses 

Prolt before income tax expense incudes the folowilg revenues and expenses: 

(a) Revenue 

Crown Mebourne 

Crown Perth 

Crown Aspilafls 

Wagerilg & Online 

Other 

Less Commissions 

Total Revenue from Contracts with Customers 

Tenancy revenue 

Interest 

Dividends 

(b) Ot her income 

Profit on disposal of non-current assets 

(c) Expenses 

Cost of sales 

Operating activities 

Crown Sydney pre-opening costs 

Goodwil inpaiment - Crown Aspinalls <1> 

Goodwil i'npaiment - DGN 

Impainnent of associate - Nobu C
1> 

Reassessment of contingent consideration - DGN C
2> 

Other ex12enses 

( I) Refer note 13 for further information. 
(2) Refer note 15 for further information. 

2020 
m 

1,580.9 

607.5 

42.7 

134.7 

0.2 

(165.0J 

2,201.0 

26.0 

10.2 

2 237.2 

0.1 

0.1 

124.1 

1,799.4 

3.5 

52.8 

21.7 

1.7 

71.0 

2 074.2 

2019 
m 

2,133.7 

808.8 

56.3 

129.1 

(261.3) 

2,866.6 

34.6 

26.5 

1.5 

2 929.2 

0.2 

0.2 

157.6 

2,122.4 

48.9 

(48.9} 

46.8 

2 326.8 

PAGE 21 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

3. Revenue and Expenses continued 

Depreciation of no n-current assets (ncluded in expenses above) 

Buildings 

Plant and equipment 

Right -of-use assets 

Amortisat ion of non-current asset s ( included in expenses above) 

Casino 6cence fee and management agreement 

Other assets 

Total depredation and amortisation expense 

(d) Other income and expense disclosures 

Finance cost s expensed: 

Debt facities 

Lease &abiities 

Capitalised interest 

Superannuation expense 

Other employee benefits expense (net of government grants, refer note 25) 

Net forei;in currency (gains)/losses 

(e) Significant items - income I (expense) 

Crown Sydney pre-opening costs 

Goodwm impairment - Crown Aspinalls <1> 

Goodwil impairment - DGN 

Impairment of associate - Nobu <1> 

Reassessment of contingent consideration - DGN <2> 

Tax amounts i1 significant items 

( 1) 

( 2) 
Refer note 13 for further information. 
Refer note 15 for further information. 

J 

CRW .507 .005.2545 

2020 2019 
$ m $111 

92.5 94.9 

151.4 154.0 

5.9 

249.8 248.9 

20.4 20.4 

5.3 4.3 

25.7 24.7 

275.S 273.6 

2020 2019 

$m $m 

66.8 

2.4 

(59.0) 

10.2 

59.1 

777.2 

(0.2) 

(3.5) 

(52.8) 

(21.7) 

(1.7) 

1.0 

(78.7} 

81.5 

(44.9) 

36.6 

65.8 

925.1 
(1.3) 

(48.9) 

48.9 

PAGE 22 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

4. Dividends Paid and Declared 

(a) Dividends declared and paid during the financial year 

Prior year final dividend (paid 4 October 2019} 

Paid at 30.0 cents (2018: 30.0 cents) per share f ranked at 25% (2018: 60% franked) 
at the Australian tax rat e of 30% (2018: 30%) 

Current year interim dividend (paid 17 April 2020} 

Paid at 30.0 cents (2019: 30.0 cents) per share franked at 0% (2019: 60% franked) 
at the Australian tax rat e of 30% (2019: 30%) 

Total dividends appropriated 

(b) Dividends declared and not recognised as a liability 

Current year final dividend 

No final dividend declared (2019: 30.0 cents per share franked at 25% at the 
Austrarian tax rate of 30%) 

(c) Franking credits 

The amount of franking credits available for the subsequent financial year: 

Franking account balance as at the end of the financial year at 30% (2019: 30%) 

Franking credits/( debits) t hat will arise from the payment/(receipt) of income taxes 
payable/( refundable) as at the end of the financial year 

The amount of franking credits available for futu re reporting periods: 

Impact on the franking account of dividends announced before the financial report was 
authorised for issue but not recognised as a distribution to equity holders during the 
financial year 

Total franking credits available for future reporting periods 

CRW .507 .005.2546 

2020 2019 

m m 

203.1 205.9 

203.1 203.1 

406.2 409.0 

203.1 

1.0 2.9 

48.0 (4.4) 

49.0 (1.5) 

(21.8) 

49.0 (23.3) 

PAGE 23 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

5. Income Tax 

(a) Income tax expense 

The prima fade tax expense, using the Australian tax rat e multiplied by profit differs 
from income tax provided in t he financial statements as follows: 

Profit before income tax 

Prima fade income t ax expense on profit at the Australian rate of 30% (2019: 30%) 

Tax effect of: 

Non deductible depreciat ion and amortisation 

Share of associates' net losses/(profits) 

Differences in foreign tax rates 

Deferred tax balances not previously brought to account 

Income t ax ( over)/under provided in prior years 

Non-<leductible/(non-assessable) significant items 

Revenue losses not brought to account 

Ot her items - net 

Income tax expense 

Income t ax expense comprises: 

Current expense 

Deferred expense 

Adjustments for current income tax of prior periods 

Tax on significant items 

(b) Deferred income taxes 

Deferred income tax assets 

Deferred income tax liabirlties 

Net deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) 

CRW .507 .005.254 7 

2020 2019 

Ill Ill 

153.2 

46.0 

1.7 

(0.1) 

0.3 

4.1 

(8.9) 

22.8 

0.2 

5.2 

71.3 

78.7 

2.5 

(8.9) 

(1.0) 

71.3 

170.7 

(405.7) 

(235.0) 

579.3 

173.8 

1.7 

(4.0) 

(0.9) 

1.5 

(0.6) 

(2.1) 

7.0 

176.4 

50.9 

126.1 

(0.6) 

176.4 

159.5 

( 401.5) 

(242.0) 

PAGE 24 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

5. Income Tax continued 

(c) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities at the 
end of t he financia l year 

The balance comprises temporary differences 
attributable to: 

Doubtful debt provision 

Employee benefits provision 

Losses available for offsettng against future taxable income 

Other receivables 

Other provisions 

Prepaid casilo tax 

Licences and ntangi:>les 

Land and buidngs 

Property, plant & equipment 

Revak.iation of nvestment to fat valie 

Other 

Deferred income tax expense/(income) 

Net deferred income tax assets/Cliabilitiesl 

Statement of Rnancial 
Position 

2020 

Ill 

25.5 

46.1 

1.7 

0.3 

36.7 

(13.6) 

(205.1) 

(206.0) 

50.8 

28.6 

(235.0) 

2019 

Ill 

18.2 

41.0 

25.6 

0.5 

40.9 

(14.0) 

(225.6) 

(166.1) 

25.6 

11.9 

(242.0) 

CRW .507 .005.2548 

Statement of Profit or Loss 

2020 2019 

$111 $111 

(7.3) 95.1 

(5.1) (2.3) 

23.9 0.4 

0.2 1.2 

4.2 13.6 

(0.4) (0.4) 

(20.5) (1.0) 

39.9 26.3 

(18.5) (6.7) 

18.4 

(13.9) (18.5} 

2.5 126.1 

PAGE 25 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

5. Income Tax co11ti1111ed 

(d) Movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the 
financial year 

Carrying amount at the beginning of the year 

Tax income I (expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss 

Adjustment on adopt ion of AASB 16 Leases 

Exchange differences 

Tax income I (expense) - derivatives 

Canyinq amount at the end of the year 

(e) Tax losses not brought to account, as the realisation of the benefits 
represented by these balances is not considered to be probable 

Tax losses arising in Australia for offset against future capital gains 

Foreign income tax losses for offset against future foreign profits 

Total tax losses not brought to account 

Potential tax benefit at respective tax rates 

(f) Unrecognised temporary differences 

2020 

m 

(242.0) 

(2.5) 

6.6 

0.1 

2.8 

(235.0) 

94.8 

885.7 

980.5 

214.5 

CRW .507 .005.2549 

2019 

m 

(114.0) 

(126.1) 

(0.1) 

(1.8) 

(242.0) 

86.8 

753.0 

839.8 

184.2 

At 30 June 2020, there is no recognised or unrecognised deferred income tax liability (2019: $nil) for taxes that would be payable 
on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group's subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, as the Group has no liability for 
additional taxation should such amounts be remitted. 

(g) Tax consolidation 

Crown Resorts Limited and its 100% owned Australian resident subsidiaries have formed a tax consolidated group with effect 
from 1 July 2007. Crown Resorts Limited is the head entity of the tax consolidated group. Members of the group have entered 
into a tax sharing arrangement with Crown Resorts Limited in order to allocate income tax expense between Crown Resorts 
Limited and the wholly owned subsidiaries. In addition, the agreement provides for the allocation of income tax liabilities 
between the entities should the head entity default on its tax payment obligations. At the balance date the possibility of default 
is remote. 

(h) Tax effect accounting by members of the tax consolidated group 

Members of the tax consolidated group have entered into a tax funding agreement. The tax funding agreement provides for the 
allocation of current and deferred taxes to members of the tax consolidated group in accordance with their taxable income for the 
period. The allocation of taxes under the tax funding agreement is recognised as an increase/ decrease in the subsidiaries inter
company accounts with the tax consolidated group head company, Crown Resorts Limited. 

PAGE 26 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

6. Trade and Other Receivables 

Current 

Trade receivables 

Provision for doubtful debts (a) 

Other receivables 

Non-current 

Other receivables 

CRW.507.005.2550 

2020 2019 

193.5 

(139.0) 

m 

189.7 

(108.0) 

54.5 81.7 

56.7 17.0 

111.2 98.7 

157.8 

157.8 

PAGE 27 



CRW .507 .005.2551 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

7. Other Financial Assets 

2020 2019 

m m 

Current 

Receivable on foreign exchange cont racts 5.5 

5.5 

Non-current 

Receivable on cross currency swaps 29.3 35.2 

Ot her 2.3 

29.3 37.5 

Details of the Group's exposure to interest rate risk and foreign currency changes are provided in note 32. 

8. Investments in Associates 

Investment details: 

Associated entit ies - unlisted shares 

Total investments in associates 

Share of profits of associates 

Nobu Group 

Aggregate share of profit from non mat erial associates 

Reporting 
Investments in Associates Date 

Nobu Group 31 Dec<•> 

Aspers Holdings (Jersey) Ltd 30 June 

Chill Gaming Pty Ltd 30 June 

Principal Activity 

Restaurants/Hotels 

Casino and gaming 
machine operator 

Gaming software developer 

( l ) The Group uses 30 June results to equity account the investments. 

Principal 
Place of 
Business 

USA 

UK 

Australia 

2020 

m 

186.0 

186.0 

2020 
m 

3.4 

(3.1) 

0.3 

2019 

m 

206.9 

206.9 

2019 
Ill 

7.3 

6.0 

13.3 

O/o Interest 
30 June 30 June 

2020 2019 

20.0 20.0 

50.0 50.0 

50.0 50.0 

The associates outlined above are accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements. 

Summarised financial infonmation in respect of each of the Group's material associates is set out below. 

PAGE 28 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

8. Investments in Associates continued 

Canying amount of investment - Nobu Group: 

Balance at t he beginning of the financial year 

Share of associates' net profit/( loss) for t he year 

Impairment <1> 

Foreign exchange movements 

Dividends received 

Canying amount of investment in the Nobu Group at the end of the 
financia l year 

<1> Refer note 13 for further information. 

9. Property, Plant and Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment comprises owned and leased assets. 

Property, plant and equipment - owned 

B!ght-of-use assets - leased (refer note 10} 

Owned assets 

Buildings on 
Freehold land leasehold 

& buildings land 

~m ~Ill 

Year ended 3 0 June 2020 

At 1 July 2019, net of accumulated 
depreciation and impaiment 1,705.9 795.8 

Add~i:ms 93.8 18.5 

Depreciation expense (43.4) (49.1) 

Exchange differences 

Reclassification£ transfer 0.9 

At 30 June 20 20, net of accumulated 
dej?reciat ion and imj?ainnent 1,75 7.2 765.2 

At 30 June 20 20 

Cost (gross carrying amount ) 2,283.1 1,616.9 

Accumulated de12reciation and im12aiment (525.9} (851.7} 

Net car!:lin9 amount 1,15 1.2 765.2 

CRW .507 .005.2552 

2020 2019 

m m 

142.5 135.2 

3.4 7.3 

(21.7) 

2.8 7.4 

(5.9) (7.4) 

121.1 142.5 

2020 2019 

Ill 

4,837.4 4,259.0 

33.8 

4 871.2 4 25 9.0 

Constniction Tot al p roperty, 
Plant & work in plant & 

equipment progress equipment 

~m ~m ~m 

611.3 1,146.0 4,259.0 

92.6 617.0 821.9 

(151.4) (243.9) 

0.4 0.4 

7.2 (8 .1} 

560 .1 1,754.9 4,83 7.4 

2,568.8 1,754 .9 8,223.7 

(2,008.7} (3,386.3} 

5 60 .1 1,754.9 4,83 7.4 

As part of the refinancing undertaken in April 2020, Crown entered into new bi-lateral facilities totalling $560 million and provided 
security to the lenders in the form of first ranking mortgages over certain Property, Plant and Equipment. 

PAGE 29 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

9. Property, Plant and Equipment continued 

Year ended 30 June 2019 

At 1 July 2018, net of accumulated 
depreciation and impaiment 

Add~i:ms 

Disposals 

Depreciation expense 

ExchanQe differences 

Reclassification/ transfer 

At 3 0 June 2019, net of accumulated 
depreciation and impainnent 

At 30 June 2019 

Cost (gross carrying amount) 

Accumulated depreciation and impaiment 

Net carrying amount 

10. Leases 

Group as Lessee 

Freehold land 
& buildings 

$m 

1,741.7 

1.3 

(45.5) 

8.4 

1,705.9 

2,189.0 

( 483.1) 

1,705.9 

Buildings on 
leasehold 

land 

$m 

829.7 

16.0 

(49.4) 

0.3 

(0.8) 

795.8 

1,602.5 

(806.7) 

795.8 

Plant & 
equipment 

$m 

664.3 

92.2 

(0.9) 

(154.0) 

1.3 

8.4 

611.3 

2,517.3 

(1.906.0) 

611.3 

CRW .507 .005.2553 

Constniction Total property, 
work in plant & 

progress equipment 

$m 

645.0 

517.0 

(16.0) 

1,146.0 

1,146.0 

1,146.0 

$m 

3,880.7 

626.5 

(0.9) 

(248.9) 

1.6 

4,259.0 

7,454.8 

(3 .195.8) 

4,259.0 

The Group has lease contracts for various items of property, offices, warehouses, vehicles and other equipment. Major property 
leases include the Crown Melbourne main site {discussed further below), a portion of the Crown Aspinalls property (lease expiring 
in 2031} and administration offices adjacent to the Crown Sydney complex {lease terms of 5 to 7 years). 

Crown Melbourne 01ajn sjte lease 
In 1993 Crown Melbourne entered into a ninety-nine year lease agreement for the site upon which the Crown Melbourne 
Entertainment Complex is located. For years one to forty inclusive, the annual rent payable is one dollar per annum. For years 
forty-one to ninety-nine inclusive, the annual rent payable will be the then current market rent for the site. The carrying value of 
the right-of-use asset has been determined as if the standard had always applied, based on the payments in years forty-one to 
ninety-nine using the estimated market rent at commencement date of the lease, applying the incremental borrowing rate at date 
of initial application of the standard. In estimating the market rent at commencement date, the Group engaged an independent 
property valuer. 

Set out below are the carrying amounts of Right-of-use assets (included under Property, Plant & Equipment): 

Net carrying amount 

30 June 2020 

Depreciation expense for the year ended 

30 June 2020 

Additions to right-of-use assets during 2020 were $9.0 million. 

Land & 
buildings 

$m 

30.2 

3.9 

Other 

$m 

3.6 

2.0 

Total 

$m 

33.8 

5.9 

PAGE 30 



CRW .507 .005.2554 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

10. Leases continued 

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and the 
movements during the period: 

Balance on adoption of AASB16 Leases 

Additions 

Accretion of interest 

Payments 

Exchange differences 

Balance at the end of the financial year 

Current 

Non,urrent 

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 32. 

I 

2020 

Sm 

54.5 

9 .0 

2.4 

(7.1) 

(0.1) 

58.7 

7.2 

51.5 

58.7 

The Group also has certain leases with lease terms of 12 months or less. The Group applies the 'short-term lease' recognition 
exemptions for these leases. The group recognised rent expense from short-term leases of $1.3 million and variable lease 
payments of $1.0 million during the financial year. In addition, Crown was granted $0.2 million in rent relief due to COVID-19, 
which has been recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss. 

The Group had total cash outflows for leases of $9.2 million in 2020. The Group has lease contracts that have not yet 
commenced as at 30 June 2020. The future lease payments for these non-cancellable lease cont racts are $1.4 million within one 
year, $5.8 million within five years and $2.9 million thereafter. 

Group as Lessor 

The Group has entered into operating leases for retail tenancies within its Crown Melbourne and Crown Perth properties. Future 
minimum rental revenue receivables for the non-cancellable period of the operating leases are shown in the table below. The 
leases have terms between 3 and 25 years. 

Payable with in one year 

Payable after one year but not more than five years 

Payable more t han five years 

2020 2019 

20.6 

51.0 

11.6 
83.2 

24.5 

57.7 

15.2 
97.4 

Crown granted rent relief to its tenants as a result of the closure of Crown's properties. The majority of Crown's rental income is 
derived from Crown Melbourne which remained closed at balance date. Crown intends to continue to not charge rent to tenants 
whilst the property remains closed. The above amounts represent the contractual obligations, and will therefore be reduced by 
the rental relief provided to tenants. As Crown is unable to reliably estimate when Crown Melbourne will be re-opened, this 
amount has not been quantified. 

The total contingent rent recognised as income during the year is $4.6 million {2019: $5.7 million). Contingent rentals which may 
become receivable in the future and separately invoiced amounts for recovery of property outgoings are excluded from the table 
above. 

PAGE 31 



CRW .507 .005.2555 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

11. Intangible Assets -Licences 

2020 2019 

m 111 

Balance at t he begiming of the financial year 1,064.0 1,080.6 

Amortisat ion ex12ense (16.7l (16.6l 

Balance at the end of the financial year l,047.3 l , 0 64.0 

Cost (gross carrying amount) 1,297.0 1,297.0 

Accumulated amortisation and rneainnent (249.7l (233.0l 

Net ca~in!il amount 1,047.3 1,064.0 

The casino licences are carried at cost and amortised on a straight line basis over their useful lives. 

The Crown Melbourne licence is being amortised until 2050. The Crown Perth licence ($440.4 mill ion) is assessed as having an 
indefinite useful life, as it does not expire, and therefore no amortisation is charged. Amortisation will commence on the Crown 
Sydney licence once the property is operational. 

PAGE 32 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

12. Other Intangible Assets 

Goodwill••• 

im 

Year ended 30 June 2020 

At 1 July 2019, net of accumulated amortisati:>n and impairment 295.4 

Impairment <2> {52.8) 

Exchaniie dfferences 0.6 

Amortisation ex[!ense 

At 30 June 2020, net of accumulated amortisation and 
impairment 243.2 

At 30 June 2020 

c.ost (gross canyng amount) 243.2 

Accumulated amortisation 

Net ca!:!l'.ing amount 243.2 

Year ended 30 June 2019 

At 1 July 2018, net of accumulated amortisati:>n and impairment 338.4 

Additions 

Impaiment <» {48.9) 

Exchange dfferences 5.9 

Amortisation ex(!!lnse 

At 30 June 2019, net of accumulated amortisation and 
inpairment 295.4 

At 30 June 2019 

Cost (gross carryl'lg amount) 295.4 

Accumulated amortiSati:>n 

Net ca!:!l'.ing amount 295.4 

<•> Purchased as part of business combinations. 
<
2
> Impairment relates to the goodwill in Crown Aspinalls. Refer note 13 for further details. 

<
3
> Impairment relates to the goodwill in DGN. Refer note 13 for further details 

CRW .507 .005.2556 

casino 
Management 

Agreement ' '' other Total 

irn im ~Ill 

115.3 4.6 415.3 

(52.8} 

0.6 

(3.7l (3.8l (7.5l 

111.6 0.8 355.6 

245.3 18.4 506.9 

(133.7} (17.6} (151.3} 

111.6 0 .8 355.6 

119.0 5.4 462.8 

2.0 2.0 

(48.9} 

5.9 

(3.7l (2.8) (6.5l 

115.3 4.6 415.3 

245.3 22.5 563.2 

(130.0) (17.9l (147.9) 

115.3 4.6 415.3 

Goodwill is considered to have an indefinite life and is tested annually for impairment (see note 13). The goodwill balance at 30 
June 2020 is allocated to Crown Melbourne $26.9 million {2019: $26.9 million), Crown Perth $144.0m {2019: $144.0 million), 
Crown Aspinalls $Nil {2019: $53.1 million), DGN $52.4 million {2019: $51.5 million) and Betfair $19.9 million {2019: $19.9 
million). 

The useful life of the Crown Melbourne casino management agreement is amortised on a straight line basis to 2050. 

PAGE 33 



CRW .507 .005.2557 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

13. Impairment Testing 

Intangible assets and items of Property Plant and Equipment 

Intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives are allocated to the Group's cash generating units {CGUs) identified according 
to the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows that are largely independent of the cash flows from 
other assets or groups of assets. 

The allocation of goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives to the Group's CGUs are outlined in note 11 
and note 12. 

The recoverable amount of a CGU is defined as the higher of the value in use and the fair value less cost of disposal. This 
implied value is then compared with the carrying value of the CGU to determine any impairment required. The recoverable 
amount of the Crown Melbourne, Crown Perth and Betfair CGUs has been determined based on a value in use calculation using 
a discounted cash flow methodology covering a five year period, with an appropriate terminal value at the end of that period. 
The methodology utilises cash flow forecasts that are based primarily on business plans presented to the Board. 

The recoverable amount of the DGN, Crown Sydney and Crown Aspinalls CGUs has been determined based on fair value less 
costs of disposal, utilising a combination of independent valuations undertaken by third parties, internal assessments of asset 
values, a discounted cash flow methodology, forecast earnings for the CGU as well as trading multiples of entities of a similar 
nature to each CGU. 

In addition, given the impact of COVID-19 on the valuation of real estate assets, the Group undertook an impairment 
assessment of the One Queensbridge site, which utilised fair value less costs of disposal and involved the use of independent 
valuations undertaken by third parties. 

Investments in Associates 

For equity accounted associates, in accordance with MSB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, the Group is 
required to assess whether there is any objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after 
initial recognition of the net investment, and that event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows from the 
net investment that can be reliably estimated. Crown has three equity accounted associates, as outlined in note 8. The Nobu 
Group, the Aspers Group and Chill Gaming have all been adversely impacted by COVID-19, and therefore the Group has 
determined that this would be considered objective evidence that an impairment analysis should be undertaken. 

The recoverable amount of the Group's investment in each associate has been determined based on a value in use calculation 
using a discounted cash flow methodology covering a five year period, with an appropriate terminal value at the end of that 
period. The methodology ut ilises cash flow forecasts that are based primarily on business plans presented to the Board. 

Value in use assessment 

The following describes each key assumption on which management has based its cash flow projections to undertake 
impairment testing under the value in use method. The adopted recoverable amount has been determined based on a range of 
values calculated using the methods described below. 

Cash flow forecasts are based on past performance and expectations for the future using a five year cash flow period, 
risk adjusted where applicable. 
Terminal value is calculated using a perpetuity growth formula based on cash flow forecasts using a weighted average 
cost of capital (after tax) and forecast growth rate. 
Forecast growth rates are based on past performance and management's expectations of future performance as at 30 
June 2020, based on the current circumstances, nature of the products and industries in which each business 
operates. The terminal growth rates beyond the five year period do not exceed the forecasted long term Australian 
inflation rate of 2.50% {2019: 2.50%). 
A weighted average cost of capital (after tax) of between 7.8% and 13.3% {2019: 8% and 12%) was used by the 
Group in impairment testing, risk adjusted where applicable. 

Fair value less costs of disposal assessment 

The following describes each key assumption on which management has based its recoverable amount calculation under the 
fair value less costs of disposal method. The below assumptions are in addition to those assumptions utilised in the 
independent valuations undertaken for the CGUs/assets. 

For calculations using a discounted cash flow methodology the key assumptions are: 

Earnings forecasts are based on the business plan as presented to the Board, which are based on past performance 
and expectations for the future using a five year cash flow period, risk adjusted where applicable. 
Terminal value is calculated using a perpetuity growth formula based on cash flow forecasts using a discount rate and 
earnings multiples. 
A discount rate (after tax) of 13.3% was used {2019: range of 8% and 12%), risk adjusted where applicable. 
Cost of disposal of 2.0% has been utilised to discount the implied fair value. 

PAGE 34 



CRW .507 .005.2558 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

13. Impairment Testing continued 

For calculations using trading multiples of entities of a similar nature to each CGU the key assumptions are: 

Trading multiples of publicly listed companies and entit ies of a similar nature to the CGU of between 8.0x and 10.5x 
next twelve months EBITDA have been utilised. 
Cost of disposal of between 1.0% and 2.0% has been utilised to discount the implied fair value. 

The fair value measurement for the Crown Aspinalls, DGN and Crown Sydney CGUs and the One Queensbridge site are 
considered to be level 3 in the fair value hierarchy, as it is based on using inputs that are not based on observable market data. 
Where available, applicable level 2 information has been taken into account (refer to note 32 for explanation of the valuation 
hierarchy). 

Outcome of impairment tests 

Based on the valuation techniques performed, an impairment loss of $52.8 million has been recorded against the Group's 
intangible assets during the year (2019: $48.9 million). In addition, an impairment loss of $21.7 million has been recorded 
against the Group's investments in associates (2019: nil). 

As at 30 June 2019, goodwill relating to the acquisition of Crown Aspinalls was $53.1 million (£29.3 million). At 30 June 2020, 
indicators of impairment were identified for the Crown Aspinalls CGU. These indicators were considered in the re-forecast of 
cash flows of Crown Aspinalls, which were developed as part of the annual business plan presented to the Board in June 2020. 
Based on the impairment test ing undertaken, the recoverable amount of the Crown Aspinalls CGU is $60.7 million (£33.8 
million) as at 30 June 2020. As a result of the carrying amounts exceeding recoverable amount of the CGU, Crown has reduced 
goodwill relating to the acquisition of Crown Aspinalls by $52.8 million (£29.3 million). This impairment loss has been included 
in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

At 30 June 2020, indicators of impairment were identified for the Group's investment in Nobu. These indicators were 
considered in the re-forecast of cash flows of Nobu, which were developed as part of the annual business plan presented to 
the Board in June 2020. Based on the impairment testing undertaken, the recoverable amount of the Group's investment in 
Nobu is $121.2 million as at 30 June 2020. As a result of the carrying amount of the investment exceeding its recoverable 
amount, Crown has reduced the carrying amount of the investment in Nobu by $21.7 million. This impairment loss has been 
included in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

Sensitivity analysis 

For CGUs and associates where the recoverable amount was determined based on the value in use calculation, the key 
estimates and assumptions used to determine the value in use are based on management's current expectations based on 
past experience, current circumstances surrounding COVID-19, future plans and external market information. They are 
considered to be reasonably achievable, however significant changes in any of the key estimates and assumptions may result 
in a CGUs carrying value exceeding its recoverable value, resulting in an impairment charge. 

For CGUs and development assets where the recoverable amount was determined based on fair value less costs of disposal, 
the key assumptions used to determine the fair value include trading multiples, earnings forecasts for the CGU and 
assumptions used in the independent valuations undertaken for the asset. 

In the case of Crown Aspinalls and Nobu where an impairment charge was taken, an adverse change in any of the 
assumptions utilised to determine the fair value would lead to a further impairment charge of the CGU or the Group's 
investment in the associate. In relation to Crown Perth, based on the Board presented forecasts, an increase in the discount 
rate of greater than 1.00% could give rise to an impairment. It should be noted that the Crown Perth has opened earlier than 
anticipated and traded stronger than the Board presented forecasts. It is not considered that any reasonable possible change 
in any of the above assumptions would cause the carrying value of any other CGU or associate to materially exceed its 
recoverable amount. 

The Group will continue to monitor the performance of all CGUs and associates going forward, and consider the impact on the 
impairment test ing assumptions and carrying value. 

PAGE 35 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

14. Other Assets 

Non-current 

Prepaid casino t ax at cost 

Accumulated amortisation 

Ot her prepayments 

15. Trade and Other Payables 

Current - unsecured 

Trade and other payables 

Cont ract and contract-related riabilities <1> 

Cont ingent consideration 

Ot her 

Non-current - unsecured 

Casino licence payable <2l 

Cont ingent consideration 

Ot her 
I 

CRW .507 .005.2559 

2020 2019 

m m 

100.8 100.8 

(55.4) (53.9) 

45.4 46.9 

3.4 1.9 

48.8 48.8 

2020 2019 

$m $m 

190.1 278.3 

137.8 152.5 

2.4 

96.2 2.3 

426.5 433.1 

172.3 167.6 

0.7 

86.8 

172.3 255.1 

( l ) Contract and contract related liabilities include unredeemed casino chips, loyalty program liabilities and advance customer deposits which 
decreased by $14.7 million during the year (2019: decreased by $24.5 million) . 
<2> Net present value of the $250.0 million payment due in 2033 relating to the Crown Melbourne casino licence. 

Co11ti11ge11t Co11sideratio11 
As part of the purchase agreement with the previous owners of Winners Club, there may be an additional contingent 
consideration payment due based on the 2020 earnings of the DGN Group. During the current period, following a re-forecast of 
earnings of the DGN Group, Crown has increased the contingent consideration by $1.7 million, which has been included in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss (2019: a reduction of $48,g million). The fair value measurement for contingent consideration is 
considered to be level 3 in the fair value hierarchy, based on using inputs that are not based on observable market data (refer to 
note 32 for explanation of the valuation hierarchy). A significant increase (decrease) in the future earnings of the DGN Group 
would result in a higher (lower) fair value of the contingent consideration liability. 

PAGE 36 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

16. Interest- Bearing Loans and Borrowings 

2020 
Ill 

Current 

Bank Loans 

Capital Markets Debt 

Lease Liabifrt:ies 7.2 

Other loans 1.0 

8.2 

Non-current 

Bank Loans 280.0 

Capital Markets Debt 790.3 

Lease Liabilities 51.5 

Other loans 

1121.8 

Fair Value Disclosures 

Details of the fair value disclosures of the Group's interest bearing liabilities are set out in note 32. 

Financial Risk Management 

Information about the Group's exposure to interest rate and foreign currency changes is provided in note 32. 

CRW .507 .005.2560 

2019 
111 

28.5 

259.1 

287.6 

790.0 

1.0 

791.0 

PAGE 37 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

16. Interest-Bearing Loans and Borrowings continued 

Financing and Credit Facilities 

Credit facilities are provided as part of the overall debt funding structure of the Crown Group as follows: 

Financing and Credit Faci lities 

Facilit y Type 

Bank Facilit ies 

Bilateral Faciities 

GBP Syndicated Faciity 

Letter of Credl Faciities 

Debt Capital Markets 

Euro Medi.Jm Term Notes 

AUD Subordinated Notes 

Other 

Other Loans 

Total at 30 June 2020 

Total at 3 0 June 2019 

Facility 

Amount 

$m 

630.0 

89.8 

125.5 

845.3 

174.6 

615.7 

790.3 

1.0 

1,63 6.6 

1,561.0 

Drawn Letters of 

Amount Credit Issued 

$m $m 

280.0 38.5 

125.5 

280.0 164.0 

174.6 

615.7 

790.3 

1.0 

1,071.3 164 .0 

1,078.6 28 2.0 

Available 

$ 111 

311.5 

89.8 

401.3 

401.3 

200.4 

CRW.507.005.2561 

Expiry 

Dates 

Apr 22 - Apr 24 

Aug 20 

Jan 22 - Jun 30 

Jul2036 

Apr 2075 

Jun 2021 

As part of the refinancing undertaken in April 2020, Crown secured new bank financing facilities totalling $560 million. These 
bank facilities are secured by Property, Plant and Equipment as oudined in note 9. The remainder of the bank facilities are 
provided on an unsecured basis by domestic and international banks. Refer note 32(a)(i) for further details regarding interest 
rates. 

The debt capital markets drawn amounts represent unsecured notes issued to domestic and international debt investors. 

Crown is able to make advances and issue letters of credit under the letter of credit facility, syndicated facilities and the bilateral 
facilities. 

Each of the above mentioned facilities is issued by or supported by a Group guarantee from Crown and certain subsidiaries and 
impose various affirmative covenants on Crown, which may indude compliance with certain financial ratios and negative 
covenants, including restrictions on encumbrances, and customary events of default, including a payment default, breach of 
covenants, cross-default and insolvency events. 

During the current and prior year, there were no defaults or breaches on any of the loans or borrowings. 

[Consider including Sydney Facility Discussion once finalised] 

Refer to note 21(c) for a summary of Crown's overdraft facilities. 

PAGE 38 



CRW .507 .005.2562 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

17. Provisions 

Employee 
Entitlements Other Total 

Ill 111 

At 1 July 2019 172.9 37.3 210.2 

Arising during the year 100.9 10.4 111.3 

Utilised during the ;i:ear (81.3l (12.9l (94.2l 

At 30 June 20 20 192.5 34 .8 227.3 

Current 2020 177.5 22.8 200.3 

Non<urrent 2020 15.0 12.0 27.0 

At 30 June 20 20 192.5 34.8 227.3 

Current 2019 158.4 27.6 186.0 

Non<urrent 2019 14.5 9.7 24.2 

At 30 June 20 19 172.9 37.3 210.2 

PAGE 39 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

18. Contributed Equity 

Issued share capital 

Ordinary shares fuDy paid 

Movements in issued share capital 

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year 

Share buy-back, inclusive of costs 

Canying amount at the end of the financial year 

Shares held in Trust 

Balance at beginning of the financial year 

Shares transferred under the Crown Long TeITTl Incentive Plan 

Balance at the end of the financial year 

Issued share capital 

Ordinary shares fuDy paid 

Movements in issued share capital 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 

Share buy-back 

Balance at the end of the financial year 

2020 

Ill 

(203.3) 

(203.3) 

{203.3) 

2020 

No. 

677,158,271 

677,158,271 

677,158,271 

CRW .507 .005.2563 

2019 

Ill 

(203.3) 

(71.9) 

(131.4) 

{203.3) 

(15.7) 

15.7 

2019 

No. 

677,158,271 

687,421,194 

(10,262,923) 

677,158,271 

For the year ended 30 June 2019, the Group carried out an on-market share buy-back to a value of $131.4 million. There was no 
additional share buy-back undertaken in the current year 

Due to share buy-backs being undertaken at higher prices than the original subscription prices, the balance of contributed equity 
is reflected as a negative balance, which shows the excess value of shares bought over the original amount of subscribed capital. 
Refer note 31 for details of the Parent Entity's share capital, which has significant paid up capital. 

Terms and Conditions of Contributed Equity 

Ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding-up of the Company in proportion to the 
number of shares held. 

The voting rights attaching to ordinary shares provide that each ordinary shareholder present in person or by proxy or attorney 
or being a corporation present by representative at a meeting shall have: 

(a) on a show of hands, one vote only; 
(b) on a poll, one vote for every fully paid ordinary share held. 

Capital Management 

When managing capital, the Group's objective is to maintain optimal returns to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. 
The Group also aims to maintain a capital structure that ensures the lowest cost of capital available to the entity. 

During 2020, the Group paid dividends of $406.2 million (2019: $409.0 million). [The Group's dividend policy is to pay 60 cents 
per share on a full year basis, subject to Crown's financial position. Having regard to the impact on Crown's businesses from the 
mandatory closures and the uncertainty surrounding the resumption of trading at Crown Melbourne, Crown has determined not to 
declare a final dividend on ordinary shares. Future dividends will be subject to the Board's assessment of Crown's financial 
position at the appropriate time.] 

PAGE 40 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

19. Reserves and Retained Earnings 

Foreign currency translation reserve 

Employee equity benefrts reserve 

Net unrealised gains reserve 

cash flow hedge reserve 

Foreign Currency Translatio n Reserve 

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising 
from the translation of the f111ancial statements of foreign operations. It is also used to 
recognise gains and losses on hedges of the net investment in foreign operations. 

Balance at the beginning of the fnancial year 

Net foreign exchange translation 

Non-controlng interest 

Balance at the end o f the financial year 

Employee Equity Ben eTits Reserve 

The employee equity benefits reserve is used to record share based remuneration 
obligations to executives in relation to ordinary shares. 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 

Movement for the period 

Balance at the end of the financial year 

Net Unrealised Gains Reserve 
The net unrealised gains reserve records t he movement from changes in ownership 
interests in a subsidiary, investments and associates equity, which do not impact 
control. 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 

Movement in non-controling interest put option 

Balance at t he end of the financial year 

Cash Row Hedge Reserve 
The cash fbw hedge reserve records the portion of the gain or loss on a hedging 
instrument in a cash fbw hedge that is determined to be an effective hedge. 

Balance at the beginning of the fnancial year 

Movement in ilterest rate swaps 

Movement il cross currency swaps 

Movement in forward exchange contracts 

Balance at the end of the financial year 

2020 

(23.6) 

22.3 

(14.4) 

18.8 

3.1 

(28.8) 

5.3 

(0.1) 

(23.6) 

18.9 

3.4 

22.3 

(14.1) 

(0.3) 

(14.4) 

25.4 

1.4 

(4.2) 

(3.8) 

18.8 

CRW .507 .005.2564 

2019 

Ill 

(28.8) 

18.9 

(14.1) 

25.4 

1.4 

(42.5) 

14.0 

(0.3) 

(28.8) 

15.6 

3.3 

18.9 

(54.9) 

40.8 

(14.1) 

21.3 

(1.6) 

8.3 

(2.6) 

25.4 

PAGE 41 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

19. Reserves and Retained Earnings continued 

Retained Earnings 

Balance at the beginning of the financial year 

AdoptK>n of AASB 16 Leases 

Net profit after tax at tributable to equity hoklers of the parent 

Total available for appropriat ion 

Dividends provided for or paid 

Balance at the end of the financial year 

20. Capital Commitments 

Estimated capital expenditure contracted for at balance date, but not 
provided for: 

Payable with in one year 

Payable after one year but not more than five years 

CRW .507 .005.2565 

2020 2019 

m m 

5,298.8 5,306.0 

(17.6) 

79.5 401.8 

5,360.7 5,707.8 

( 406.2) (409.0) 

4,954.5 5,298.8 

2020 2019 

m m 

477.6 

11.9 

489.5 

623.9 

82.8 

706.7 

PAGE 42 



CRW .507 .005.2566 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

21. Cash Flow Statement Reconciliation 

2020 2019 

m m 

(a) Cash balance represents : 

Cash on hand and at bank 158.3 412.5 

Oe(!osits at call 128.6 713.5 

286.9 1126.0 

The above closing cash balances includes $48.4 million (2019: $133.9 million) of cash on the company's premises and cash held 
in bank accounts needed to run the day to day operations of the businesses and cash (including deposits on call) of $238.5 
million (2019: $992.1 million) for other purposes. All deposits at call are with approved counterparties with investment grade 
ratings. Refer note 32( c) for further details. 

(b) Reconciliation of the profit/ (loss) after tax to the net cash flows 
from operating activities 

Profit after tax 

Non cash items and items dealt with separately: 

- Depreciation and amortisat ion 

- Asset impairment 

- Share of associates' net (profit}/loss 

- Net foreign exchange (gain}/loss 

- Reassessment of contingent consideration - DGN 

- Fair value movement of derivatives not in hedging relationships 

Cash items not included in profit after tax: 

- Dividends received from associates 

Items classified as investing/financing act ivities: 

- ( Profit}/loss on sale of property, plant and equipment 

- Net gain on disposal of subsidiaries and associat es 

Working Capital changes: 

- ( Increase) I decrease in trade receivables and other assets 

- ( Increase) I decrease in inventories 

- (Decrease) I increase in tax provisions 

- (Decrease) I increase in trade and other payables, accruals, provisions and ot her 
liabirn:ies 

Net cash flows from operating activities 

(c) Bank Overdraft Facilities 

The Group has bank overdraft facilities available as follows: 

Bank 

ANZ Banking Group Limited 
Citibank NA 
Royal Bank of Scotland PLC 

2020 

A$20 million 
US$10 million 

£18 million 

2019 

A$20 million 
US$10 million 

£18 million 

As at 30 June 2020 there were no drawn down amounts on the overdraft facilities (2019: nil). 

2020 2019 

m m 

81.9 

275.5 

74.5 

(0.3} 

(0.2} 

1.7 

2.3 

5.9 

(0.1} 

74.9 

(0.5} 

(113.7} 

(75.0) 

326.9 

402.9 

273.6 

48.9 

(13.3} 

(1.3} 

( 48.9} 

(2.3} 

7.4 

(0.2} 

(12.0} 

53.6 

0.6 

116.6 

(47.5) 

778.1 

PAGE 43 



CRW .507 .005.2567 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

22. Events After the Reporting Period 

On 27 July 2020, the inquiry established by the NSW Independent Liquor and Gaming Authority (ILGA) under section 143 of the 
Casino Control Act 1992 {NSW) (Inquiry) recommenced public hearings. [The commissioner appointed to preside over the Inquiry 
has been instructed to report its findings to I LGA by 1 February 2021.] 

23. Contingent Liabilities and Related Matters 

As announced by Crown on 4 December 2017, Maurice Blackburn Lawyers have commenced a class action proceeding against 
Crown in the federal Court of Australia. The proceeding has been filed on behalf of persons who acquired an interest in Crown 
shares between 6 February 2015 and 16 October 2016. Crown has announced that it intends to vigorously defend the 
proceeding. 

In addition to the above matters, entities within the group are defendants from time to time in legal proceedings arising from the 
conduct of their business. The Group does not consider that the outcome of any proceedings ongoing at balance date, either 
individually or in aggregate, is likely to have a material effect on its financial position. Where appropriate, provisions have been 
made. 

The group has no other material contingent liabilities at 30 June 2020. 

24. Auditors' Remuneration 

Fees t o Emst & Young (Australia) for. 

Fees for audlng the statutory mancial report of the parent coverilg the group and 
audtng the statutory mancial reports of any controled enti:ies 

Fees for other servtes: 

• Taxatbn servtes 

·Other 

To t al fees t o Ernst & Young (Australia) 

Fees t o other overseas member firms of Emst & Young (Australia) for: 

Fees for audltlnQ the financial report of any controled ent ities 

Fees for other services: 

• Taxatbn services 

Total fees to overseas member finns of Ernst & Young (Australia) 

Tot al auditor's remuneration 

25. Government Grants 

2020 2019 

$ $ 

1,468,377 1,575,277 

2,479,861 3,567,326 

82 OOO 138 103 

4,030, 23 8 5 ,280,706 

127,583 127,509 

339 453 545 204 

467,036 672,713 

4:497,274 5.953 .419 

During the year, Crown was entitled to government payments relating to employee retention schemes in Australia and the UK as 
a result of COVID-19 totalling $113.9m, the accounting for which is detailed below. Crown has elected to present grants related 
to payroll expenses as a deduction against the related expense in the Statement of Profit or Loss on a systematic basis over the 
periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. 

Under the JobKeeper program, Crown recorded $43.4 million in payroll subsidies which related to the period through to 30 June 
2020 for employees that continued to work for Crown in either a full or partial capacity. The subsidy amount has been 
recognised as a reduction in 'Expenses-Operating activities' in note 2(c) and in the 'Costs incurred during mandated closure' 
detailed in the Segment Note. 

Crown has recorded a further $67.9 million in JobKeeper payments and $2.6 million in Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme {UK) 
payments relating to employees that were stood down during the year. These amounts were paid in their entirety to Crown's 
employees and had no impact on the Statement of Profrt: or Loss. 

At 30 June 2020, the amount receivable to Crown was $50.2 million. 

There are no unfulfilled conditions or cont ingencies attached to these grants. 

PAGE 44 



CRW .507 .005.2568 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

26. Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

2020 2019 

TI1e following reflects the income and share data used in the calculations of basic 
and diluted EPS: 

Net profit I (kiss) after tax used in calculating basic and diluted EPS ($m) 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating basic EPS ('m) 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating diluted EPS ('m) 

79.5 

677.2 

677.2 

401.8 

680.2 

681.0 

During the year ended 30 June 2019, Crown undertook an on-market share buy-back to a value of $131.4 million. Following the 
completion of the buy-back, Crown's shares on issue reduced by approximately 10.3 million to approximately 677.2 million. 

27. Key Management Personnel Disclosures 

(a) Details of key management personnel 

(i) Directors 

The Hon. Helen A Coonan Chair (appointed as Chair on 24 January 2020} 

Professor John S Horvath AO Deputy Chair( appointed as Deputy Chair on 24 January 2020} 

Kenneth M Barton 
John H Alexander 

Andrew Demetriou 

Geoffrey J Dixon 

Jane Halton AO PSM 

Guy Jalland 

Chief Executive Officer (appointed 24 January 2020} & Managing Director (from 3 March 2020} 

Executive Director (Executive Chair until 24 January 2020} 

Michael R Johnston 

Antonia Korsanos 

Harold C Mitchell AC 

John Poynton AO 

(ii) Executives 

Barry Felstead 

Alan McGregor 

W Todd Nisbet 

Non-Executive Director 

Non-Executive Director (resigned 24 October 2019} 

Non-Executive Director 

Non-Executive Director 

Non-Executive Director 

Non-Executive Director 

Non-Executive Director 

Non-Executive Director 

Chief Executive Officer - Australian Resorts 

Chief Financial Officer (appointed 13 March 2020} 

Executive Vice President - Strategy and Development 

(b) Remuneration of key management personnel 

Total remuneration for key management personnel for the Group and Parent Entity during the financial year are set out below: 

2020 
Remuneration by category ;im 

Short term benefits TBA 

Post employment benefits TBA 

Long term incentives TBA 

Further details regarding key management personnel and detailed disclosures of share based payment arrangements are 
contained in the Remuneration Report. 

2019 

;im 

13.0 

0.2 

2.4 

15.6 

PAGE 45 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

28. Related Party Disclosures 

(a) Parent entity 

Crown Resorts Limited is the ultimate parent entity of the Group. 

(b) Controlled entities, associates and joint ventures 

Interests in significant controlled entities are set out in note 29. 

Investments in associates and joint ventures are set out in note 8. 

(c) Entity with significant influence over the Group 

CRW .507 .005.2569 

Based on a substantial shareholder notice dated 11 June 2019 lodged by the Consolidated Press Holdings Group ("CPH"), 
comprising Consolidated Press Holdings Pty Limited and its related corporations, a group related to Mr James Packer, CPH had a 
relevant interest in 249,253,302 of the Company's fully paid ordinary shares at balance date. This equates to 36.81 % of the 
Company's fully paid ordinary shares (2019: 36.81 %} based on the total number of shares on issue at the relevant balance date. 

( d) Key management personnel 

Disclosures relating to key management personnel are set out in note 27, and in the Remuneration Report. 

(e) Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties 

Sales to and purchases from related parties are made in arm's length transactions both at normal market prices and on normal 
commercial terms, unless otherwise stated. 

( f) Transactions with related parties 

The Group had the following transactions with related parties: 

(i) Director related entities and entities with significant influence over the Group 

CPH provided management services in accordance with a Services Agreement, in addition to corporate secretarial and 
administrative services of $1.2 million during the year (2019: $3.5 million). CPH paid costs on behalf of Crown to third parties 
totalling $0.7 million during the year (2019: $1.0 million). At 30 June 2020 there was $0.4 million owing to CPH (2019: $0.4 
million). 

Crown and its controlled entities provided CPH with hotel and banqueting services of $11,000 during the year (2019: 
$12,000). At 30 June 2020 there were no amounts owing from CPH (2019: $nil). 

In line with its commitment to the NSW Government, Crown has ongoing access rights to the golf course and other facilities 
at Ellerston (a property in the Hunter Valley owned by CPH and an entity associated with Ms Gretel Packer). During the 
period Crown paid $1.0 million for the access rights (2019: $1.0 million). 

(ii) Associates 

During the period, Crown paid the Nobu Group $2.2 million (2019: $2.7 million) in license and management fees relating to 
restaurants at Crown Melbourne and Crown Perth. 

PAGE 46 



CRW .507 .005.2570 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

29. Investment in Controlled Entities 

The consolidat ed financial statements include the financial statements of Crown Resorts Limited and its controlled entities. 
Significant controlled entities and those that are party to a Deed of Cross Guarantee with the parent entity are set out below: 

Crown Resorts Limited 
Artra Pty Ltd 
Aspinall's Club Limited 

Betfair Pty Ltd 

Betfair Australasia Pty Ltd 

Burswood Limited 

Burswood Nominees Ltd 

Burswood Resort (Management) Ltd 

Capital Club Pty Ltd 

Club Gaming Pty Ltd 

Crown Asia Investments Pty Ltd 

Crown Australia Pty Ltd 

Crown Capital Golf Pty Ltd 

Crown Cyprus Pty Ltd 

Crown CCR Group Holdings One Pty Ltd 

Crown CCR Group Holdings Two Pty Ltd 

Crown CCR Group Holdings General Partnership 

Crown CCR Group Investments One LLC 

Crown CCR Group Investments Two LLC 

Crown CCR Holdings LLC 

Crown CPS Holdings Pty Ltd 

Crown Digital Holdings Pty Ltd 

Crown Entertainment Group Holdings Pty Ltd 

Crown (Gaming Technology) Holdings Pty Ltd 

Crown Gateway Luxembourg Pty Ltd 

Crown Group Finance Limited 

Crown Group Securities Ltd 

Crown Resorts International Holdings Ltd 

Crown Investment Holdings LLC 

Crown Management Holdings Pty Ltd 

Crown Management Pty Ltd 

Crown Melbourne Limit ed 

Crown North America Holdings One Pty Ltd 

Crown North America Investments LLC 

Crown Overseas Investments Pty Ltd 

Crown Queensbridge Development Pty Ltd 

Crown Queensbridge Holdings Pty Ltd 

Crown Queensbridge Property (Hot el) Pty Ltd 
Crown Queensbridge Property (Residential) Pty Ltd 

Crown Queensbridge Nominees One Pty Ltd 

Crown Queensbridge Nominees Two Pty Ltd 

Crown Sydney Pty Ltd 

Crown Sydney Gaming Pty Ltd 

Footnote 
2020 

A 
A 
A 
A 
A 

A 
A 

A 

A 
A 
A 

A 
A 

A 
A 
A 

A 

2019 

A 
A 
A 
A 
A 

A 
A 

A 

A 
A 
A 

A 
A 

A 
A 
A 

A 

Country of 
Incorporation 

Australia 
Australia 

United Kingdom 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

USA 

USA 

USA 

USA 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Bahamas 

USA 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

USA 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Australia 

Beneficial Interest 
Held by the 

Consolidated Entity<•> 

2020 2019 
O/o O/o 

Parent Entity 
100 100 
100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 

100 

100 100 

100 100 

PAGE 47 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

29. Investment in Controlled Entities co11ti11ue<1 

Country of 
Footnote Incorporation 

2020 2019 

Crown Sydney Holdings Pty Ltd A A Australia 

Crown Sydney Property Pty Ltd A A Australia 

Crown Training Pty Ltd Australia 

Crown US Investments LLC USA 

Crown UK I nvestments Lt d United Kingdom 

Crown (Western Australia) Pty Ltd A A Australia 

Crown (Western Australia) Finance Holdings Pty Ltd A A Australia 

Crown (Western Australia) Finance Pty Ltd A A Australia 

DGN Games LLC USA 

Flienn Pty Ltd Australia 

Gender fitness Pty Ltd Australia 

Jade West Entertainment Pty Ltd Australia 

Jemtex Pty Ltd A A Australia 

Melbourne Golf Academy Pty Ltd Australia 

PBL Overseas (0) Pty Ltd A A Australia 

PBL (Cl) Finance Pty Ltd Australia 

Pennwin Pty Ltd Australia 

Publishing and Broadcast ing (finance) Ltd A A Australia 

Renga Pty Ltd Australia 

Royal Gaming Pty Ltd Australia 

Sociologic Games Limited Israel 

(1) The proportion of ownership interest is equal to the proportion of voting power held. 

CRW.507.005.2571 

Beneficial Interest 
Held by the 

Consolidated Entity<•> 

2020 2019 
O/o O/o 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

85 85 
100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

100 100 

85 85 

A These controlled entities have entered into a deed of cross guarantee dated 21 June 2017 with the parent entity under ASIC Instrument 
2016/785 - the "Closed Group" (refer note 30). 

PAGE 48 



CRW .507 .005.2572 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

30. Deed of Cross Guarantee 

Crown Resorts Limited and certain controlled ent ities, as detailed in note 29, are parties to a Deed of Cross Guarantee dated 21 
June 2017 under which each company in the Oosed Group guarantees the payment in full of all debts of the other entities in the 
Closed Group in the event of their winding up. 

By entering into the Deed, pursuant to ASI C Instrument 2016/785, certain controlled entities of Crown have been granted relief 
from the Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit and reporting of financial reports and directors' reports. 

The consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Financial Position of the entities which are members of the Closed 
Group are detailed below. 

Consolidated Stat ement of Profit or Loss 

Profit I (loss) before income tax 

Income tax {expense) I benefit 

Net profit I {loss) after income tax 

Retained earnings/ (accumulated losses) at t he beginning of the f111ancial year 

Adopti>n of AASB 16 Leases 

Dividends provided for or paid 

Retained eamings I {accumulated losses) at the end o f the financial year 

Closed Grou 

2020 

$m 

432.5 

(83.0) 

349.5 

5,040.0 

(15.6) 

(406.2) 

4 ,967.7 

2019 

$m 

544.0 

(174.0) 

370.0 

5,079.0 

(409.0) 

5 ,040.0 

PAGE 49 



CRW .507 .005.2573 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

30. Deed of Cross Guarantee continued 

Closed Grou 

2020 2019 
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position im ~ Ill 

Current asset s 

Cash and cash equivalents 271.3 1,073.2 

Trade and other receivables 77.3 53.0 

Inventories 16.2 15.8 

Prepayments 41.0 34.8 

Other financial assets 5.5 

Total current asset s 405.8 1182.3 

Non-a 1rrent assets 

Receivables 848.1 896.3 

Other financial assets 1,692.0 1,835.0 

Investment ii associates 54.1 54.5 

Property, plant and equipment 4,658.4 4,154.8 

Intangible assets - icences 947.3 964.0 

Other ntangible assets 303.3 310.9 

Deferred tax assets 155.9 155.4 

Other assets 48.8 48.8 

Total non-current assets 8 707.9 8 419.7 

Total asset s 9 113.7 9 602.0 

Current liabilit ies 

Trade and other payables 398.2 402.6 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowngs 5.9 287.6 

Income tax payable 48.1 153.6 

Provisions 195.6 172.3 

Other financial liab~ities 2.4 

Total a 1rrent liabilities 650.2 1.016.1 

Non-curre nt liab ilities 

Other payables 172.3 245.6 

Interest-bearing loans and borrowngs 1,371.1 1,348.7 

Deferred tax liabiity 403.7 399.8 

Provisions 27.0 24.3 

Other financial iabiities 4.5 

Total non-airrent liabilities 1974.1 2 022.9 

Total liabilities 2 624.3 3 039.0 

Net asset s 6 489.4 6 563.0 

Equity 

Contributed equity 1,480.0 1,480.0 

Reserves 41.7 43.0 

Retailed eamngs 4 ,967.7 5,040.0 

Total ~uitl 6,489.4 6,563 .0 

PAGE 50 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

31. Parent Entity Disclosures 

Results of the parent entity 

Profit after tax for the period 

Ot her comprehensive income/Closs) 

Total comprehensive income for the period 

Rnancial position of the parent entity 

Current assets 

Non,urrent assets 

Total assets 

Current liabaities 

Non,urrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Total equity of the parent entity comprising of: 

Issued capital 

Employee equity benefits reserve 

Accumulated profits/(losses) 

Total equity 

Contingent liabilities 

CRW .507 .005.257 4 

Crown Resorts Limited 

2020 

$m 

564.5 

564.5 

17.2 

14 416.4 

14 433.6 

110.5 

5 004.1 

5, 114.6 

9,277.1 

13.0 

28.9 

9 319.0 

2019 

$m 

410.7 

410.7 

35.7 

14 253.6 

14 289.3 

236.8 

4 891.7 

5,128.5 

9,277.1 

13.0 

(129.3) 

9 160.8 

There are no other contingent liabilities for the parent entity at 30 June 2020 (2019: $nil), other than those disclosed in note 23. 

Capital expenditure 

The parent entity does not have any capital expenditure commitments for the acquisit ion of property, plant and equipment 
contracted but not provided for at 30 June 2020 (2019: $nil). 

Parent entity guarantees in respect of debts of its subsidiaries 

The parent entity has entered into a deed of cross guarantee as well as bank and capital market debt facilities with the effect that 
the Company guarantees debts in respect of its subsidiaries. Further details of the deed of cross guarantee and the subsidiaries 
subject to the deed, are set out in notes 29 and 30 and further details on bank and capital market debt facilities are set out in 
note 16. 

PAGE 51 



CRW.507.005.2575 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies 

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise receivables, payables, bank loans, capital market debt, cash and short term 
deposits and derivatives. 

The Group's business activities expose it to the following risks; market risks (interest rate, share price and foreign exchange), 
credit risk and liquidity risk. For each of these risks, the Group considers the counterparties, geographical area, currency and 
markets as applicable to determine whether there are concentrations of risk. Other than as described in this note, the Group is 
satisfied that there are no material concentrations of risk. 

The Group has policies in place to manage different types of risks to which it is exposed. Policies include monitoring the level of 
interest rate and foreign exchange risk and assessments of market forecasts for interest rates and foreign exchange rates. 
Ageing analysis of and monitoring of exposures to counterparties is undertaken to manage credit risk. Liquidity risk is monitored 
through the employment of rolling cash flow forecasts. 

Financial risk management is carried out under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Group identifies, evaluates and 
hedges financial risks in accordance with approved polices. The Board is informed on a regular basis of risk management 
activities. 

(a) Market Risk 

(i) Interest rate risk - cash flow 

The Group's exposure to market interest rates relates primarily to the Group's cash and cash equivalents and long term debt 
obligations as outlined in note 16. 

At balance date, the Group had the following mix of financial assets and liabilities exposed to variable interest rates that are not 
designated as cash flow hedges. 

2020 2019 

!im !im 

Rnancial assets 

AUD cash on hand and at bank 96.8 206.6 

AUD deposits at call 126.7 711.6 

GBP cash on hand and at bank 4.9 33.5 

USD cash on hand and at bank 8.2 38.5 

USD deE?OsitS at call 1.9 1.9 

Total financial assets 238.5 992.1 

Rnancial liabilities 

AUD bank loans 280.0 20.0 

AUD capital market debt 4 15.7 415.4 

HKD bank loans 8.5 

Total financial liabilities 695.7 443.9 

Net ex~osure '457.2l 548.2 

As at balance date, the Group maintained floating rate liabilities of $695.7 million {2019: $443.9 million) that were not hedged by 
interest rate swaps. The associated interest rate risk is partially mitigated by total financial assets of $238.5 million {2019: $992.1 
million). Under the AUD financial liabilities outstanding the Group pays the Bank Bill Swap rate {BBSW) plus a margin of between 
200 and 400 basis points. 

Of the AUD cash on hand and at bank $96.8 million is interest bearing and is invested at approximately BBSW. Deposits at call of 
$126.7 million are invested at BBSW plus a margin of between 30 and 90 basis points. The Group maintains cash and cash 
equivalents on hand of $48.4 million for operational purposes and is non interest bearing {2019: $133.9 million). 

As at balance date, the Group had GBP cash on hand and at bank of $4.9 million which is interest bearing and accrues at the UK 
daily cash rate {2019: $33.5 million). The Group had no floating rate borrowings in GBP {2019: nil). 

PAGE 52 



CRW .507 .005.2576 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies continued 

(a) Market Risk co11ti11ued 

( i ) Interest rate risk - cash flow co11ti11ued 

As at balance date, the Group had no floating rate borrowings in HKO (2019: $8.S million) and had minimal interest earning cash 
and cash equivalents (2018: minimal). 

As at balance date, the Group had USD cash on hand and at bank of $8.2 million which is interest bearing and is invested at 
approximately US UBOR (2019: $38.S million). I n addition, the Group had USO deposits at call of $1.9 million, which is invested 
at approximately US UBOR (2019: $1.9 million). The Group maintained no floating rate borrowings in USO (2019: $nil). 

Group Sensit ivity 

As a result of an increase in interest rates of SO basis points the Group's post-tax-profit for the year would have decreased by 
$1.6 million (2019: increased by $1.9 million). As a result of a decrease in interest rates to zero (between 10 basis points and 30 
basis points) and the Group's post-tax-profit for the year would have increased by $0.S million (2019: a decrease in interest rates 
of SO basis points resulting in an decrease in profit of $1.9 million). 

The Group, where appropriate, uses interest rate swaps to manage the risk of adverse movements in interest rates for its long 
term floating rate borrowings which are subject to variable rates. 

The Group uses cross-currency interest rate swaps to manage the risk of adverse movements in interest rates for its long term 
foreign currency denominated borrowings which are subject to variable rates. 

As at balance date the notional principal amounts and period of expiry of the interest rate swap contracts were as follows: 

2020 2019 

m 

Cash flow hedge 

Maturity under 1 year 200.0 

Maturity 1 -S years 200.0 

Maturitx over S xears 174.6 174.6 

Closing Balance 3 74.6 374.6 

As at balance date the key terms of the interest rate swap contracts were as follows: 

Fair Value of 

Interest Rate Interest Rate Swa1J Contract 

Hedge Txpe Maturitx Date Received Paid !m 
Year Ended 3 0 June 2020 

Interest Rate Swap Contract December 2020 BBSW 2.SS% (2.4) 

Cross Currency Swap Contract June 2036 USO 4.91% AUD 7.0S% 29.3 

Year Ended 30 June 2019 

Interest Rate Swap Contract December 2020 BBSW 2.SS% (4.S) 

Cross Currency Swap Contract June 2036 US04.91% AUD 7.0S% 3S.3 

The terms of each of the swap contracts are matched directly against the appropriate loan and interest expense and as such are 
highly effective. 

( ii) I nterest rate risk - fair value 

Where appropriate, the Group enters into f1Xed rate debt to mitigate exposure to interest rate risk. As the Group holds fixed rate 
debt there is a risk that the fair value of financial instruments will fluctuate because of market movements in interest rates. The 
level of fixed rate debt at balance date was $37S.7 million (2019: $634.8 million). The Group pays between 6.S% and 8.S% 
(2019: 4.S% and 8.S%) on fixed rate debt. As at balance date, the carrying amounts of the Group's fixed rate debt were not 
materially different from the fair values (2019: not material). 

As at balance date the Group had no interest rate swaps in place to hedge fixed rate debt issuances (2019: nil). 

PAGE 53 



CRW .507 .005.2577 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies amti,,ued 

(a) Market Risk CDfltiflued 

( iii) Foreign exd1ange risk 

The Group has currency exposure as a result of capital expenditure and investments/sales in currencies other than the functional 
currency of the relevant entity. 

The Group uses foiward exchange contracts and cash flow hedges to minimise the currency exposure on any significant 
receivables or payables as is deemed appropriate. 

All foiward exchange contracts must be in the same currency as the firm commitment and the Group negotiates the terms of the 
hedges to exactly match the underlying commitment to maximise hedge effectiveness. As at balance date, the Group had the 
following material foreign exchange exposures that were not designated as cash flow hedges: 

USO Exposure 

Financial asset s 

cash and cash equivalents 

Total financial assets 

Net exposure 

GBP Exposure 

Financial assets 

cash and cash equivalents 

Total financial assets 

Financial liabilities 

Trade and other payables 

Total financial liabilities 

Net exposure 

HKD Ex1Josure 

Financial assets 

cash and cash equivalents 

Trade and other receivables 

Total financial assets 

Financial liabilit ies 

Trade and other payables 

HKD Debt Faclties 

Total financial liabilities 

Net exposure 

202ol 

$111 

4.2 

4.2 

4.2 

2020 

$111 

5.7 

5.7 

5.1 

5.1 

0.6 

2020 

$111 

4.4 

2.4 

6.8 

1.4 

1.4 

5.4 

2019 

$111 

13.4 

13 .4 

13.4 

2019 

$ 111 

9.4 

9.4 

9.4 

2019 

$111 

14.3 

27.6 

41.9 

23.0 

8.5 

31.5 

10.4 

PAGE 54 



CRW .507 .005.2578 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies continued 
(a) Market Risk continued 
(iii) Foreign exchange risk continued 

Group sensitivity 

Based on the financial instruments held at balance date, the sensitivity to fair value movements through profit and loss and other 
comprehensive income as a result of reasonably possible changes in exchange rates are as follows: 

AUD/USO +10 cents (2019: +10 cents) 

AUD/USO -10 cents (2019: -10 cents) 

AUD/GBP +scents (2019: +scents) 

AUD/GBP -S cents (2019: -S cents) 

AUD/HKD +so cents (2019: +so cents) 

AUD/HKD -SO cents (2019: -SO cents) 

Net profit after tax 

hiqher/(lower) 

2020 2019 

$111 $111 

(O.S) (1.7) 

0.7 2.2 

(0.8) 

0.1 0.9 

(O.S) (0.9) 

0.6 1.0 

Other comprehensive 

income hiqher/(lower) 

2020 2019 

$111 $111 

The Group uses derivative instruments such as forward exchange contracts to manage the currency risks arising from the Group's 
operations and its sources of finance. 

Derivatives are exclusively used for hedging purposes and not as trading or other speculative instruments. These derivatives 
qualify for hedge accounting and are based on limits set by the Board. 

Cash flow hedges 

At balance date the Group had no cash flow hedges in relation to foreign exchange contracts. 

Buy USO/Sell AUD 

Maturity under 1 year 

Closing Balance 

(b) Price Risk 

(i) Equity Securities Price Risk 

Notional Amounts 

2020 2019 

Ill Ill 

30.4 

30.4 

Average Rate 

2020 2019 

n/a 0.8290 

In December 2018, Crown entered into a derivative instrument to hedge its exposure under the 2017 Senior Execut ive Incentive 
Plan. This hedge does not qualify for hedge accounting and therefore has not been designated in a hedge accounting 
relationship. At inception the derivative asset was valued at $4.0 million, with the value of the instrument reduced to $2.3 million 
at 30 June 2019. At 30 June 2020 the value of the instrument was reduced to nil, a loss of $2.3 million in the current period. 
This unrealised loss in relation to the derivative instrument was included in the Statement of Profit or Loss. 

The fair value of the instrument is sensitive to movements in the current and forecast share price for Crown Resorts with any 
further movements in fair value to be included in the Statement of Profit or Loss in future periods. 

(ii) Commodity Price Risk 

Neither the Group nor the parent entity is exposed to commodity price risk. 

PAGE 55 



CRW .507 .005.2579 

FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies continued 
(c) Credit Risk 

Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables 
and derivative instruments. The Group's exposure to credit risk arises from the potential default of the counterparty, with a 
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments. Exposure at balance date is outlined under each 
applicable note. 

The Group does not hold any credit derivatives or collateral to offset its credit exposure. 

All investment and financial instruments activity is with approved counterparties with investment grade ratings and is in 
accordance with approved policies. There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the Group and the aggregate value 
of transactions is spread amongst a number of financial institutions to minimise the risk of default of counterparties. 

Credit risk in t rade receivables is managed in the following ways: 

(i) The provision of credit is covered by a risk assessment process for all customers. 

(ii) Concentrations of credit risk are minimised by undertaking transactions with a large number of customers. 

(iii) The provision of cheque-cashing facilities for gaming patrons is subject to detailed policies and procedures designed to 
minimise any potential loss, including the taking up of bank opinions and the use of a central credit agency which collates 
information from major casinos around the world. 

In assessing the doubtful debts provisioning for trade receivables, the Group has measured credit risk using the 'Simplified 
Approach'. The Simplified Approach requires the recognition of lifetime expected credit losses at all times. The Group has elected 
to use a provision matrix utilising historical default rates, as well as taking into account current conditions and forecasts of future 
economic conditions. If the Group becomes aware of circumstances relevant to an individual or group of debtors that results in 
the matrix not being an appropriate basis for provisioning, then management discretion will be applied. 

(d) Liquidity Risk 

It is the Group's objective to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of cash reserves, 
committed bank lines and capital markets debt in order to meet its financial commitments in a timely manner. 

At balance date 0.7% or $8.2 million of the Group's interest bearing liabilities will mature in less than 12 months (2019: 26.7% or 
$287.6 million). 

As at balance date the Group had $401.3 million in undrawn committed bank lines and $286.9 million in cash and cash 
equivalents to mitigate the maturing liabilities (2019: $200.4 million and $1,126.0 million respectively) . 

Maturity analysis of financial assets and liabilities 

The table below analyses the Group's contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial assets and financial liabilities, net and 
gross settled derivative financial instruments into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at balance date to 
the contractual maturity date. 

1 r:ear or &ess 1 to 5 r:ears more than 5 r:ears Total 

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 

im ~111 i m im im im im ~m 

Financial assets 

cash and cash equivalents 286.9 1, 126.0 286.9 1, 126.0 

Receivables · trade 111.2 98.7 18.4 111.2 117.1 

Receivables · other 139.4 139.4 

Cross currenc~ h terest rate swaes receWabie 9.0 8.8 35.9 35.3 98.8 106.0 143.7 150.1 

Total financial assets 407.1 11233.5 35.9 193.1 98.8 106.0 5 41.8 1,532.6 

Financial liabilities 

Trade and other payables 426.5 433.1 87.5 172.3 167.6 598.8 688.2 

Lease liabf~ies 7.2 12.6 38.9 58.7 

rnher loan labiiies 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0 

C.plal mar1<ets 259.1 790.3 790.0 790.3 1,049.1 

Sank bans 28.5 280.0 280.0 28.5 

Int erest rate swaps payable 2.2 2.7 1.2 2.2 3 .9 

Cross currenc~ h terest rate swaes e:!l:able 12.3 12.3 49.2 49.2 135.4 147.7 196.9 209.2 

Total financial liabilities 449.2 735.7 341.8 138.9 1,136.9 1,105.3 1,927.9 1,979.9 

Net maturity (42.1) 497.8 (305.9) 54.2 (1,038.1) (999.3) (1,386.1) (447.3) 

PAGE 56 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies continued 
(e) Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial liabilities approximates the carrying value as at balance date. 

The Group uses various methods in estimat ing the fair value of a financial instrument. The methods comprise: 

Level One - the fair value is calculated using quoted prices in active markets; 

CRW .507 .005.2580 

Level Two - the fair value is estimated using inputs other than quoted prices included in Level One that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and 

Level Three - the fair value is estimated using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data, 
including cash flow forecasts, implied growth rates and implied discount rates. 

The fair value of the financial instruments as well as the methods used to estimate the fair value are summarised in the table 
below. 

Year ended 30 June 2020 

Financial A ssets 

Cross currency swap contracts 

Financial Liabifrt:ies 

Contingent consideration 

Interest rate swap contracts 

Year ended 30 June 2019 

Financial A ssets 

Foreign exchange contracts 

2017 Senior Executive Incentive Plan Hedge 

Cross currency swap contracts 

Financial Liabifrt:ies 

Contingent consideration 

Interest rate swap contracts 

Quoted 
market price 

Level One 

$111 

Va luation Ted mique 

Observable l'bn market 
inputs observable 

Level Two Level Three 

$111 

29.3 

29.3 

2.4 

2.4 

5.5 

2.3 

35.2 

43.0 

4.5 
4.5 

$m 

2.4 

2.4 

0.7 

0.7 

There have been no transfers between fair value measurement levels during the financial year ended 30 June 2020. 

Total 

$m 

29.3 

29.3 

2.4 

2.4 

4.8 

5.5 

2.3 

35.2 

43.0 

0.7 

4.5 
5.2 

PAGE 57 



FINANCIAL REPORT 2020 continued 

Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

32. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies co11ti1111ed 

(e) Fair Value of Financial Instruments co11ti1111ed 

Reconciliation of Level Three fair value movements 

Rnancial Liabilities 

Opening balance 

Profit and Los.s 

Other Comprehensive Income 

Closinq Balance - Rnancial Liabilities 

(f) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities 

capital 
Markets Lease 

Bank Loans Debt Liabilities 

$m $m $m 

Year ended 30 June 2020 

At 1 July 2018 28.5 1,049.1 

AdoptK>n of AASB16 54.5 

cash flows 251.9 {259.1) (6.5) 

Foreign exchange variations (0.4) (0.1) 

Movement in fair value 

Other 0.3 10.8 

At 30 June 2020 280.0 790.3 58.7 

Year ended 30 June 2019 

At 1 July 2018 54.6 1,437.1 

cash flows (27.3) (397.7) 

Foreign exchange variat ions 1.2 

Movement in fair value 

Other 9.7 

At 30 June 2019 28.5 1,049.1 

other 
Loans 

$m 

1.0 

1.0 

1.0 

1.0 

2020 

$111 

0.7 

1.7 

2.4 

Derivatives 

$m 

4.5 

CRW .507 .005.2581 

2019 

$m 

47.0 

{48.9) 

2.6 

0.7 

Total 
Liabilities 

from 
Financing 
Activities 

$m 

1,083.1 

54.5 

(13.7) 

(0.5) 

(2.1) (2.1) 

2.4 

2.1 

2.4 

4.5 

11.1 

1,132.4 

1,494.8 

( 425.0) 

1.2 

2.4 

9.7 

1,083.1 

PAGE 58 



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee
Final Dividend 12 August 2020

Dividend Policy

Crown’s dividend policy is 60 cents per share on a full year basis, subject to the company’s 
financial position.  The annual dividend amount will be paid evenly between the interim and final 
dividends.

Recommendation

Having regard to the impact on Crown’s businesses from the mandatory closures and the 
uncertainty surrounding the resumption of trading at Crown Melbourne, Management is 
recommending to not declare a final dividend on ordinary shares. 

The F20 dividend summary is as follows:

Cents per share Shares on issue Payment

Interim dividend 30.0 677,158,271 203,147,481$ 

Final dividend proposed 0.0 677,158,271 -$               

Total dividend 30.0 203,147,481$ 

Availability of Franking Credits for Crown Dividends

Whilst no dividend is recommended for the current period, Crown’s franking credits balance 
available for future dividends is as follows:

Franking credits $m

The amount of franking credits available for the subsequent financial year:

Franking account balance as at the end of the financial year at 30% 1.0

Franking credits that will arise from the payment of income taxes payable as at the 

end of the financial year 48.0

Total franking credits available for future reporting periods 49.0

Conduit Foreign Income

Not applicable.

3.3

CRW.507.005.2582



Crown Resorts Limited Audit Committee
Final Dividend 12 August 2020

DIVIDEND HISTORY 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008

ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL

NTERIM DIVDEND PER SHARE 30.0c 30.0c 30 0c 30.0c 33.0c 18.0c 18 0c 18.0c 18.0c 18 0c 18 0c 18.0c 25.0c

COST $M 203.1 203.1 206.7 218.5 240.4 131.1 131.1 131.1 131.1 136.5 136.5 136 5 169 5

% OF FULL YEAR NORMALISED PROFIT AFTER TAX * 239% 56% 54% 60% 46% 31% 35% 41% 41% 42% 47% 49% 46%

SPECIAL DIVIDEND PER SHARE 83.0c

COST $M 604.6

F NAL DIV DEND PER SHARE 0 0c 30.0c 30 0c 30.0c 39.5c 19.0c 19 0c 19.0c 19.0c 19 0c 19 0c 19.0c 29.0c

COST $M 0.0 203.1 206.2 206.7 287.7 138.4 138.4 138.4 138.4 144.1 144.1 144.1 196.7

% OF FULL YEAR NORMALISED PROFIT AFTER TAX * 0% 56% 54% 57% 55% 33% 37% 43% 43% 45% 50% 51% 53%

TOTAL COST $M 203.1 406 3 412.9 1,029.7 528.1 269.5 269.5 269 5 269 5 280.6 280.6 280 6 366 2

TOTAL DIVIDEND - cents per share 30.0c 60.0c 60 0c 143 0c 72.5c 37.0c 37 0c 37.0c 37.0c 37 0c 37 0c 37.0c 54.0c

NORMALISED PROFIT AFTER TAX* 84.9 362 8 384.9 365.6 527 8 416.8 377.9 322 3 319 8 323.6 288.4 280.7 370.1

%  DISTR BUTED (excluding special dividend) 116%

%  DISTR BUTED 239% 112% 107% 282% 100% 65% 71% 84% 84% 87% 97% 100% 99%

*For financial years 2008 to 2010 NPAT includes profit from associates

 For financial years 2011 to 2013 NPAT excludes profit from associates

 For financial years 2014 onwards NPAT excludes profit from associates and includes dividends received from associates 

 For financial year 2020 NPAT includes costs incurred during mandated closure

3.3

CRW.507.005.2583



Audit & Corporate Governance Committee
Memorandum

To: Audit & Corporate Governance Committee

From: Alan McGregor 

Date: 7 August 2020

Subject: Assurance from Associates

Dear Committee Members

Attached to this paper are signed Assurance Certificates from Aspers and Nobu.

We have a number of other associates that are either dormant or are not reporting any profits for which 
we have not requested Assurance Certificates, including Chill Gaming.  An Assurance Certificate will be 
sought from Chill Gaming when it starts reporting a profit.

Kind regards

Alan McGregor
Chief Financial Officer

3.4

CRW.507.005.2584



AS PERS 

17 July 2020 

The Directors 
Crown Resorts Limited 
Level 3, Crown Towers 
8 Whiteman Street 
SOuthbank VIC 3006 
Australia 

Oear Directors 

Corporate Governance 

This letter has been prepared at your request as part of your Corporate Governanoe 
procedures. We acknowledge that Aspers UK Holdings Limited (u Aspers#) is an Associate of 
Crown Resorts Limited ("Crown•) and accordingly, the results of Aspers are reflected in 
Crown's financial results to the extent of Crown's ownership interest. 

Financial Reporting 

1. We have reviewed the monthly management accounts (u Accounts") for the year ended 
30 June 2020 for Aspers. 

2. With regard to the integrity of the Acoounts: 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

the Accounts comply in all material respects with the accounting standards as 
required by UK law, other than certain adjustments to be made in the statutory 
aocounts of Aspers; 

the Accounts give a true and fair view, in all material respect$, of the financial 
position as at 30 June 2020 and performance of Aspers for the year then ended; 
and 

all information has been provided to Crown through Aspers Board meetings 
and associated papers which would allow the CEO and CFO of Crown to make 
the judgment as to whether Aspers will be able to pay its debts as and when 
they become due and payable. 

3. With regard to t he financial records and systems of risk management and Internal 
compliance and control for the year ended 30 June 2020: 

(a) the financial records of Aspers have been properly maintained in accordance 
UK law; 

A\rt IL\ LIK llOLOING~ LIMIHD I llANS STREET LONDON ~\VIX OID 
T .4-110120 7235 27"8 F .-H 40>20 723S 7330 WWWASPERS CO.UK COMPANY NO. 0?262Q.42 

CRW .507 .005.2585 



 2 

 
(b) the statements made in 2 above regarding the integrity of the Accounts are 

founded on a sound system of risk management and internal compliance and 
control which, in all material respects, implements the policies adopted by 
Aspers Board of Directors; 

 
(c) the risk management and internal compliance and controls system of Aspers 

were operating efficiently and effectively in all material respects during the 
year ended 30 June 2020; and 

 
(d) subsequent to 30 June 2020, no changes or other matters have come to our 

attention that would have material effect on the operation of risk management 
and internal compliance and control systems of Aspers. 

 
4. We will advise Crown Management of any adjustments to the results presented in the 

Accounts as they occur. 
 
Internal Controls and Procedures 
 
5. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial control and 

procedures at Aspers and we have:  
 

(a) either designed such controls and procedures or caused controls and 
procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material 
information is made known to us, particularly during the period in which the 
Accounts have been prepared; 

 
(b) evaluated the effectiveness of Aspers’ internal controls and procedures as of 

the end of the period covered by the Accounts; and 
 

(c) we believe, based on this evaluation, that the controls and procedures are 
operating effectively in all material respects. 

 
6. Based on our most recent evaluation, there: 
 

(a) have not been any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the design 
or operation of internal controls over financial reporting during the year ended 
30 June 2020 which are reasonably likely to adversely affect Aspers’ ability to 
record, process, summarise and report financial information; and 

 
(b) has not been any fraud, to our knowledge during the year ended 30 June 2020, 

whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who 
have a significant role in the Aspers internal controls. 

 
7. There were no changes in Aspers’ internal controls over financial reporting that 

occurred during the year covered by this report that have materially affected, or is 
reasonably likely to materially affect Aspers’ internal controls over financial reporting. 

 

3.4

CRW.507.005.2586



 3 

Risk Management 
 
8. At Aspers: 
 

(a) appropriate processes and responsibilities for identifying, managing and 
reporting material business risks have been established and operated 
throughout the year to 30 June 2020; and 
 

(b) appropriate steps have been taken to review the effectiveness of Aspers’ risk 
management and internal control system and we confirm no material 
weaknesses have been identified. 

 
9. The following HIGH RATED risks have been identified at Aspers: 

 
(a) Gaming Integrity;  
 
(b) Anti-Money Laundering; and 

 
(c) Responsible Gambling / Safeguarding of Customers. 

 
(d) Financing, trading and liquidity risks in regard to the COVID-19 pandemic 

 
10. Policies and procedures around HIGH RATED risk areas are continuously monitored to 

minimise our exposures.   
 
Occupational Health and Safety 
 
11. At Aspers, the oversight of the health and safety of employees, contractors and 

customers (Occupational Health and Safety or OHS) including: 
 

(a) provision of a safe workplace through identification and mitigation of OHS 
risks; 

 
(b) maintaining an effective incident reporting and investigation process; 
 
(c) maintaining an effective Workers’ Compensation claims management and 

return to work process; 
 
(d) maintaining an effective OHS induction and on-going training program; 
 
(e) ensuring appropriate staff consultation on OHS matters via an OHS committee 

and/or through other means; and 
 
(f) undertaking an annual review of the effectiveness of the OHS management 

system through analysis of available data (eg incident and hazard report data 
and compliance audit results) and to use this to drive continuous improvement 
in OHS performance, 

 
is the responsibility of local General Managers, with additional oversight through 
monthly senior manager meetings and a quarterly executive review meeting. 
 

3.4

CRW.507.005.2587



4 

12. Effective plans and controls to address OHS risks have been implemented and Aspers 
complies with relevant OHS laws. 

Yours sincerely 

JOA Aspinall 
Director 
For and on behalf of Aspers UK 
Holdings Ltd 

o e 
Director 
For and on behalf of Aspers UK 
Holdings Ltd 

CRW.507.005.2588 



Nobu Restaurant Group LLC / Nobu Hospitality LLC 
40 West 57th Street, Suite 320, New York, NY 10019 
www.noburestaurants.com 

 

 
 
 
 
1 August 2020 
 
The Directors 
Crown Resorts Limited 
Level 3, Crown Towers 
8 Whiteman Street 
Southbank  VIC  3006 
Australia 
 
 
Dear Directors 
 
Corporate Governance 
 
This letter has been prepared at your request as part of your Corporate Governance procedures.  
We acknowledge that Nobu Hospitality, LLC and Nobu Restaurant Group Holding Company, LLC 
together  with  their  subsidiaries  (“Nobu  Group”)  are  associates  of  Crown Resorts  Limited 
(“Crown”)  and  accordingly,  the  results  of  the Nobu Group  are  reflected  in  Crown’s  financial 
results to the extent of Crown’s ownership interest. 
 
Financial Reporting 
 
1) We  have  reviewed  the monthly management  accounts  (“Accounts”)  for  the  half  year 

ended 30 June 2020 for the Nobu Group. 
 
2) With regard to the integrity of the Accounts: 
 

(a) the Accounts  comply  in  all material  respects with  the  accounting  standards  as 
required by US  law, other than certain adjustments to be made  in the statutory 
accounts of the Nobu Group; and 

 
(b) the Accounts give a  true and  fair view,  in all material  respects, of  the  financial 

position as at 30  June 2020 and performance of Nobu Group  for  the half  year 
then ended. 

 
3) With regard to the financial records and systems of risk management and internal 

compliance and control for the half year ended 30 June 2020: 
 
a) the  financial  records  of  the  Nobu  Group  have  been  properly  maintained  in 

accordance with US law; 
 

3.4

CRW.507.005.2589



2 | P a g e  
 

 

b) the  statements made  in  2  above  regarding  the  integrity  of  the  Accounts  are 
founded  on  a  sound  system  of  risk management  and  internal  compliance  and 
control which,  in all material  respects,  implements  the policies adopted by  the 
Nobu Group’s Board of Directors; 

 
c) the risk management and  internal compliance and controls system of  the Nobu 

Group were operating  efficiently  and  effectively  in  all material  respects during 
the half  year ended 30  June 2020, despite a  significant  reduction  in workforce 
due  to  COVID‐19  and  the  related  government mandates  that  have  negatively 
impacted hotel and restaurant operations worldwide; and 

 
(c) subsequent  to  30  June  2020,  no  changes  or  other matters  have  come  to  our 

attention that would have material effect on the operation of risk management 
and internal compliance and control systems of the Nobu Group. 

 
4) We will advise Crown Management of any adjustments  to  the  results presented  in  the 

Accounts as they occur. 
 
Internal Controls and Procedures 
 
5) We  are  responsible  for  establishing  and  maintaining  internal  financial  control  and 

procedures at the Nobu Group and we have:  
 

a) either designed such controls and procedures or caused controls and procedures 
to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information is made 
known  to  us,  particularly  during  the  period  in which  the  Accounts  have  been 
prepared; 

 
b) evaluated the effectiveness of the Nobu Group’s internal controls and procedures 

as of the end of the period covered by the Accounts; and 
 

c) we  believe,  based  on  this  evaluation,  that  the  controls  and  procedures  are 
operating effectively in all material respects. 

 
6) Based on our most recent evaluation, there: 
 

(a) have not been any significant deficiencies or material weaknesses in the design or 
operation of internal controls over financial reporting during the half year ended 
30  June 2020 which are  reasonably  likely  to adversely affect  the Nobu Group’s 
ability to record, process, summarise and report financial information; and 

 
(b) has not been any  fraud,  to our knowledge during  the half year ended 30  June 

2020, whether or not material,  that  involves management or other employees 
who have a significant role in the Nobu Group’s internal controls. 

 
7) There were no changes in the Nobu Group’s internal controls over financial reporting that 

occurred during the half year covered by this report that have materially affected, or are 

3.4

CRW.507.005.2590



3 | P a g e  
 

 

reasonably  likely  to materially affect,  the Nobu Group’s  internal  controls over  financial 
reporting. 

 
Risk Management 
 
8) At the Nobu Group: 
 

(a) appropriate processes and responsibilities for identifying, managing and 
reporting material business risks have been established and operated throughout 
the half year to 30 June 2020; and 
 

(b) appropriate steps have been taken to review the effectiveness of the Nobu 
Group’s risk management and internal control system and we confirm no 
material weaknesses have been identified. 

 
9) The following HIGH RATED risks have been identified at the Nobu Group: 

 
Labor 
 

 We  continue  to monitor  employees  for  Covid‐19  infections  and  require  infected 
employees  to quarantine  for  two weeks. Employees exposed  to  infected  staff are 
required  to  be  tested.  Temperature  checks  and  wellness  questionnaires  are 
performed prior to shifts at the restaurants. 

 We  continue  to  rehire employees on an  “as‐needed” basis as  restaurants  reopen 
and increase their operations within the guidelines provided by local governments.   

 We operate our restaurants and hotels in accordance with government regulations 
to  ensure  that  our  restaurants  and  hotels  are  safe  and  clean  for  employees  and 
customers. 

 
Potential loss of key licenses or leases 
 

 The  Nobu  Chicago  Hotel managed  by  Nobu  Hospitality  and  the  rooftop  lounge 
operated  by  Nobu  Restaurant  Group  opened  July  1,  2020.    The  full  restaurant 
opening  is  delayed  until  government  restrictions  are  lifted  on  indoor  dining  in 
Chicago. 

 We opened a hotel and restaurant in Warsaw during July 2020. 

 We have negotiated  short‐term  rent  forgiveness or  rent deferrals  for most of  the 
restaurants in the United States.  Only one lease remains in negotiation at this time.   

 We  intended  to  open  a  small  temporary  restaurant  in Bally’s Grand Hotel  in  Las 
Vegas while Nobu  Las Vegas  inside  the Hard Rock Hotel  is being  renovated.   We 
have been unable to operate the temporary restaurant due to the Covid‐19 related 
closure of  the Bally’s Grand Hotel  in March.   We anticipate  returning  to  the Hard 
Rock  Hotel,  rebranded  as  the  Virgin  Hotel,  when  the  entire  facility  reopens  in 
October 2020. 

 Nobu Honolulu was closed by government order  in March 2020. Management has 
decided not to reopen this restaurant. 

3.4

CRW.507.005.2591



41 Pagc 

• Nobu Berkeley St. in London closed March 31, 2020. The employees at this 
restaurant will move to the new restaurant at the Nobu Hotel Portman Square. 
Both the restaurant and hotel are scheduled to open in late October 2020. 

• Nobu Hong Kong closed for renovations on June 30, 2020. The entire facility will 
undergo significant renovations with reopening scheduled for January 1, 2023. 

Economic factors leading to a decline in discretionary spend 

Reputational impacts from events e.g. food quality/contamination 

• Food quality and clean kitchens remain the highest priority. We do have the very 

occasional, random food-related complaint and such complaints have been handled 
at the restaurant level. 

• All restaurants and hotels maintain the highest standards of cleanliness and comply 
with government regulations. 

All of these issues potentially pose a significant r isk to Nobu Group. However, we address 

al l issues to consistently maintain the highest quality food and operation standards. 

10) Policies and procedures around HIGH RATED risk areas are continuously monitored to 
minimise our exposures. 

Occupational Health and Safety 

11) At the Nobu Group, the oversight of the health and safety of employees, contractors and 

customers (Occupational Health and Safety or OHS) includes these components: 

(a) provision of a safe workplace through identification and mitigation of OHS risks; 

(b) maintaining an effective incident reporting and investigation process; 

CRW.507.005.2592 



S I Page 

(c) maintaining an effective Workers' Compensation claims management and return 
to work process; 

(d) maintaining an effective OHS induction and on-going training program; 

(e) ensuring appropriate staff consultation on OHS matters via an OHS committee 
and/or through other means; 

(f) undertaking an annual review of the effectiveness of the OHS management 
system through analysis of available data (eg incident and hazard report data and 
compliance audit results) and to use this to drive continuous improvement in OHS 
performance is the responsibility of local General Managers and the Human 
Resources department of the Nobu Group; and 

(g) effective plans and controls to address OHS risks have been implemented and 
Nobu Group complies with relevant OHS laws. 

12) Health and Safety compliance is the responsibility of local General Managers, with 
oversight from corporate human resources. 

Yours sincerely 

John Kendrick 

2020.07.31 
18:10:24 -05'00' 

Chief Financial Officer 

CRW.507.005.2593 



CWN_LEGAL_183761.1

Audit & Corporate Governance Committee
Memorandum

To: Audit & Corporate Governance Committee

From: Mary Manos

Date: 7 August 2020

Subject: Draft Resolutions

Dear Committee Members

It is proposed that the Committee resolve as follows:

Accounting Issues Report: It was RESOLVED that the Accounting Issues Report be noted.

ASX Appendix 4E: Results for the 
Full Year ending 30 June 2020:

It was RESOLVED that the draft Appendix 4E be approved subject 
to those amendments suggested in the meeting and agreed to by 
the Committee (if any), and that the Committee recommend the 
Appendix 4E to the Board for approval.

Final Dividend Recommendation: It was RESOLVED that it be recommended to the Board that no
final dividend be declared.

3.5

CRW.507.005.2594



AGENDA ITEM 4:
Treasury and Compliance Report

4

CRW.507.005.2595



Crown Resorts Limited 
Treasury and Compliance Report - 12 August 2020 

1. CONSOLIDATED GROUP CASH FLOWS 

@Bcl@3012b3b3 

CRW.507.005.2596 

Page 1et10 



CRW.507.005.2597 

@Bcl@3012b3b3 Page2of 10 



CRW.507.005.2598 

@Bcl@3012b3b3 Page 3 of 10 



CRW.507.005.2599 

@Bc/@3012b3b3 Page4 of 10 



CRW.507.005.2600 

@Bcl@3012b3b3 Page 5of 10 



CRW.507.005.2601 

@Bcl@3012b3b3 Page 6of 10 



CRW.507.005.2602 

@Bcl@3012b3b3 Page 7 of 10 



CRW.507.005.2603 

@Bcl@3012b3b3 Page8of 10 



CRW.507.005.2604 

@Bc/@3012b3b3 Page9of 10 



CRW.507.005.2605 

@Bc/@3012b3b3 Page 10of 10 



AGENDA ITEM 5:
Auditor’s Report

5

CRW.507.005.2606



Crown Resorts Limited 

Audit Status Report to the Audit and 
Corporate Governance Committee for the 
year ended 30 June 2020 

10 August 2020 

CRW .507 .005.2607 



CRW.507.005.2608 



EV Building a better 
~ I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audi t Focus Audit Differences Control Environment Appendices 

Welcome 

Dear Audit and Corporate Governance Committee Members 

Michael Collins 
EY Assurance 

Partner 

All.son Parker 
EY Assurance 

Partner 

Our procedures in relation to the audit of Crown Resorts Limited and its controlled entities ('Crown' or the 
'Group) for the year ended 30 June 2020 are in progress. 

To facilitate your considerat ion of the unaudited 4E, we have listed all known key matters for your considerat ion 
at the date of this report. We are currently in the process of performing audit procedures over the full financial 
statements. Our procedures will also extend to the directors' report and remuneration report when received. 

This report is intended solely for the use of the Audi t and Corporate Governance Committee ('Audit Committee'), 
other members of the Board of Directors and senior management, and should not be used for any other purpose 
nor given to any other party without our prior written consent . 

We would like to thank your staff for the assistance provided to us during the engagement. 

I look forward to the opportunity of discussing with you any aspects of this report or any other issues arising 
from our work. 

If you have any queries in the meant ime, please feel free to contact Alison Parker on 0438 600 402 or Michael 
Collins on 0414 455 854. 

Yours faithfu lly 

Michael Collins 
Partner 

Alison Parker 
Partner 

3 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

CRW .507 .005.2609 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For t he year ended 30 June 2020 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences Control Environment Appendices 

CRW.507.005.2610 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences Control Environment Appendices 

CRW.507.005.2611 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

6 I Closing Repor t for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2612 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences Control Environment Appendices 

CRW.507.005.2613 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

8 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2614 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

9 I Closing Repor t for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2615 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

10 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2616 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

Equity accounted investments 

11 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2617 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

12 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2618 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

13 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2619 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

• 
• 
• 
• 
• 

• 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

14 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2620 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

15 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2621 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

16 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2622 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

17 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2623 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

18 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2624 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

19 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2625 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences Control Environment Appendices 

CRW.507.005.2626 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

21 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2627 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

22 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

CRW.507.005.2628 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

23 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2629 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

24 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2630 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

25 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2631 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Di fferences 

26 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2632 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

27 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

CRW.507.005.2633 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Control Environment Appendices 



EV Building a better 
~ I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audi t Focus Audit Differences Control Environment Appendices 

Other Required Audit Committee 
Communications 

Auditing Standards require us to report to you certain 
mat ters not in the body of this report. 

'---~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~--' 

Draft Auditor Independence Declaration 

Here is the draft auditor's independence declaration to 
the Directors of Crown Resorts Limited. 

Appendices 

® 
Outstanding Matters 

The items in here relates to outstanding matters at the 
date of the release of this report. 

'-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~---' 

28 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

CRW .507 _005.2634 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the y ear ended 30 J une 2020 

ASIC Areas of Focus 

Audit Committee members should be aware of ASIC's 
focus areas. which includes t he impact of ASIC FAQs in 
relation to COVID-19 and financial reporting. 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

29 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

CRW.507.005.2635 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Control Environment Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences 

Appendix B - Outstanding Matters 

30 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2636 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

Appendices 



Ev Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences Control Environment 

CRW.507.005.2637 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 20 20 

Appendices 

Appendix C - ASIC areas of focus and COVID-19 FAQs 
Background 

On 7 July 2020. ASIC announced its areas of focus for 30 June 2020 
financial reports of listed entities and other entities of public interest with 
many stakeholders. The Media Release focusses heavily on areas most 
impacted by the COVID·l 9 pandemic including the reporting of asset 
values and provisions as well as disclosures of uncertainties, key 
assumptions and sensitivities. 

The release also draws attention to the report ing process and that 
companies need to adequately apply appropriate experience and expertise 
in the reporting and audit process particularly in more dif ficult and 
complex areas, such as asset values and other estimates. 

Attention is drawn to what entit ies are reporting in their OFR. Information 
should be useful and meaningful covering underlying dr ivers of resul ts, 
information around strategies, key risks and other matters impacting 
future prospects. Directors are cautioned around the potential for non
IFRS information to be potentially misleading. Reference is made to ASIC 
Regulatory Guides 247 Effective disclosure in an operating and financial 
review and RG 230 Disclosing non-IFRS financial information. 

The role of directors and management is also specif ically identified as ASIC 
calls on preparers to focus on the quality of f inancial information. 
Companies must have 'appropriate processes. records and analysis to 
support information in the financial report' and companies should apply 
appropriate experience and expertise. Further information is available in 
ASIC 's Information Sheets 183 Directors and financial reporting and 203 
Impairment of non-financial assets: Materials for directors. 

ASJC COVJD-19 frequently asked questions (FAQ) 

Due to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on Australian companies 
which caused difficult ies in f inancial repor ting, ASIC has drafted FAQs 
which can be found here: https://asic.gov.au/regulatory
resources/financial-reporting-and-audit/covid-19-implications-for
financial-reporting-and-audit-frequently-asked-questions-faqs/. 

3 1 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limited 

EY's Perspective 

ASIC's areas of focus for its financial reporting surveillance program as outlined in the Media Release are broadly t he 
same as those highlighted by ASIC in previous periods and are as follows: 

ASIC Area of focus 

Recognition and measurement 

Value of assets (including intangibles, 
proper ty, inventories, receivables/loans, 
investments, other financial assets, 
contract assets and deferred tax assets) 

Liabilities ( including provisions for 
onerous contracts, financial guarantees 
and restructu ring) 

Disclosures 

Sources of estimation uncertainty 

Key assumptions and sensitivity analysis 

Operating and financial review 

Going concern assessment s and solvency 

Subsequent events 



EV Building a better 
I I working world 

Executive Summary Areas of Audit Focus Audit Differences Control Environment Appendices 

Appendix D - Draft Auditor Independence Declarat ion 

Auditor's Independence Declaration to the Directors of Crown Resorts Limited 

CRW.507.005.2638 

Crown Resorts Limited 
For the year ended 30 June 2020 

As lead auditor for the audit of the f inancial report of Crown Resorts Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2020, I declare to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been: 

a) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and 

b) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit. 

This declaration is in respect of Crown Resorts Limited and the entities it controlled during the financia l year . 

Ernst & Young 

Michael Collins 
Partner 
XX September 2020 

32 I Closing Report for the year ended 30 June 2020 - Crown Resorts Limit ed 



EY I Assurance I Tax I Transactions I Advisory 

About EY 

EY is a global leader in assurance, tax, t ransaction and advisory 
services. The insights and quality services we deliver help build 
t rust and confidence in the capital markets and in economies the 
world over. We develop outstanding leaders who team to deliver 
on our promises to all of our stakeholders. In so doing, we play a 
critical role in building a better working world fo r our people, fo r 
our clients and for our communities. 

EY refers to the global organisation, and may refer to one or 
more, of the member firms of Ernst & Young Global Limited, each 
of which is a separate legal entit y. Ernst & Young Global Limited, 
a UK company limited by guarantee, does not provide services to 
clients. Information about how EY collects and uses personal data 
and a description of the rights individuals have under data 
protect ion legislation is available via ey.com/privacy. For more 
information about our organisation, please visit ey.com. 

© 2020 Ernst & Young, Australia. 
All Rights Reserved. 

ED None 

This communication provides general information which is current 
at the time of production. The information con tained in this 
communica t ion does not constitute advice and should not be 
relied on as such. Professional advice should be sought prior to 
any action being taken in reliance on any of the information. Ernst 
& Young disclaims all responsibility and liability (including, without 
limitat ion, for any direct or indirect or consequent ial costs, loss or 
damage or loss of profits) arising from anything done or omitted 
to be done by any party in reliance, whe ther wholly or partially, 
on any of the info rmation. Any party that relies on the 
information does so at its own ri sk. 

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional 
Standards Legislation. 

ey.com 

CRW .507 .005.2639 



CWN_LEGAL_183565.2

Audit & Corporate Governance Committee
Memorandum

To: Audit & Corporate Governance Committee

From: Mary Manos

Date: 7 August 2020

Subject: Assessment of Auditor Independence

Dear Committee Members

Article 5.5 of the Committee’s Charter requires that the Committee periodically review the independence of 
the Company’s external auditors, having regard to any relationships with Crown beyond the external audit 
function that could impair the external auditor’s independence or judgment of Crown.

In addition, the Committee is required to consider annually any non-audit services provided by Ernst & Young 
to determine whether the provision of those non-audit services is compatible with the independence of the 
external auditor and does not compromise the auditor’s independence.

Review of Independence

To assist the Committee in its review, we have requested that Ernst & Young confirm for the Committee that 
it continues to meet all internal independence processes and criteria.  

Attached as Annexure A is a draft independence statement provided by Ernst & Young for this purpose, the 
final will be included in the Closing Report.

In addition, given that this is the full year results meeting, and consistent with previous years, a 
representative of Ernst & Young’s Independence Team, Leigh Walker, will attend the meeting to provide the 
Committee with an overview of current Ernst & Young independence processes.

Audit v Non-audit Services

Crown acquired non-audit services from Ernst & Young largely in relation to the Cannery tax litigation matter, 
the DGN restructure and compliance related taxation matters.

5.2

CRW.507.005.2640



CWN_LEGAL_183565.2

Details of the amounts paid or payable to the auditor for non-audit services provided during the year by the 
auditor are as follows:

The ratio of non-audit to audit services provided by Ernst & Young to Crown is approximately 1.8. 

A breakdown of taxation service fees (for Australia) at a high level is set out below:

Matter Amount
Cannery $347,369
Compliance $429,236
ATO audits/RFIs $349,468
Employment matters $68,542
CML $188,882
DGN $624,018
GST Matter $39,163
Other matters $433,183

Advice to the Board

Crown is required to disclose in its Directors’ Statutory Report certain information in relation to the provision 
of non-audit services by the auditor, Ernst & Young, including:

∑ a statement whether the directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit services, during the 
financial year, by the auditor is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors 
imposed by the Corporations Act; and

∑ a statement of the directors’ reasons for being satisfied that the provision of non-audit services, 
during the financial year, by the auditor did not compromise the auditor independence requirements 
of the Corporations Act.

The above statements must be made in accordance with written advice endorsed by a resolution of the 
Committee and signed by a member of the Committee.

Attached as Annexure B is a draft written advice for endorsement by the Committee, subject to any changes 
the Committee may have.

5.2

CRW.507.005.2641



CWN_LEGAL_183565.2

Recommendation and Proposed Resolution

Based on the representations provided by Ernst & Young in relation to the independence processes and the 
analysis above, it is open to the Committee to conclude that it remains satisfied with the independence of 
the external auditor.  It is proposed that the Committee resolve as follows:

RESOLVED that:

1. having conducted a formal review, the Committee is satisfied that the external auditor, Ernst & 
Young, remains independent; 

2. in the opinion of the Committee, the provision of non-audit services by Ernst & Young during the 
2020 financial year is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by 
the Corporations Act 2001 and the Committee is satisfied that the provision of non-audit services 
during the 2020 financial year did not compromise the auditor independence requirements of the 
Corporations Act 2001; and

3. the draft advice provided to the Committee in advance of the meeting be approved, signed by the 
Chair of the Committee and provided to the Board of Directors of the Company.

Kind Regards

Mary Manos
General Counsel & Company Secretary

5.2

CRW.507.005.2642



CWN_LEGAL_183565.2

ANNEXURE A
INDEPENDENCE STATEMENT PROVIDED BY ERNST & YOUNG

5.2

CRW.507.005.2643



CWN_LEGAL_183565.2

ANNEXURE B

ADVICE OF THE COMMITTEE RE NON-AUDIT SERVICES

[TO BE PRINTED ON CROWN RESORTS LETTERHEAD]

Board of Directors
Crown Resorts Limited
Level 3, Crown Towers
8 Whiteman Street
SOUTHBANK  VIC  3006

Dear Directors

Provision of Non-audit Services by Ernst & Young during the 2020 Financial Year

On 12 August 2020, at its meeting, the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee (the Committee) 
considered the provision of audit and non-audit services provided by Crown’s auditor, Ernst & Young, during 
the 2020 financial year.  The Committee advises as follows:

The Committee is satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the year by the auditor is 
compatible with, and did not compromise, the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by 
the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) for the following reasons:

(a) all non-audit services have been reviewed by the Committee to ensure that they did not impact the 
impartiality and objectivity of the auditor; and

(b) none of the services involved reviewing or auditing the auditor’s own work or acting in a 
management decision-making capacity for the Company.

Yours sincerely,

Toni Korsanos
Chair of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

5.2

CRW.507.005.2644



CWN_LEGAL_229030.1

AGENDA ITEM 6:
Tax Status Report

6

CRW.507.005.2645



Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

Memorandum

To: Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

From: Alan McGregor

Date: 7 August 2020

Subject: Tax Report

Dear Committee Members

Attached is a written overview of the Company’s material taxation issues for the period 1 January 2020 to 
30 June 2020.

Kind Regards

Alan McGregor
Chief Financial Officer

6

CRW.507.005.2646



CRW.507.005.2647 

Tax Status Report 

1. Period 
This Tax Status Report is for the period 1 January 2020 to 30 June 2020. 

1 



CRW.507.005.2648 

1 The effective tax rate at theoretical was 32.72%, wh ilst the effective tax rate at reported was 31.12% 

2 



CRW.507.005.2649 

3 



CROWN RESORTS LIMITED -VOLUNTARY TAX TRANSPARENCY CODE REPORT 

Crown Resorts is one of Australia's largest entertainment groups and makes a major contribution to t he 

Austra lian economy through its role in tourism, employment, tra ining, and its corporate responsibility 

programs. 

Crown owns and operates two of Australia's leading integrated resorts, Crown Melbourne and Crown Perth 

and is nearing completion of t he Crown Sydney Hotel Resort Project. Overseas, Crown owns and operates 

Crown Aspina lls in London and also part.i cipates in the online gaming arena with a 100% interest in Betfair 

which is an online betting exchange and an 85% interest of DGN games which is an online social gaming 

business. 

Crown returns a substantia l amount of its revenue to the community through t he various taxes levied on its 

operations. Outside legislative commitments, Crown takes its responsibility to the communit ies in which it 

operates seriously wit h an ongoing, proactive effort to make a genuine difference in the lives of people 

through charity partnerships and community-focussed collaborations. 

In t his respect, Crown supports many community causes and organisations t hrough employee volunteering 

opportunities, a variety of resorts specifi c community partnerships and t he Crown Resorts Foundation. 

CRW.507.005.2650 

As one of Australia's largest taxpayers, Crown is committed to being a responsible corporate citizen and 

meeting our tax responsibilities. Transparency is a sub-set of t his social responsibility. As part of our 

commitment to transparency, we are publishing this report on a voluntary basis, in line with t he guidelines set 

out in the Australian Tax Transparency Code recommended by the Board of Taxation and adopted by the 

Federal Government . The information below re lates to t he year ended 30 June 2020. 

Part A 

Reconciliation of accounting profit to income tax expense and income tax payable including identification of 



CRW.507.005.2651 

Part B 

Crown's approach to tax policy, tax strategy and governance 

Crown is committed to full compliance with its statutory obligations and takes a principled, transparent and 

sustainable approach to tax risk management. Crown manages tax risk like any other operational risk in our 

business and in this regard, we have a comprehensive organisation wide risk management framework, which is 

supplemented by tax specific policies and procedures. Of particular note is Crown's Tax Policy, which includes 

an internal escalation process for referring tax matters to the Group Tax function. The CFO must report any 

material tax issues to the Board. Crown's Tax Strategy is implemented through its Tax Policy. 

Crown's approach to tax management is to operate and pay the correct amount of tax when it is due and 

payable as prescribed under the law. Crown will consult the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) (or other 

relevant tax authority) when clarity is needed. 

Crown seeks to have a pro-active and cooperative approach to engaging with the ATO and responding to ATO 

enquiries on a timely basis. Crown is a part of the "Top 100" cohort of taxpayers the A TO has identified in the 

context of its Justified Trust program. In this respect, the ATO conducts an annual review of Crown's 

Austra lian consolidated income tax return and in this context, Crown discloses to the ATO all material 

transactions undertaken. 

1 The ETR for Global Operations has been ca lculated as income tax expense divided by accounting profit before 

tax but excluding associates and significant items relating to impairments and reassessment of contingent 
consideration. Consequently, the ETR is illustrative of the sustainable ETR that applies to the Crown Group's 
Global Operations. 
2 The ETR for the Australian Operations has been calcu lated as income tax expense divided by accounting 

profit before tax but excluding dividend income from overseas subsidiaries. Consequently, the ETR is 
illustrative of the sustainable ETR that applies to the Crown Group's income generated within Australia. 



Australian Tax Contribution Summary 

$m
Corporate income tax 77.3

Other Australian taxes and imposts paid to State and Federal 
Governments

Payroll Tax 35.5 
Fringe Benefits Tax 3.3
Gaming Taxes (incl Community Benefit Levy) 301.8 
Point of Consumption Tax 7.8
Rates & Land Tax 30.5 
Returns to racing industry 24.4

TOTAL TAXES PAID 480.6

In addition to the above, Crown collects and remits to the ATO significant sums of Goods and Services Tax and 
Pay as You Go Withholding Tax.

Information about International Related Party Dealings

With a number of business interests in foreign jurisdictions, Crown transacts with related parties in those 
jurisdictions.   All material transactions between Crown and its international related parties during the year 
were conducted, priced and documented on an arm’s length basis having regard to Australian transfer pricing 
laws. 

As a large taxpayer, Crown is under constant review by the ATO. Details of its international related party 
dealings are disclosed to the ATO as part of this review process. 

6

CRW.507.005.2652



AGENDA ITEM 7:
Continuous Disclosure Report

7

CRW.507.005.2653



CRW .507 .005.2654 

Audit & Corporate Governance Committee 

Memorandum 

To: Audit & Corporate Governance Committee 

From: Mary Manos 

Date: 7 August 2020 

Subject: Continuous Disclosure Report 

Dear Committee Members 

During the period, all ASX announcements were made in accordance with Crown's Continuous Disclosure 
Policy requ irements. 

For the Committee's information, set out below is a list of all announcements which have been placed on the 
Company's ASX platform since the last report provided in February 2020 (with the most recent on top). The 
column on the far right indicates who approved the announcement prior to release. 

Date Title Pages Approved by 

24June 2020 
NSW Independent Liquor and Gaming 

8 Disclosure Committee 
Authority Inquiry Update 

23 June 2020 Revised Crown Perth Operating Conditions 1 Disclosure Committee 

15 June 2020 Interest Payment - CWNHB 4 Disclosure Officer 

4 May 2020 Response to COVID-19 - Trading Update 1 Board 

1May2020 Ceasing to be a substantial holder 4 Not applicable 

1May2020 Becoming a substantial holder 17 Not applicable 

29 April 2020 
Blackstone Advises of Purchase of Crown 

1 Disclosure Committee 
Shares 

16 April 2020 Response to COVID-19 - Market Update 3 Disclosure Committee 

6April 2020 Change in substantial holding from PPT 12 Not applicable 

3April 2020 
NSW Independent Liquor and Gaming 

2 Disclosure Committee 
Authority Inquiry 

2April 2020 Update - Dividend/Distribution - CWN 4 Disclosure Officer 

CWN_LEGAL_183644.1 



CRW.507.005.2655 

Date Title Pages Approved by 

2 April 2020 F20 Interim Dividend - Update 1 Board 

23 March 2020 
Response to Covid-19 - Update - Revised 

1 Disclosure Committee 
Operating Condit ions 

20 March 2020 Trading Halt 2 Disclosure Officer 

20 March 2020 Pause in Trad ing 1 Not applicable 

19 March 2020 Response to Covid-19 - Update 1 Disclosure Committee 

18 March 2020 Change in substantial holding from PPT 15 Not applicable 

17 March 2020 Response to Covid-19 Update 1 Disclosure Committee 

16 March 2020 Interest Payment - CWNHB 4 Disclosure Officer 

16 March 2020 Response to Covid-19 1 Disclosure Committee 

13 March 2020 Appointment of Chief Financial Officer 1 Disclosure Committee 

6 March 2020 Init ial Director's Interest Notice - Ken Barton 3 Disclosure Officer 

3 March 2020 Appointment of Ken Barton as a Director 1 Disclosure Officer 

2 March 2020 
Change of Director's Interest Notice - Helen 

3 Disclosure Officer 
Coonan 

19 February 2020 
CWN Subordinated Notes II - Key Financial 

2 Disclosure Officer 
Ratios 

19 February 2020 2020 Half Year Results - Presentation Slides 14 Board 

19 February 2020 Crown Announces 2020 Half Year Results 6 Board 

19 February 2020 Dividend/Distribution - CWN 4 Disclosure Officer 

19 February 2020 2020 Half Year Results - Appendix 4D 26 Board 

7 February 2020 Change in Substantial Holding 12 Not applicable 

CWN_LEGAL_183644.1 



CWN_LEGAL_229032.1

AGENDA ITEM 8:
Diversity Report

8

CRW.507.005.2656



 

1 

 

Audit & Corporate Governance Committee 

Memorandum 

 
To: Audit & Corporate Governance Committee 
 
From: Mary Manos and Gen Arnold 
 
Date: 7 August 2020 
 
Subject: Diversity Report 
 

 
Dear Committee Members 

Background 

The ASX Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations include recommendations to: (i) establish a 
Diversity Policy; (ii) to establish and report on specific measurable diversity objectives; and (iii) to report on 
the participation of women at various levels within Crown. 

In line with the ASX Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations, the Diversity Policy requires 
that Crown establish measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity and to assess the both the 
objectives and Crown’s progress in achieving those objectives annually.  A copy of the Crown Diversity Policy 
is attached at Annexure A for your reference.   

Crown’s Diversity Policy 

Crown’s Diversity Policy has not been updated since it was introduced in 2011.  A number of advancements 
in diversity at Crown have been made since the inception of that Policy, including the establishment of a 
Gender Action Plan.  On that basis, the Diversity Policy will be reviewed and updated as appropriate, with 
updates to be presented to this Committee for consideration prior to adoption. 

Application of Policy 

In accordance with the Policy, Crown first established the measurable objectives for achieving gender 
diversity which would apply from the period commencing 1 July 2011.  Those objectives were reviewed and 
revised in 2015, 2017, 2018 and 2019 to recognise that a number of the originally adopted objectives had 
been achieved. 

The adopted objectives which applied for the period ending 30 June 2020 are set out below (Gender 
Objectives) together with an assessment of Crown’s progress in achieving those Gender Objectives. 

8

CRW.507.005.2657



CRW .507 .005.2658 

Objective Crown' s Progress 

1. To requ ire that at least one female candidate Crown has adopted this recruitment objective as 

is presented on candidate short lists and at part of its commitment to diversity and in line with 
least one female from Senior Management is the Crown Resorts Limited Diversity Policy. 
involved in the interview process for all Senior 

Management and Senior Executive positions In order to meet the above objective, all positions in 
within the group for which a recruitment Crown Resorts must be supported through a 

process is undertaken. consistent, unbiased and thorough recruitment 
process, managed by the relevant recru itment 

team, including for positions identified through 
succession planning or otherwise. This process is 
overseen by the Execut ive team at each property. 

During the financial year, female candidates were 

shortlisted for 80% of Senior M anagement and 
Senior Executive positions within the group for 

which a recruitment process was undertaken during 
the financia l year. For t he positions that did not 
have a female candidate shortlisted, there were no 

female applicants. 

Crown has continued, and expanded on, its efforts 
around attracting and sourcing female candidates, 

including through: 

• the adoption of robust practices to increase 

long-term gender balances in areas of the 
business where female applications and 

appointments are underrepresented; and 

• undertaking focus groups in relation to the 

Gaming areas of the business to inform the end 
to end recru itment process. 

Recruit ment commenced for Crown Sydney, w ith a 
focus on gender-balanced shortlists for posit ions. 

A female from Senior Management was involved in 

t he interview process for all except two Senior 
Management and Senior Executive positions within 

the group for which a recru itment process was 
undertaken. 

Crown Resorts 

There were no Senior Management or Senior 
Executive roles filled during the year for which a 

recruitment process was undertaken. 

2 



CRW .507 .005.2659 

Objective Crown' s Progress 

Crown Melbourne L.imited 

11 Senior Management or Senior Executive roles 
were filled during the financial year, with two 

female appointments made. Nine of the roles had 
female candidates shortl isted. Two of these 11 

posit ions were not advertised and were direct 
appointments. 

Crown Perth 

Four Senior Management or Senior Executive roles 
were filled during the financial year with no females 

appointed to the roles. Three of the roles had 
female candidates short listed. Two roles were put 

on hold before hire stage due to COVID. 

Crown Sydney 

16 Senior Management or Senior Executive roles 

were filled during the financial year. With six female 
appointments made. 12 of t he roles had female 

candidates shortlisted. Two of the 16 positions 
were direct appointments. 

Despite efforts, recru itment was unable to source 
female candidates for the following positions: 

• Chinese Execut ive Chef 

• Senior IT Manager 

Crown Aspinalls 

Two Senior Management or Senior Execut ive roles 

were filled during the financial year with females 
appointed to both roles. 

Betfair 

Two Senior Management or Senior Executive roles 
were filled during the financial year with no females 

appointed to the roles. Female candidates were 
shortlisted for both roles. 

3 



CRW .507 .005.2660 

Objective Crown's Procress 

2. To promote leadership opportunities for During the financial year, Crown's wholly owned 

female employees by maintaining the level of properties achieved a 38.75% female participation 
female participation in leadership and rate in leadership and development programs 
development programs (which incorporate which represents a 15.5% decrease on financial year 
targeted mentoring/coaching elements) 2020. 
across the group at no less than 45% of all 
participants. The participation rate was, in part, impacted by the 

COVID-19 property closures and stand downs, with 
no leadership and development programs being 
conducted over this period. 

As detailed at Objective 5, Crown published its first 
Gender Action Plan for FY20 to FY23 (GAP) which 
includes Retention and Development as a key 
theme. Crown is reviewing its current leadership 
and development programs and framework to 
address this objective. 

Participation rates for each property are set out 
below: 

• Melbourne - 38% in F20 as compared to 45% in 
F19. 

• Perth - 60% in F20 as compared to 60% in F19 . 

• Aspinalls - 45% participation rate in F20 
compared to 50% in F19. 

• Betfair - 12% participation rate in F20 compared 
to 21% in F19. 

3. To conduct an internal review on an annual In the 2020 financial year, Crown conducted an 
basis of the remuneration for key roles within internal review only. While an external validation 
the group, with an external validation review review was scheduled to be undertaken during the 
to be undertaken every second year, to financia l year, this has been deferred to the 2021 
ascertain the existence of any gender pay financia l year as a result of Crown's property 
gaps and to implement action plans to closures due to COVID-19. 
address any such gaps. 

The internal pay gap review confirmed that there 
was no statistically significant pay gap identified for 
like for like roles. 

Crown's Workplace Gender Equity Agency (WGEA) 
Report for 2019-20 demonstrated a further 
reduction in the gender pay gap from the previous 
year of 9.3 to 8.0. The results of t he internal 
analysis, which considers like for like roles, are 
inconsistent with the WGEA data as the WGEA data 
considers the average pay of all salaried roles within 
the group, including senior executive positions 
up to and including the CEO. 

4 



CRW .507 .005.2661 

Objective Crown's Progress 

4. To participate in local and national programs Crown continued its part icipation in the following 

which promote gender equity and to local and national programs during the 2020 
implement relevant actions arising out of financia l year: 
those programs. 

• M ale Champions of Change (MCC) program . 

• CEOs for Gender Equity in Western Austra lia . 

• Women in Gaming and Hospitality Australasia 

(WGH). 

During the 2020 financia l year, Crown also became 
a member of Not In My Workplace which is an 

organisation committed to addressing workplace 
harassment and abuse. 

Throughout the financia l year, the following 
init iatives were achieved at Crown, in alignment 

with the MCC Action Group meetings: 

Promoting female sports 

Crown was a key sponsor for the International 
Women's DayT20 World Cup Final MCC forum. 

Flexible work arrangements 

In response to COVID-19, Crown successfully 
supported many of its employees in working 

remotely which is expected to inform and 
accelerate flexible working arrangements going 
forward. Crown introduced new technology 

platforms to facilitate communication with 
employees during this period. 

Violence against women 

Crown's Family and Domestic Violence Support 
Policy which provides uncapped paid leave 

ent itlements to employees experiencing, or 

supporting someone experiencing, family violence 
was extended to casual employees. 

While not specifically related to Crown's 
employees, Crown Melbourne worked with the 
Victorian Government and service providers to 

establish a program to provide safe 
accommodation, at no cost, to those experiencing 

domestic and family violence during the COVID-19 
pandemic. Crown has provided over 400 room 

nights under t his program. 

5 



CRW .507 .005.2662 

Objective Crown's Progress 

5. To progress the objectives of the Gender During the 2020 Financial Year, Crown published its 

Action Plan for FY20 to FY23 (the Plan) and to first Crown Resorts Gender Action Plan for FY20 to 
annually assess the progress of the Plan's FY23 (GAP) which strengthens Crown's longstanding 

objectives. commitment to gender equity. 

The GAP focuses on five key themes of Recruitment 

and Promotion, Retention and Development, 
Flexibility, Cultural Change and Communication, and 

lntersectionality. 

In addition to the initiatives set out above for 

Objectives 1 to 4 above, Crown progressed the 
following GAP objectives: 

Recruitment and Promotion 

Development of reporting dashboards to monitor 
Crown's progress against its 40:40:20 target. 

Retention and Development 

Development of a talent management framework 
to manage and track this objective. 

Flexibility 

Increased focus and communications on flexible 

working arrangements, particularly throughout the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 

Improvements around leave purchase options to 
provide greater flexibility for employees. 

Cultural Change and Communication 

Diversity and inclusion key performance objectives 
have been set for all sa laried roles. 

Implementation of a social communication platform 

to enable two-way engagement which has been 
effective during the COVID-19 closure period. 

Crown became a member of the Diversity Council 

Austra lia, an independent not-for-profit body 
leading diversity and inclusion in the workplace. 

lntersectionality 

Crown continued its focus on intersectionality, 
raising awareness of Crown's diversity programs 

6 



CRW .507 .005.2663 

Objective Crown's Procr•ss 

through Crown Community and through the Crown 

Pride, Cultural and Linguistically Diverse, and Family 
Support employee networks. 

Annual Report disclosures 

Crown's Gender Objectives and its progress towards achieving them must be disclosed in its Annual Report. 

In addition, the proportion of women employees in the Crown group, women in senior executive positions 

and women on the Board as at 30 June 2020 must also be reported on. The results of these measures are as 

follows: 

Measure Result 

Proportion of women employees in t he group There were 5,255 women in the group. This 

represents 43.19% of the tota l workforce of 12,166 
employees. This is a slight improvement (0.49%) 

on FY19. 

Proportion of women in senior executive positions There were 22 women in senior executive positions 

in the group in the group. This represents 28.9% of senior 
executive positions in the group. This is a 0.9% 

decrease on FY19 (29.8%). 

Proportion of women on the Board There were three female Directors out of a tota l of 

11 Directors, or 27.27%. 

The draft Corporate Governance Statement included in the papers has provision for the above information to 

be included. The Corporate Governance St atement will be included in Crown's 2020 Annual Report. 

Annual assessment of objectives 

As noted, Crown's Policy requ ires that Crown review its Gender Objectives annually to ensure that they 
remain relevant and appropriate for Crown. 

M anagement has forma lly reviewed the Gender Objectives and recommends that the Gender Objectives 

included in Crown's GAP be adopted and reported on going forward. A copy of the GAP is attached as 
Annexure B. 

The GAP has the following five areas of focus: 

1. Recruitment and Promotion - To achieve 40:40:20 representation across the group, with each Executive 
accountable for achieving this target within their business unit. 

2. Retention and Development - To ensure Crown retains women at a level equitable or better than the 

retention of their male colleagues and that women at Crown receive appropriate opportunities and 
encouragement so that they benefit from all t hat Crown has to offer. 

7 



 

8 

 

3. Cultural Change and Communication – To ensure that all employees work in a safe and respectful 
environment where their contributions are welcomed and valued. 

4. Flexibility – To have flexibility for every role at Crown. 

5. Intersectionality – To partner with Crown’s Indigenous Program, CROWNability and Crown Pride 
Committee to address specific areas for women participating in those programs. 

Each focus area in the GAP, other than Intersectionality, includes a number of measurable objectives which 
are identified as mid-term and long-term targets.  These targets incorporate elements of, and expand on, the 
measurable objectives which were set for financial year 2020. 

In addition, the ASX Corporate Governance Council’s Fourth Edition of the Corporate Governance Principles 
and Recommendations recommend that entities in the S&P/ASX 300 (which includes Crown) set a 
measurable objective for achieving gender diversity in the composition of its Board of having not less than 
30% of its directors of each gender within a specified period. 

As part of the F20 Crown Board and Committee evaluation, directors were asked to consider within which 
specified time period is it appropriate for Crown to achieve at least 30% female representation on its Board.   

The responses to the Board and Committee evaluation, which were considered by the People, Remuneration 
and Nomination Committee on 7 August 2020, express a desire (based on the responses of a majority of the 
directors (7 out of 10)) to achieve 30% female representation on the Board within two years.  Subject to 
adoption of this measurable objective by the Board at its 18 August 2020 meeting, it is proposed that the 
following measurable objective be included in the 2020 Corporate Governance Statement for financial year 
2021: 

To have not less than 30% of directors on the Crown Board of each gender by 30 June 2022. 

Proposed resolutions 

It is recommended that the Committee resolve as follows: 

1. having reviewed its previously adopted Gender Objectives, the revised Gender Objectives presented to 
the Committee be adopted with effect from 1 July 2020; and 

2. the appropriate Annual Report disclosures based on the information set out in this paper be included in 
Crown’s 2020 Corporate Governance Statement. 

Kind regards 

Many Manos 
General Counsel and Company Secretary 

8

CRW.507.005.2664



 

9 

 

Annexure A 
Diversity Policy 

 

See attached. 

8

CRW.507.005.2665



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Crown Resorts Limited 
Diversity Policy 
Crown Resorts Limited ACN 125 709 953 
A public company limited by shares 

 

 

 
 

 

 

8

CRW.507.005.2666



 

Table of contents page 

 

1. Background ....................................................................................................................... 1 

1.1. What Diversity means to Crown ........................................................................................... 1 
1.2. Corporate Benefits Arising from Employee and Board Diversity .......................................... 1 
1.3. Our Commitment.................................................................................................................. 1 

2. Framework for Embracing Diversity ................................................................................. 1 

2.1. Development of Corporate Culture ...................................................................................... 1 
2.2. Selection Processes and Recruitment ................................................................................... 1 
2.3. Training and Development ................................................................................................... 2 
2.4. Succession Management ...................................................................................................... 2 
2.5. Flexibility............................................................................................................................... 2 

3. Gender Diversity – Measureable Objective ...................................................................... 3 

 

 

8

CRW.507.005.2667



 

1. Background 

1.1. What Diversity means to Crown 

Diversity is the variety of differences in people who make up our employee base and our Board, 
including such differences as life experience, work and educational experience, language, 
gender, nationality, personality profile, age, ethnicity, cultural background and work status. 

1.2. Corporate Benefits Arising from Employee and Board Diversity 

Crown understands that diversity is an economic driver of competitiveness for companies, 
contributing to business success and shareholder value. 

Some of the generally accepted corporate benefits arising from employee and Board diversity 
include better financial performance and improved workforce participation. 

In addition, the promotion of diversity broadens the pool for recruitment of high quality 
employees and board members, enhances employee retention, encourages greater innovation 
and improves our corporate image and reputation. 

1.3. Our Commitment 

Crown is committed to creating an environment in which equity and diversity are recognised as 
being essential to the high performance of Crown and incorporated into Crown’s day to day 
business. 

2. Framework for Embracing Diversity 

2.1. Development of Corporate Culture 

Crown seeks to promote an environment of equity and diversity by adhering to some key 
principles including: 

(a) Taking steps to attract and retain well qualified employees, senior management and 
Board members from a deep talent pool; 

(b) Eliminating artificial, unfair and inappropriate barriers to workplace and Board 
participation and facilitating equal employment opportunities based on merit, 
performance and potential; 

(c) Taking action against inappropriate workplace behaviours including discrimination 
and harassment; 

(d) Providing the opportunity for workplace flexibility when meeting business 
requirements; and 

(e) Creating an inclusive workplace culture, recognising that people are different and 
valuing those differences. 

2.2. Selection Processes and Recruitment 

Crown policy requires that all positions at Crown are filled on the basis of merit.  This means 
that applicants for positions for which a formal recruitment process is undertaken will be 
assessed on the basis of the competencies they possess in relation to the requirements of the 

 

Crown Resorts Limited - Diversity Policy - 27 June 2011.Doc  page | 1 

 

8

CRW.507.005.2668



 

job.  Merit based selection ensures the opportunity exists for all applicants for such positions to 
demonstrate their competencies for the position being offered. 

As part of Crown’s commitment to filling positions on the basis of merit, some positions will be 
filled by persons previously identified through Crown’s succession planning or by persons 
possessing specialised skills and experience.  

At operational level, Crown recognises the importance of having a diverse workforce.  Crown 
encourages people from all backgrounds to apply to work at Crown and to apply for promotion 
opportunities once employed by Crown. 

All employees involved in recruitment and selection are trained in their responsibilities as an 
Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO) employer and undergo formal assessment of their skills. 

Recruitment agencies who may be engaged by Crown from time to time are required to adhere 
to Crown’s EEO policies and to recommend a diverse pool of candidates to Crown for 
consideration.  

2.3. Training and Development 

Crown encourages the personal development of its employees and offers extensive training and 
development programs which seek to develop technical skills, people management and 
leadership skills. 

Online learning is increasingly being offered so as to enhance access opportunities to all 
employees.   

At operational level, English and English as a second language classes are offered for employees 
who would like to improve their spoken, written or oral comprehension skills in English. 

Managers and supervisors receive training around EEO obligations and the advantages of a 
diversity aware workforce. All employees also receive EEO Awareness training. 

2.4. Succession Management 

Crown offers targeted development programs relating to career advancement including 
programs which develop skills and experience that prepare employees for senior management 
positions. 

As part of its talent and succession management program, Crown also works with high potential 
employees to formulate targeted development plans to address identified knowledge, skills and 
experience gaps that may prevent them from moving into more senior positions.  A focus on 
high potential employees is critical in building the pool and pipeline of future leaders. 

Tailored mentoring and coaching programs, involving another Crown Senior Executive or 
external specialist coaches are available to Crown employees. 

2.5. Flexibility 

Crown’s wholly owned businesses operate 24 hours a day, 7 days a week and in a highly 
competitive service industry requiring employees to demonstrate a commitment to service 
excellence.   

All permanent employees of Crown are offered equitable conditions of service and a range of 
benefits such as on site dining facilities providing free meals to employees during their shift, 

 

Crown Resorts Limited - Diversity Policy - 27 June 2011.Doc  page | 2 

 

8

CRW.507.005.2669



 

uniform laundering and repair services and, in some cases, an on site gymnasium.  Requests for 
flexible work arrangements due to special requirements of employees are considered on a case 
by case basis. 

Crown believes the need to balance work and life requirements is important. Crown has 
established a number of policies and programs to assist employees to achieve this.  Parental 
Leave Policies have been developed and family leave entitlements outline the leave 
arrangements available to assist employees to balance their work and family responsibilities. 

3. Gender Diversity – Measureable Objective 
Crown will report annually in its Annual Report commencing in 2012 the proportion of women 
employees in the Crown Resorts Limited group, women in senior executive positions and 
women on the Board. 

In addition, Crown has established measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity and will 
assess the objectives and Crown’s progress in achieving those objectives annually, and will 
report the results of those objectives in its Annual Report commencing in 2012. 

 

Crown Resorts Limited 
June 2011 

 

Crown Resorts Limited - Diversity Policy - 27 June 2011.Doc  page | 3 

 

8

CRW.507.005.2670



 

10 

 

Annexure B 
Gender Action Plan (F20 to F23) 

 

See attached. 

 

8

CRW.507.005.2671



• • ••• • • •• ••• •• • • •• ••••• • ••• 
GENDER 
EQUITY 

CROWN RESORTS 

CRW .507 .005.2672 

GENDERACTION PLAN 
F20 - F23 

• 



CONTENTS 
Welcome to country 

Why you need to read this 2 

Gender Action Plan 

Why gender equity 3 

What Australia's workplace gender 4 

equality agency says about gender 

equality 

Our journey so far 6 

Where are we now? 8 

What is to come? 10 

Putting diversity on the agenda 11 

Crown's Gender Action PI~ 18 

F20- F23 

40:40:20 19 

Recruitment & promotion 20 

Retention & development 22 

Flexibility 26 

Cultural change & communicatioo 28 

lntersectionality focus 30 

Tracking and reporting on 31 

our progress 

Achieving a broader impact 32 

Gender: just one of many significant 33 

barriers to equality 

C RW .507 .005.2673 



W ELCOME TO COUNTRY 

MELBOURNE 

Wornin Ojeka (meaning Welcome) MaHan biik biik. Boonwuffung Nairm derp 

bordrupen utherweelam. 

On beha~ of the Boonwurrung, a language group of the greater Ku I in nations, we 
welcome you to the estate of the Yaluk-ut Weelam c lan of the Boonwurrung, whose 

lands extend from the Werribee River, to the south-eastern suburbs of Melbourne -

where Crown is located. 

According to Boonwurrung traditions, this land is protected by the creator Bundji I, who 

travels as the eagle, and by Waang, who protects the waterways and travels as the craw. 

Bundjil always taught the Boonwurrrung to welcome guests and asked that all guests 

made two commitments - to obey and respect the traditions and ways of Bundjil , and 

not to harm the land or children of Bundjil. 

As the spirit of our ancestors live on, let the wisdom and the spirit of generosity which 

Bundjil taught us influence the opportunities that may arise at this meeting place. 

Wornin Ojeka Mar-ran biik biik. Boonwurrung Nairm derp bordrupen uther wee/am. 

Welcome, respect our sacred laws and en joy our beautiful traditional Country. 

Plnbata Carolyn Briggs 
Boonwurrung 

Crown Resons Gender Action Plan F20 - F23 

PERTH 

Nga/Juk jurapiny wanju nunnuk 

ngallah Noongar Boodja 

Nitjah ngallah moorts Boodja 

koorah koorah 

Nitjah ngallah kart/ah Boodja 

koorah waanginy gaany ngallah 

jurapiny moort ngallah boodja 

Koorah waanginy kedala 

ngallah yaakiny ngallak Noongar 

Nyitiyang 

Ngallak, Ngallak-a gaany 

We are pleased to welcome you to 

our Noongar country. 

This is our ancestors' land from the 

dream time. 

This is our homeland of history. 

And as one we are proud people of 

our land. 

Through history till today, we stand 

together black and white. 

We are, we are one. 

Written by Noongar Elders and Ngallak Koort Boodja Group members Doolan-Leisha 

Eatts, Yuraleen Dorothy Winmar and Frederick Joseph Pickett 

By the banks of the bilya-maarl (Swan river, Perth), we mark respect for the living Culture 

of the traditional custodians of the land. 

SYDNEY 

We would like to acknowledge the Traditional Owners of the land on which Crawn 

Sydney is being built, the Gadigal People of the Eora Nation and pay our respects to 

Elders past, present and emerging. 

CRW .507 .005.267 4 

1 



2

WHY YOU NEED TO READ THIS GENDER 
ACTION PLAN  

At Crown, we believe that all employees should have every opportunity to reach their full potential. 
This belief underpins Crown’s overall commitment to diversity and inclusion in our workplaces with 
our focus on gender equity a core element.

Crown’s journey towards gender equity has been progressing 

well over the last few years. We have focused on addressing 

key policy issues and, as a result, we have implemented 

important policies including Paid Parental Leave, Purchased 

Leave, Domestic Violence Support Leave and flexible working 

arrangements. These policies are at industry standard or above. 

These policy changes help to remove some of the economic 

disparities that may arise between male and female employees 

at Crown. It is clear these disparities exist across Australia with 

women typically retiring with only 47 per cent of the retirement 

savings of men. The two factors driving this are that, on 

average, women spend less time in the workforce and are paid 

less when they are. Crown’s policies are aimed at addressing 

the causes of these disparities. 

To determine the extent of any pay inequality at Crown, we 

asked specialist analysts to undertake a review of salary 

levels across all roles at Crown. That review revealed that on a 

like-for-like basis we reward our male and female employees 

at a comparable level. Despite that, the data we report to the 

Workplace Gender Equality Agency (WGEA) indicates that the 

average salary we pay women at Crown is 9.3 per cent less 

than the average salary for men. 

When we look behind the averages from the WGEA data, the 

disparity is in a large part due to the lack of equal gender 

representation across all levels of our organisation. We are 

committed to addressing the imbalance through this Gender 

Action Plan (GAP). The GAP sets out a range of initiatives that 

will help, over time, improve the level of female representation 

across all levels in the organisation. 

Beyond the policy changes and the GAP, Crown is committed 

to leading by example and achieving gender equity by 

encouraging a shift in mindset. We have made a start on this 

through the introduction of our Gender Fitness app which 

measures the balance of attendance and contribution of all 

employees in meetings. We will also be implementing further 

cultural initiatives and engaging communication channels to 

create an environment that allows women at all levels to seek 

and achieve career advancement. 

Our vision for gender equity is to reach a point where every 

person, regardless of gender, who decides to work with Crown, 

has the same opportunity to advance and is rewarded equally 

for their success. 

Ken Barton

Chief Financial Officer & CEO Crown Digital 

Male Champion of Change 

8

CRW.507.005.2675



CRW.507.005.2676 



4

WHAT AUSTRALIA’S WORKPLACE GENDER 
EQUALITY AGENCY SAYS ABOUT GENDER 
EQUALITY

Workplace gender equality is achieved when people are able to access and enjoy the same rewards,  
resources and opportunities regardless of gender. 

Australia, along with many countries worldwide, has made 

significant progress towards gender equality in recent 

decades, particularly in education, health and female workforce 

participation. 

However, the gender gap in the Australian workforce is still 

prevalent; women continue to earn less than men, are less likely 

to advance their careers as far as men, and accumulate less 

retirement or superannuation savings. At the same time, men 

have less access than women to family-friendly policies such as 

parental leave or flexible working arrangements. 

The aim of gender equality in the workplace is to achieve 

broadly equal outcomes for women and men, not necessarily 

outcomes that are exactly the same for all. To achieve this 

requires:

• workplaces to provide equal pay for work of equal or 

comparable value;

• removal of barriers to the full and equal participation of 

women in the workforce; 

• access to all occupations and industries, including 

leadership roles, regardless of gender; and

• elimination of discrimination on the basis of gender, 

particularly in relation to family and carer responsibilities. 

Achieving gender equality is important for workplaces not only 

because it is ‘fair’ and ‘the right thing to do’, but because it 

is also linked to a country’s overall economic performance. 

Workplace gender equality is associated with:

• improved national productivity and economic growth;

• future proofing the Australian economy;

• increased organisational performance;

• enhanced ability of companies to attract talent and retain 

employees; and

• enhanced organisational reputation.

The above information and more can be found at:  

www.wgea.gov.au/learn/about-workplace-gender-equality

 

8

CRW.507.005.2677



CRW.507.005.2678 



6 

OUR JOURNEY SO FAR 

While this is our first GAP, we are proud to say that we have been 

working for many years at ensuring that our female employees 
are supported and respected. 

For some time, we developed various programs and initiatives without having 

an articulated focus on gender equity to drive them. We are very proud of these 

initiatives that we continue to promote, and demonstrate that we've been listening and 

responding to the needs of our female employees, and the community generally, 

for a long time. Since establishing our dedicated program to advance gender equity, 

we have achieved many more milestones, some of which are featured in the 

following timeline. 

,.. First instance of the Crown Women In 

Management Program launched 

2004 

Enhancement of our flexible return to 

work options and shift flexibility (such 

as shift swaps and pick ups) 

2006 

Nursing mother's room set up on site 

at Crown Melbourne 

CRW .507 .005.2679 

2012 2014 



GENDER EQUITY PRODUCES REAL 
RESULTS - FOR CROWN AND FOR 
OUR EMPLOYEES 

Holding events, launching initiatives, and even changing policies are admirable and 

noteworthy actions, but we need to measure, see and understand the effect they have 

on our employees and culture. 

The personal stories in this GAP remind us of how policies and actions can make a 

difference ... how each of us can make a difference. 

_. Enhancements to ERIK App -

including ability to arrange shift 

swaps and pickups via the app 

_. Crown introduced five days of paid 

leave for employees experiencing 

family and domestic violence 

2015 

_. Crown Perth and Corrective Services 

partnership (employment opportunity 

for females who have been subject to 

domestic violence) 

Crown Resons Gender Action Plan F20 - F23 

Revised Women of Crown 

Management Program was launched, 

w ith 12 female employees in the 

inaugural intake 

2016 

Role of Group Manager Gender 

Equity was created and fi lied 

CRW .507 .005.2680 



$£NIOR 

MANAGERS 

3 
OTHER MANAGERS 

4. 
SENIOR 

MANAGERS 

4 
OTHER MANAGERS 

CRW .507 .005.2681 



CRW .507 .005.2682 

MEETING REPRESENTATION 2019 YTD 

DID YOU KNOW IN AUSTRALIA ... 

Although we have legislation that prohibits discrimination based on gender, women 

continue to be over-represented in areas of disadvantage and under-represented in 

positions of power and influence. 

Women are also more likely to be in low-paid, casual work than men, 

and therefore have less financial security, and less ability to 

build savings for their retirement. 

••••• • •• ••• •• • • •••••••• ••••••••• Wiii' 9 



CRW.507.005.2683 



PUTTING DIVERSITY ON THE AGENDA 

GENDER FITNESS 

When it comes to gender equity, Crown wants to be disruptive. 

Recognising a need for cultural change and to get diversity on 

the agenda, Crown developed the Gender Fitness app which 

was launched in December 2017. 

Gender Fitness is an innovative, in-house, digital solution that forms a part of our 

diversity and inclusion strategy. The core value of Gender Fitness is to capture real

time data from meeting interactions to increase awareness of diversity and inclusion 

and embrace change to deliver an improved gender balance across Crown. 

After attending a meeting, employees can give feedback about the inclusiveness 

of the meeting, based on whether they felt that they had the chance to make a 

contribution to the meeting, and whether they felt that their contribution was respected. 

Feedback is private and anonymous. 

When hosting a meeting, the meeti1g organiser will receive a gender fitness score for 

that meeting based on every attendee's feedback. There's a dashboard that gives 

individuals an ongoing score of their gender fitness along with detailed and time

based information so they can track their progress, just like they might with an app that 

tracks physical fitness. 

This simple app is easy to use and gives Crown an accurate measurement of our 

progress towards achieving gender balance and positive inclusion outcomes as an 

employer. It gives all of us the opportunity to influence behaviour in order to achieve 

greater gender balance and inclusion. 

Like many initiatives that help raise awareness of issues, Gender Fitness can assist in 

making a difference to many of our employees, regardless of gender. 

Crown Resons Gander Action Plan F20 - F23 

GENDER 
FITNESS 

\..,) 

PROVIDE YOUP 
FEEDBACK NOW 

CRW .507 .005.2684 

Why Gender Fitness? 

The Gender Fitness opp came out 

of a strong sense that we needed 

an approoch to measuring and 

improving gender balance in our 

workplace that was innovative and 

easy. Rather than impose quotas or 

targets or measure past performance, 

we wanted a way of drawing people's 

attention to gender balance on a 

day-lo-day basis - rather than twelve 

months later when we reviewed our 

performance. 

We believe that influencing the way 

we <:ipproach meetings and how 

we conduct ourselves in meetings 

is a significant w~ of influencing 

behaviours and, in the long term, 

improving gender balance in our 

workplace. 

Ken Barton 

Chief Finaicial Officer 

& CEO Crcmn Digital 

Male Champion of Change 

• ••••• • •••••••• • •••••••• ••••••••• Wiii' 11 



Meet Tim 
Group Manager - Network & Security for Crown 

'I spent seven months on primary carer's leave with my daughter, Harper. To be 

honest, it was nothing like I expected before, but in a good way. In fact, it is a lot harder 

than anyone would ever anticipate, so it gave me a lot more respect for everybody who 

takes care of children all day. 

When you are at work, you are busy doing things, but you can stil I tal!<e it easy on 

some days, and then you go home and rest. But with this, you do not get a chance 

to rest: your eyes have to be on the chi Id all the time. As a result, you are pretty 

exhausted by the end of the day. 

The hardest part for me was probably adjusting to how full the days are and how 

you just need to be "switched on" all the time. I had never done anything like that 

before, but my wife was pretty good. She coached me with whatever I needed to do. 

Altogether, it was a challenging and rewarding experience. 

The process of taking the leave was pretty straight forward at Crown. My assistant 

manager and my manager assisted me while I was a11ay, but I also kept in touch with 

all my colleagues. I knew that the guys in the office could handle anything so I did not 

worry about it too much. 

They are pretty self-sufficient and were all fine without me. Coming back was also 

easy. I am doing four days a week now for a while, and everybody is very supportive 

of my decision. I would recommend this experience to literally everyone, as it is very 

eye-opening. 

It gives parents a lot more respect for the whole process. I think it als.o helps to raise 

more well-adjusted children as they can experience both sides of parenting. When 

people ask me how my break was, I tell them that it was actually not .a break. So, if you 

choose to stay at home with your baby, do not think that because you are not at work, 

you are going to be on holiday. As I mentioned before, I really had no idea what I was 

getting into.' 

CRW .507 .005.2685 



CRW.507.005.2686 



14

forging female leaders
For the past three years, as part of our commitment to gender 
equity, Crown Melbourne has run a dedicated program for  
high-performing, high-potential female talent in the business  
– the Women of Crown Management Program (WOCMP).  

2018 saw our second intake of participants successfully complete the WOCMP,  

with many of the participants earning promotions and awards for their service.

Each program runs for 12 months and is made up of:

• Individual coaching sessions with an Executive Coach to discuss their career goals 

and highlight areas they wish to work on throughout the WOCMP, including concepts 

to discuss with their mentor. 

• Mentoring with a member of the Crown Executive Team. 

• Externally facilitated workshops and assessments to focus on individual strengths 

and how to get the most from their mentor sessions, as well as other seminars and 

workshops on related topics.

• Lunch sessions with members of the Executive Team to gain further insights into 

specific areas of the business.

• Networking events organised and run by the participants. 

• An end-of-program session to confirm and celebrate individual progress and think 

about their future developments and opportunities.

In 2017, Crown Perth launched its first Executive Sub Committee. This program is for men 

and women in senior roles at Crown Perth that have expressed an interest in progressing 

and gives them exposure and opportunity to further see how the next level of leaders 

interact and make business decisions. The program gives senior leaders the opportunity 

to aid in identifying and resolving real-time issues and identifying new opportunities for 

Crown Perth to pursue in delivering on its mission and vision.  

2018 saw the conclusion of the first round of the Perth Executive Sub Committee  

and the start of the second round. 

Work is currently being undertaken to have both the WOCMP and Executive Sub 

Committee programs at Melbourne and Perth.

Meet Lauren 

Lauren started at Crown in 2014 as 

Business Development Manager for 

Food and Beverage. Lauren was a 

participant of the 2017 WOCMP and 

that year Lauren was named Crown 

Melbourne Manager of the Year and 

was promoted to General Manager 

Events and Conferencing.

Lauren and her partner Matt (Crown 

Melbourne’s Director of Wine) 

welcomed their first child in June 

2019 and are sharing the care by 

each taking six months primary 

carers leave. 

8

CRW.507.005.2687



Meet Judy 

Judy started at Crown Perth in 2009 

as Crown Perth's Entertainment 

Manager looking after both Burswood 

Dome and Theatre. Following the 

demolition of the Dome, Judy took on 

several other departments including 

Audio Visual, Visual Design and 

Events and was promoted to General 

Manager - Events md Entertanment 

in 2014. In 2016, the addition of 

The Palms, Melbourne resulted in a 

further promotion to Group General 

Manager, Crown Theatres. 

Judy was a member of the Perth 

Executive Sub Committee in 2019 

and throughout this process gained 

a much greater appreciation of the 

functioning across the whole resort, 

not just of her areas of responsibility. 

Crown Resons Gander Action Plan F20 - F23 

Meet Cori 

Cori started at Crown Melbourne as 

a Dealer in 2004 and quickly worked 

her way up the Table Games ladder, 

becoming Casino Manager in 2012 

before being promoted to General 

Manager Table Games, Crown Perth 

in2016. 

Cori was a participant in both the 

first WOCMP and Executive SUb 

Committee programs and has 

represented Crown at a number of 

events, including Women in Gaming 

& Hospitality Australasia, where she 

has spoken to large groups on her 

own experiences as a mother, leader 

and female in the gaming industry. 

CRW .507 .005.2688 

Did you know? 

Projections by KPMG indicate that 

if the gap in workforce participation 

between men and women was 

halved: 

• Australia's annual GDP would 

increase by $60 billion in just 

20 years; and 

• our living standards would rise by 

$140 billion in 1ust 20 years. 

• • •••• ••••••••• • •••••••• ••••••••• Wiii' 15 



16

gender equity is more than just changes 
in the workplace 
With one in three women experiencing sexual or physical violence in their lifetime, gender-based 
violence occurs at an alarming rate globally and perpetuates gender inequality.

There is also a financial impact on victims. Sometimes it is 

through financial abuse instigated by the spouse. In other 

cases it is the cost of escaping the situation, and in some 

cases it’s both. The cost of moving to a safe location and all 

associated costs can be extreme and stressful. 

In November 2015, Crown introduced five paid days of family 

and domestic violence leave per year for full time and part 

time employees that may be personally experiencing violence 

or supporting a family member that is experiencing violence. 

This policy was introduced to further support our employees 

by giving them paid time off to attend to matters arising from 

violent situations (moving and/or attending court) without the 

employee having the extra burden of having to request unpaid 

leave or utilise other types of leave. 

In November 2018, Crown extended this offering and 

introduced uncapped paid family and domestic violence 

leave. This was in recognition of the strain women in particular 

experience during times of domestic violence. Crown’s 

uncapped paid family and domestic violence leave is a small 

change that makes a big difference.

Crown recognises that paid time off is just one element of 

supporting those employees experiencing family and domestic 

violence. 

In addition, Crown provides:

• A safe and secure working environment;

• Technical support – including the ability to change phone 

number, email address or passwords, and checking 

security of devices (hacking etc.);

• Assistance from the Security Department, including 

escorting employees that wish to raise a matter with local 

law enforcement; 

• A dedicated Family and Domestic Violence counselling 

supporting line (through external Employee Assistance 

Program);

• Trained HR teams and contact officers;

• Financial capabilities sessions throughout the year to 

improve financial literacy; and

• Support from external providers around safety and 

security, legal assistance, housing assistance and 

financial assistance. 

Advance Australia “Fair”?

Women in Australia earn just 83 cents 

for every dollar men earn.

Based on figures over the past 

20 years, the lifetime wages of a 

woman currently 25 years old will be 

$1 million less than those of a man 

currently 25 years old ($1.4 million 

and $2.4 million respectively).

A study of the top 200 companies in 

Australia found female Chief Financial 

Officers and Chief Operating Officers 

earned half the amount of their male 

counterparts.

The average Australian woman retires 

with approximately 40% less in her 

superannuation than the average 

man. 

Women in Australia are 2.5 times 

more likely to live in poverty in their 

old age than men.

Australia still has relatively low female 

participation rates in comparison to 

many of our OECD peers. In fact, 

Australia’s international ranking for 

female participation in the workforce 

has dropped from 40th position to 

52nd. 

8

CRW.507.005.2689



CRW .507 .005.2690 

Crown Resons Gender Action Plan F20 - F23 



18 

CROWN'S GENDER 
ACTION PLAN F20 - F23 

In early 2017, Crown strengthened its commitment to Gender 
Equity by establishing two Gender Advisory Groups (one in 
Perth and the other in Melbourne). 

Each Group is made up of 10-1 2 Senior Managers from the business to form 

gender equity strategies and initiatives across the properties. 

Overall direction and guidance is provided by the Crown Gender Equity Steering 

Committee - comprised of seven Crown Executives. 

On establishment, the Advisory Groups consulted with the business to prioritise 

property specific actions. Key priority areas included the launch of paid parental 

leave. the Gender Fitness app and uncapped domestic v iolence leave. 

The work of the Advisory Groups has continued with the development of Crown's 

first GAP. This GAP has five areas of focus: 

Recruitment and Promotion 

Retention and Development 

Cuhural Change and Comrrunication 

Flexibility 

lnterseciionality focus 

The GAP has mid-term goals (2-3 years) and aims for a long-term position {5 

years) to ensure progress tcrwards gender equity is constant and realistic. 

Crown Sydney provides an opportunity to embed these initiatives from opening. 

CRW .507 .005.2691 



The diagram below reflects Crown Resorts as at 31 March 2019 0fVGEA reporting) 

10% 
KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL* 

32% 
OTHER EXECUTIVES/GENERAL M ANAGER 

43% 
SENIOR M ANAGERS 

42% 
OTHER M ANAGERS 

43% 
NON-M ANAGERS * As defined by the Worf<piace Gender EQuality Agency 

Crown Resons Gender Action Plan F20 - F23 

CRW .507 .005.2692 

40:40:20 

Crown currently has an overall company split of 42.5% women 
and 57.5% men, which has been consistent for the last few years. 

The proportion of women across each level of the business (frontline through to board) 

varies but is lower in more senior roles. 

In order to address this imbalance, we are aiming for a 40:40:20 (40% women, 

40% men and 20% flexible) gender representation across each level (in line w ith WGEA 

balance), rather than a 50:50 representation. In setting this target , consideration was 

given to the current gender representation at Crown and what would be a realistic 

target that factors in future appointments, promotion opportunities and retention rates. 

This target allows under-represented and over-represented areas to progress towards a 

greater balance under more than one combination, not just a stattic target. 

For example, a 40:40:20 target could be achieved by six men and four women, 

six women and four men or five and five. 

To achieve this, we will aim to progressively increase female participation at each level, 

attract more female talent, build our internal pipeline and promote our high-performing, 

high-potential women. Although the overall split between women and men has 

remained consistent, pleasingly from 2018-2019 we saw an increase in women in each 

of the WGEA categories except Non-Managers. 

In 2019, Crown custom built an interactive real time reporting dashboard dedicated to 

gender equity. This dashboard shows current and rolling data by gender on areas of 

promotion, flexible work arrangements and parental leave to name a few areas. 

The rate at which women progress through the company is also being tracked to 

measure our progress towards 40:40:20. 

• ••••• ••••••••• • •••••••• ••••••••• Wiii' 19 



20

RECRUITMENT & PROMOTION

Recruitment refers to all aspects of the process to select an internal or external candidate to fill an 
employment vacancy, or to promote an employee. 

This includes identifying the need, creating a position description, advertising, selecting interviewees, interviewing and other evaluation 

processes, shortlisting, and selection. Promotion refers to the selection of an existing employee to fill an existing or new role that has 

greater responsibility and decision-making, as well as opportunities for career advancement. To impact promotion rates, we believe it is 

critical to have a strong pipeline of women coming through all levels of the organisation and this starts with recruitment practices.

aim 
To achieve 40:40:20 

representation across the group, 

with each Executive accountable 

for achieving this target within 

their business unit. 

ACTION RESPONSIBILITY TARGETS PROGRESS TO DATE

Diversity in Attraction

• Develop attraction plans that position 

Crown as an Employer of Choice with 

specific campaigns, including a female 

centric employee value proposition to 

address under-representation 

Executive General 

Managers (EGMs) 

Human Resources 

(HR), Recruitment 

and Group Manager 

Gender Equity

Mid-term goal: Develop a greater 

understanding of what contributes to being 

an employer of choice for women as well as 

develop an understanding as to why particular 

roles may be under-represented 

Updated, targeted Employee Value Propositions 

in place for each property which link to targeted 

attraction plans

Long-term position: attraction rates at 50:50

• Work already undertaken in recruitment 

processes to attract more women into 

under-represented roles, including 

language review of advertisements 

and targeted database searches of 

predominant job boards (such as Seek, 

LinkedIn etc.) 

• A flexible working arrangements policy has 

been launched in Melbourne, with work 

underway for the policy to extend to Perth 

• Crown’s Employee Value Proposition is 

being reviewed with a focus on initiatives to 

attract under-represented areas

Diversity in Recruitment & Promotion

• To require that there is gender diversity in all 

candidate short lists and diversity in gender 

representation for Senior Management 

involved in the interview process for 

all Senior Management and Executive 

positions within the group. This relates to 

internal promotion exercises and external 

recruitment

CEO - Australian 

Resorts, EGMs, HR, 

Recruitment and all 

Hiring Managers

Mid-term goal: At least one female candidate 

and interviewer throughout recruitment process 

for every role from middle management, 

specialist and above

Long-term position: Greater diversity of 

candidates and selection panels for every role

• Recruitment policies updated and process 

reinforced by Executive Chairman

8

CRW.507.005.2693



ACTION 

Diversity In Recruitment & Promotion 

• To ensure that a consistent and transparent 

recruitment process is undertaken for all 

roles across the group. To require that the 

recruitment process is diverse, by actively 

targeting under represented genders for 

specific roles/areas of the business 

• Assessment Centres and promotion 

exercises are developed and reviewed 

enabling appropriate gender representation 

at all stages of the selection process 

Crown Resons Gender Action Plan F20 - F23 

.. 
Recruitment and 

Hiring Managers 

Recruitment and 

Hiring Managers 

Mid-term goal: Under-represented areas of the 

business to work towards 40:40:20 through the 

recruitment process 

Long-term position: Group to achieve 

40:40:20 at all levels in recruitment for new/ 

replacement positons 

Mid-term goal: Establish baselines for current 

state and analyse current trends through 

creation of a reporting framework. Reporting 

and Assessment Centre Framework in place 

to support recruitment process across all 

applicable areas of the business 

Long-term goal: Identify, through reporting, 

further areas of focus with ultimate aim to 

achieve 40:40:20 in assessment centres and for 

hires 

CRW .507 .005.2694 

PROGRESS TO DATE 

• Targeted campaigns have been run across 

various areas of the bus~ness to attract 

under-represented gend ers. Campaigns 

are reviewed throughout to ensure best 

outcomes 

• Currently, Melbourne assessment centres 

are informally reported on as part of the 

recruitment process to track attraction and 

selection rates by gender 

• ••••• • •• ••• •• • • •••••••• ••••••••• Wiii' 21 



22

RETENTION & DEVELOPMENT

Retention and development refers to what we do to keep employees at Crown motivated,  
rewarded and engaged. 

Key initiatives and mechanisms include but are not limited to the following; learning and development opportunities, reward and 

recognition programs, social programs and activities, community work, internal and external discounts and benefits, competitive 

remuneration, working conditions, leave entitlements and wellbeing programs. 

aim 
To ensure Crown retains women 

at a level equitable or better 

than the retention of their male 

colleagues and that women 

at Crown receive appropriate 

opportunities and encouragement 

so that they benefit from all that 

Crown has to offer.

ACTION RESPONSIBILITY TARGETS PROGRESS TO DATE

Leadership participation

• Maintain the level of female participation 

in leadership and development programs 

(which incorporates targeted mentoring/

coaching elements) across the group at no 

less than 45% of all participants

All Business Units 

(BU) Heads

Mid-term goal: Target of 45% female 

participation rate

Long-term position: Women’s participation 

enables 40:40:20 in our overall employment and 

development statistics

• This target is currently monitored quarterly 

across the group and is trending in the 

right direction. This target is also reported 

annually in the Crown Annual Report

• Leadership programs have been separately 

developed across both properties and 

are currently under review with a view to 

implement consistent programs across  

the Group

Relevant programs to support progression

• Conduct regular reviews of leadership and 

development programs to ensure they 

remain targeted and relevant 

• Include dedicated diversity and inclusion 

modules in management training to drive 

awareness

Group General 

Manager Learning & 

Development (Group 

GM L&D)

Mid-term goal: Group program ‘review 

framework’ to be established and industry 

benchmarking to be conducted

Long-term position: Review framework 

embedded and aligned across the group

• Current leadership programs are reviewed 

and updated on a regular basis

8

CRW.507.005.2695



.. 
Relevant programs to support progression Group GM L&D and 

Design and manage development programs Group Manager 

based on the needs of talent management Gender Equity 

participants, inc lud ing Women of Crown 

Management Program (WOCMP) and 

Executive Sub Committee and ensure 

these programs are implemented across 

properties 

Pay parity 

• Conduct a review on an annual basis of the 

remuneration for all roles within the group to 

ascertain the existence of any gender pay 

gaps and to implement appropriate action 

plans to close any such gaps 

• Strengthen financial security for women at 

Crown by providing superannuation and 

financial capabilities sessions 

Investing In talent 

Implement a group w ide talent framework. 

Use the framework to run property talent 

management programs 

Crown Resons Gender Action Plan F20 - F23 

CEO - Australian 

Resorts 

CFO - Australian 

Resorts 

EGMsHR 

Group Manager 

Gender Equity 

EGMs - HA and BU 

Heads 

Mid-term goal: Programs are implemented at 

both properties 

Long-term position: Programs are reviewed 

for relevance and outcomes, and enhanced 

where required 

Mid-term goal: Communicate pay review to 

employees, to promote transparency 

Long-term position: Greater transparency and 

understanding of pay at Crown and difference 

between 'like-for-like' and 'role' gaps 

Mid-term goal: Ensuring all employees 

have access to various tools to assist in 

understanding superannuation and personal 

finance 

Long-term position: Further policy changes 

to bridge the impact that caring responsibilities 

have on superannuation 

Mid-term goal: Talent Management Program to 

be aligned and implemented across the group 

and to bui Id a pipeline and talent pool of women 

across all levels of the business 

Long-term position: Encourage greater cross 

property development opportunities. Introduce 

a system to further enhance and manage the 

talent management framework that promotes 

equitable career opportunities to achieve 

40:40:20 at all levels across the group 

. . . - e I• 

• Currently, WOCMP takes place only in 

Melbourne and Executive Sub Committee 

only in Perth. There is an active review 

underway to have both running at each 

property 

External party engaged rn 2018 to validate 

internal pay gap review. Review confirmed 

there is no material 'like-for-like' pay gap 

• Annual reviews to be conducted internally 

with external reviews to take place every 

two years 

• Sessions have been run across the group 

with a focus on "women and super" as well 

as personal finance focus for all genders 

• These sessions are currently being 

incorporated in the yearly training calendar 

• A Talent Management project has 

commenced to review, align and strengthen 

the talent management programs across 

the group 

• 

CRW .507 .005.2696 

23 



24

ACTION RESPONSIBILITY TARGETS PROGRESS TO DATE

Investing in talent

• Implement a development plan framework 

to be tailored to individuals that are part of 

the Talent Management Program 

Talent Management 

Project Team 

Mid-term goal: Framework established to 

further develop identified talent

Long-term position: Framework embedded 

and well utilised across the group

• Incorporated into the Talent Management 

project which is currently underway

Talent retention

• Implement retention plans for key talent/

key roles

• Develop a further understanding of why 

employees leave

Executive Teams

HR Ops

Performance & 

Systems 

Group Manager 

Gender Equity

Mid-term goal: Explore ‘stay interviews’ to 

further understand why employees choose to 

stay within the group

Develop a suite of retention strategies that may 

be used to retain key talent 

Long-term position: Embedded retention 

plans for key roles/talent implemented across 

the group and equitable retention of women

• Exit surveys and interviews currently 

conducted across the group

Promote ‘sharing the care’

• Review and refine parental leave process 

including Keeping in Touch (KIT) days 

• Increase flexibility in taking parental leave 

for all employees

• Increase ability and acceptance of “sharing 

the care” to work towards removing gender 

stereotypes for caring responsibilities 

Group Manager 

Gender Equity

Mid-term goal: KIT days easily accessible and 

increase in utilisation

Long-term position: Parental leave process to 

be further understood, encouraged and utilised 

in a way that is flexible and meets employee 

needs as best as possible

• Introduction of paid parental leave 

December 2017

• KIT days have long been utilised at Crown 

and currently the program is under review 

regarding access to, and flexibility and take 

up rates of, KIT days

• Project underway to create further 

awareness of the parental leave process to 

ensure ease of taking and returning from 

parental leave

• Explore ways to reduce the burden (time 

and financial) of child care and the impact 

this has on returning to work

Group Manager 

Gender Equity

Mid-term goal: Explore partnerships with child 

care providers to increase child care support

Long-term position: Increased ease of 

returning to work due to greater childcare 

support options (financial and non-financial) 

• Child care school holiday program piloted 

in Melbourne, project underway to assess a 

further trial in Melbourne and a pilot in Perth

• Further childcare assistance options are 

being explored

8

CRW.507.005.2697



CRW .507 .005.2698 

Crown Resons Gender Action Plan F20 - F23 



26

FLEXIBILITY 

Flexibility refers to what we do to ensure our employees can work flexibly (work life efficiency),  
and can include flexible work arrangements. 

aim 
To have flexibility for every role  

at Crown.

ACTION RESPONSIBILITY TARGETS PROGRESS TO DATE

Flex for all roles

• To have flexibility for all roles across the 

group – implemented and promoted

• Maintain and increase records to create 

benchmarks and tracking of uptake of 

flexibility across the group

HR Performance and 

Systems team and all 

managers

Mid-term goal: Flexibility Policy to be aligned 

and launched across all properties

Establish record keeping and reporting for 

flexibility take up

Long-term position: All roles advertised with 

Flex Options

• Flexibility Policy updated and relaunched in 

Melbourne (January 2019). Supporting Flex 

Matrix completed – outlining Flex Options 

for every Melbourne role. Perth Flex Matrix 

is in progress. An approach of “if not, why 

not” should be taken when looking at each 

role

• System changes made to allow for record 

keeping and reporting, with existing 

arrangements incorporated in custom-built 

dashboard

• “Flex Pack” created for HR and Managers 

to increase awareness and management of 

flexible requests

Flex leave options

• Align flexible leave options across the 

group – such as purchased leave

• Greater promotion and communication of 

Flex Options to drive greater usage

Executive Teams

Communications/PR 

teams

Group Manager 

Gender Equity

Mid-term goal: Flexible Leave Policy to be 

aligned and launched across all properties

Long-term position: Regular communications 

to normalise and encourage further take up of 

flexibility options

• Employees have a choice to take long 

service and parental leave at full pay or at 

half pay for twice the duration

• Policy changed to provide option to 

purchase additional 4 weeks of leave per 

year across the group

8

CRW.507.005.2699



Access to nex leave 

Ensure parental and domestic violence 

leave is accessible 

Using technology to drive flexlblllty 

• To recognise inefficiencies and embrace 

technology that integrates flexibility into 

roles by changing the way activities and 

tasks are performed hence uplifting output 

• Communicating availability of technologies 

to the broader business 

Crown Resons Gender Action Plan F20 - F23 

.. 
Executive Teams 

All teams driving 

change with IT 

enabling solutions 

Mid-term goal: Enhance current parental 

leave provisions to allow greater flexibility in 

accessing, taking and returning from leave 

Long-term position: Further leave support 

and policy changes explored to provide greater 

financial security for employees 

Mid-term goal: Leverage early adopters and 

pursue opportunities to install solutions that 

re-define roles, uplifts output and embrace 

flexibility 

Long-term position: Consistent technology 

experience that integrates flexibility with all types 

of roles and improves employee experience 

CRW .507 .005.2700 

Paid parental leave (12 weeks' pay for 

primary and two weeks' pay for secondary 

carers) introduced in 2017 

• Uncapped paid domestic violence leave 

introduced in 2018 

• Shift Swaps on mobile ERIK to enable 

employees to design the ir own rosters 

Progressive move to cloud technologies 

that promotes a flexible work environment 

for inbuilt and external programs utilised 

across the group 

• Tools embedded across teams to share 

knowledge in real-time resulting in 

improvements and efficiencies through 

collaboration applications 

• Crown's internally developed Chatbot 

(computer program) deployed to 

supplement the workforce with relevant 

and timely information through mobile 

application 

• • • • • • • •• ••• •• • • •••••••• ••••••••• Wiii' 27 



28

CULTURAL CHANGE & COMMUNICATION 

Cultural Change and Communication refers to creating a workplace characterised by diversity, 
inclusion and respect. 

This includes setting and communicating policies, standards, and guidelines about expected behaviour, establishing and supporting 

committees and groups that work to bring about cultural change and supporting employees who have concerns around issues such  

as equality and discrimination.

aim 
To ensure that all employees 

work in a safe and respectful 

environment where their 

contributions are welcomed and 

valued.

ACTION RESPONSIBILITY TARGETS PROGRESS TO DATE

Open interactive many-to-many 

communication 

• Increase two way communications 

throughout and across the business

• Introduce a social media communication 

platform with a gender equity focus

• Have targeted and regular communications 

focussed on diversity and inclusion and the 

associated benefits

GM Table Games 

Operations 

Melbourne (for pilot) 

GM IT Strategy

Group Manager 

Gender Equity 

Mid-term goal: Social media communications 

platform to be piloted, with a focus on extending 

gender equity messaging and communications 

to the wider workforce

Long-term position: To have a 

communications platform that is intuitive to 

individual preferences and allows for real time 

two-way communications. The platform will 

drive greater awareness and discussion of 

gender equity initiatives 

• Pilot project for the new social platform is 

underway

• Crown Melbourne has introduced a monthly 

Gender Equity Newsletter with Perth 

following suit which provides updates on 

property initiatives, broader gender equity 

news and profiles employees that are 

passionate about gender equity

Supporting employees’ choice to work 

flexibly

• Promote a culture that supports and 

acknowledges flexible working hours due to 

24/7 nature of business with consideration 

for group roles, operational shift work and 

business demands

Executive and 

Business Operations  

Team (BOT) and all 

managers

Mid-term goal: Conduct a benchmark survey 

that establishes baseline for level of support 

for working flexibly and understanding what 

flexibility means to employees 

Long-term position: Flexible work to be more 

common than not with a culture that supports 

this as represented in engagement surveys 

• Currently both properties already operate 

with varied hours, shifts, days and locations 

based on business requirements

• A review has been conducted to measure 

what types of flexibility can be offered for 

each position

• Technology has been implemented to 

create more flexible work practices

8

CRW.507.005.2701



Crown Resorts Gender Action Plan F20 – F23 29

ACTION RESPONSIBILITY TARGETS PROGRESS TO DATE

Zero tolerance to bullying, harassment and 

sexual harassment in the workplace

• Review practices to ensure “barrier free” 

access to all complaint processes

Managers

HR Operations

Mid-term goal: Participate in / implement 

recommendations from the national inquiry into 

sexual harassment in Australian workplaces

Long-term position: Explore ‘up stander’ 

campaigns to strengthen reporting of potential 

incidents 

• Each property currently has specific 

discrimination policies, processes and 

support both internal (Contact Officers 

and HR) and external (Alert/STOPline) 

for employees to raise complaints and 

protected disclosures

Accountability for Diversity and Inclusion 

• Diversity and Inclusion KPIs for all salaried 

roles across the business

Corporate 

Responsibility 

Committee

Executive Teams 

Mid-term goal: Introduction of Diversity and 

Inclusion KPIs for all salaried roles

Long-term position: Diversity and Inclusion 

KPIs for all roles to be targeted and specific

• All salaried employees have individual 

performance reviews based on personal 

and business performance. Diversity and 

Inclusion KPIs to be implemented in F20

Identify and eliminate unconscious bias 

• Increase awareness and understanding of 

unconscious bias

• Strengthen existing frameworks to limit 

biases occurring

L&D and Recruitment Mid-term goal: Regular awareness campaigns 

to be run across properties as reminder of 

unconscious bias

Long-term position: Review of frameworks 

throughout the business (recruitment, 

development etc.) to remove potential for bias 

to occur

• Unconscious bias training for senior 

leadership group underway

• Review underway of how we currently train 

and how to enhance training packages

• Group alignment of provision of 

unconscious bias training to managers that 

participate in the recruitment process

Measure our progress with Gender Fitness

• Gender Fitness targets for both diversity 

(attendance) and inclusion (feedback)

• Increase usage and application of data 

from Gender Fitness

CFO Crown Resorts 

& CEO Crown Digital

Gender Equity 

Advisory groups

Mid-term goal: Gender Fitness embedded as 

routine throughout the business

Long-term position: Gender Fitness data 

used to highlight areas of improvement and 

achievement and incorporated into KPIs

• Gender Fitness was launched in 2017 with 

an initial sign up rate of over 85% achieved 

• Campaign was run to increase engagement 

with Gender Fitness across the group

Send the right message

• Ensure the messages we send promote 

gender equity 

• Increase visibility and contribution of female 

leaders through ensuring panels, staff 

briefings, collateral and key messages are 

40:40:20

Public Relations – 

Perth

Employee 

Communications – 

Melbourne

Mid-term goal: All internal messaging to 

display gender balance and link to gender 

equity messaging 

Long-term position: All messaging (internal 

and external) to be diverse and aligned with 

business value

• Executive team video series sharing their 

key messages and support for gender 

equity has been created

• Melbourne has had an increase in senior 

women presenting at Staff Briefings

• Panel pledge has been made at CEO level

8

CRW.507.005.2702



30 

INTERS ECTIONALITY 
FOCUS 

lntersectionality focus refers to recognition that the 
interconnected nature of attributes such as ethnicity, class, 
age and gender can create overlapping and multiple forms of 
discrimination or disadvantage. 

Crown has a strong commitment to diversity and inclusion and part of this is a focus 

on intersectionality. Crown aims to ensure that our gender scope encompasses other 

areas of our diversity and inclusion focus. We will do this through: 

Partnering with our Indigenous Program to address specific areas for Ind igenous 

women at Crown; 

Partnering with CROWNability to address specific areas for women at Crown with 

disabilities; and 

Partnering with our Crown Pride Committee to address specific areas for 

individuals at Crown who identify as LGBTIQ + and to create and implement a 

Gender Affirmation Policy. 

Work has already begun in this area with the Gender Advisory groups collaborating 

w ith the Crown Pride network and Crown's Indigenous and CROWNabi/ity Programs 

to host events for both the internal Crown Community and external partners inc lud ing 

Ochre Ribbon, Women in Gaming and Hospitality Australasia and Globe. 

Under the Workplace Gender Equality 

Act 2012, Crown (as a non-public 

sector employer of more than 100 

employees) is required to submit a 

report each year to the WGEA. The 

report consists of a workplace profile 

and ansvvers to a questionnaire 

addressing the following six gender 

equality indicators (GEis): 

GEi 1 : gender composition of the 

workforce; 

GEi 2: gender composition of 

governing bodies of relevant 

employers; 

GEi 3: equal remuneration 

between women and men: 

GEi 4: availability and utility of 

employment terms, conditions 

and practices relating to 

flexible working arrangements 

for employees and to working 

arrangements supporting 

employees with family or caring 

responsibilities: 

GEi 5: consultation with 

employees on issues concerning 

gender equality in the workplace; 

and 

GEi 6: any other matters 

specified by the Minister 

(e.g. sex-based harassment and 

discrimination). 

CRW .507 .005.2703 



··~ i·· 
OWN 

.... ,or 

• • • • ....... •••• • 
~ 

, 
\ _ I 

C OW N 
lltA I 0 C 

• •• •••• • • . .... 
~ CROWN EARTH 

, _, 
CROWr\abilil}" 

··~ j·· • 
C OWN 

P'lll lO C 

CROWN i:..A 

e 8 
~ 

ec•O- 1101&4ll•Ow• ·--
··~·· ... 

G ENDICll 
ICOU TY c ,. 

C R O WN E:ART 

..... 
C R O W N f:ART 

CRW .507 .005.2704 

TRACKING AND 
REPORTING ON OUR 
PROGRESS 

While implementing this GAP and working towards the 
achievement of its goals, we will rigorously monitor and report 
on our progress against those goals. 

To ensure transparency, consistency and effic iency the reports on our progress wi II be 

similar to those we annually submit to the WGEA. For example, categories, methods of 

measuring, reporting year and other metrics w ill be the same. 

Our Gender Action Reports w ill be: 

reviewed and compiled yearly, in line w ith the WGEA reporting year; 

submitted to the Corporate Responsibility Committee; 

made available to employees and the public on the Crown Resorts website (as 

are the WGEA reports); and 

in plain English. 

When each report becomes available, we will use various employee communications 

to notify staff that they can access the report on Crown 's website. 

We will also regularly include personal stories and articles about our gender equity 

actions and outcomes in on-line and paper-based employee communications . 

• • • • • • • •• ••• •• • • •••••••• ••••••••• Wiii' 31 



32 

ACHI EVING 
A BROADER IMPACT 

Achieving gender equity at Crown is one of the most significant 
and just outcomes we can strive for. 

However, we know that our influence to eliminate gender inequity can extend beyond 

the workplaces at Crown, and, for this reason, we proudly work w ith others to I ift 

gender equity throughout our community. 

Selecting and working 

with our suppliers 
The Crovvn Procurement team are 

working with our vendors to support 

gender equity in our supply chain. 

Community work 
Crown is committed to creating 

positive and proactive change not just 

for our employees but also the wider 

community. Most recently we have 

supported the Indigenous Runway 

Project and Ochre Ribbon. 

Further partnership/sponsorship 

opportunities wil I be explored in 

relation to advanc ing women's safety, 

including but not I imited to further 

support for those experiencing 

domestic violence, financial hardship 

and homelessness. 

• ••••• • •• ••• •• • • •••••••• ••• 
CROWN 
RESORTS 
FOUNDATION 

Supporting change 
The Crown Resorts Foundation 

continues to learn from the 

communities they work with, and have 

identified a disparity betvveen the type 

and number of programs available to 

young boys and young girls. 

Although the Crown Resorts 

Foundation did not begin with a 

clear gender lens, some of the most 

marginalised people the Board has 

seen are young girls and nevvly 

arrived migrant women - many are 

isolated and are not aware of available 

pathways to change. 

This will continue to inform the Crown 

Resorts Foundation's decision making 

as it seeks partnerships which support 

these young girls and women - this is 

not instead of the support provided to 

young boys and men; it is in addition 

to that support. W OME N I N GAM IN G 
& H O S PI T A LIT Y 

.AU$'fr.AlASIA 

CRW .507 .005.2705 



Crown Resons Gender Action Plan F20 - F23 

Women in Gaming and 
Hospitality Australasia 
Crown has also become a key 

partner of Women in Gaming 

and Hospitality (WGH), which 

is the gaming industry's not-for

profit organisation dedicated to 

empowering women and promoting 

gender equitable outcomes in the 

workplace. 

The industry driven organisation 

aims to identify and remove barriers 

for the advancement of women in 

the gaming, hospitality and gaming 

related industries. 

WGH encourages the development 

and success of women through 

education, mentorship and 

netvvorking opportunities and 

provides tools and support for 

organisations wishing to develop or 

enhance their gender diversity and 

inclusion initiatives. 

Fostering a positive culture in 

the workplace that encourages 

employees to bring their best self to 

work is key to building a motivated 

and engaged workforce - and for 

women, this has never been more 

important. 

Crown is an active partner of WGH 

and has a representative on the WGH 

Board. 

CRW .507 .005.2706 

GENDER: JUST ONE OF 
MANY SIGNIFICANT 
BARRIERS TO EQ1JALITY 

This GAP focuses on the selection, promotion, and retention 
of female employees within safe, inclusive and respectful 
workplaces at Crown. 

However, gender is not the only attribute that can contribute to or exacerbate barriers 

to equitable employment. Other attributes include class, ethnicity, sexual orientation, 

age, religion, creed, and disability. None of these attributes exist separately from each 

other, but are interwoven in all of us. 

It is widely recognised however, that people who experience discrimination, poverty, 

and other disadvantages often have multiple attributes that can be the trigger for bias 

and d iscrimination from people who are priv ileged or in positions of power. 

At Crown, we work diligently hard to eliminate bias and unlawfu I d iscrimination of any 

kind and to educate employees and managers of the unfairness of such practices, 

and the benefits of fair and equitable practices. 

• ••••• • •• ••• •• • • •••••••• ••••••••• Wiii' 33 



• ....... • . ··=·· .• ••••• 
CROWN 
RESORTS 

crownresorts.com .au 

CRW .507 .005.2707 



CWN_LEGAL_229033.1

AGENDA ITEM 9:
2020 Annual Report

9

CRW.507.005.2708



Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

Memorandum

To: Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

From: Mary Manos

Date: 7 August 2020

Subject: Directors’ Statutory Report – Risk Disclosure – PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL

PRIVILEGED AND CONFIDENTIAL

Dear Committee Members

Under section 299A of the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), a listed entity is required to include an Operating 
and Financial Review (OFR) in its annual Directors’ Statutory Report which includes reporting on the 
entity’s business strategies and the prospects for future financial years. ASIC has provided companies 
with guidance under ASIC Regulatory Guide 247 (RG247) in preparing an OFR and provides that a 
discussion about future prospects be balanced by including material risks that could adversely affect the 
achievement of financial prospects.

Consistent with Crown’s risk disclosure in its 2019 Directors’ Statutory Report, it is proposed that Crown 
report on its material risks identified on Crown’s Risk Map in its 2020 Directors’ Statutory Report. The 
material risks to be disclosed for 2020 are consistent with those disclosed in 2019 other than the addition 
of the ‘External disruptors out of our control’ risk which has received an increased risk rating as a result of 
COVID-19.

Attached is a table setting out the risk descriptions and key controls for the material risks from the 
Company’s Risk Profile together with a draft proposed summary form of those risks and controls for 
consideration for inclusion in the 2020 Directors’ Statutory Report. The form of the disclosure may be 
refined in the coming weeks as we finalise the 2020 Annual Report.

Kind regards

Mary Manos
General Counsel and Company Secretary

9.1

CRW.507.005.2709



CRW.507.005.2710 

Clvwn Rllll rnllm Directors' Statutory Report 

Rllll: ... Dl9allpllan K8fCGnlral9 Proposed Risk and Description Proposed Mitigation Strategies 

Legislative/ Regulatory Changes Negotiation of regulatory certainty Legal and Regulatory Changes Crown has in place legal, 
agreements with governments and governance and compliance 

Changes to legislation, regulation or regulators. Crown operates in a highly regulated frameworks at each of its operations 
Government policy covering the 

Ongoing communication with 
industry and is subject to regulatory and continuously monitors its 

conduct of, and access to, gaming or approvals in the jurisdictions in which legislative and regulatory 
broader operational and compliance 

Government and regulators in it conducts gaming operations. requirements in the jurisdictions in 
processes in any jurisdiction in which 

relevant jurisdictions (including those 
which it operates. 

Crown operates. that do not licence a Crown entity). Systematic and/or serious breaches 

Maintenance and positive promotion of legal or regulatory requirements In addition, Crown's internal control 

of Crown's corporate profile. may result in enforcement action in framework is designed to ensure 
jurisdictions in which Crown has effectiveness of, and compliance 

Ongoing monitoring of legislative, activities. This may have an adverse with, relevant legislative and 
regulatory and policy changes across impact on Crown's operational and regulatory requirements. 
all aspects of the Crown business to financial performance. 
ensure responsiveness. Crown provides relevant employees 

Adherence to and awareness of and contractors with training on 

relevant legislative and/or regulatory Crown's compliance obligations, 

policy including development of policies and procedures (where 

compliant processes and guidelines applicable). 

and training of relevant employees 
Crown obtains legal advice in and contractors (where applicable). 
appropriate circumstances and 

Obtaining expert legal advice in local jurisdictions as required. 
and foreign jurisdictions. 

External advisory panels in place in 
Internal audit periodically reviews the 

key areas: RG, OSH. effectiveness of the controls and 
processes in place to manage 

Legal, governance and compliance Crown's compliance frameworks and 
frameworks at property and online the overall internal control 
operator level and for staff involved in framework. 



CRW.507.005.2711 

Clvwn Rllll Pnllm Directors' Statutory Report 

Rllll: ... Dl9allpllan K8fCGnlral9 Proposed Risk and Description Proposed Mitigation Strategies 

VIP sales. 

Extensive RG practices in place and 
proactive engagement with 
stakeholder groups to enhance 
framework and pre-empt issues, 
including the Responsible Gaming 
Advisory Panel. 

Ongoing monitoring of local and 
foreign legislative, regulatory and 
political environments where Crown 
operates or has staff operating. 

Volatility of Gaming Revenue Management monitoring and review Volatility of Gaming Revenue Crown monitors and reviews its 
of international commission business gaming businesses and reports on 

Sustained unfavourable variations strategy including maximum bet limits Crown's gaming operations may the basis of its actual and long-term 
from theoretical win rates applicable and customer programs. experience variations from theoretical theoretical win rates in its results. 
to the gaming business (local and win rates due to the element of 
international). Whilst short term 

Increased data analytics on historical chance in gaming activities. 

fluctuations are expected to occur, 
betting patterns. 

due to 'luck', reporting of theoretical Ad-hoe review by external experts of Sustained unfavourable variations in 

over actual has normalised results theoretical model and performance. the actual win rate compared to the 

overtime. theoretical win rate would be likely to 
Strategies in place to ensure have an adverse impact on Crown's 
sustained turnover, meant to financial performance. 
decrease impact of single large wins 
or losses. 

Ongoing review of VIP operating 
model. 



CRW.507.005.2712 

Clvwn Rllll Pnllm Directors' Statutory Report 

Rllll: ... Dl9allpllan K8fCGnlral9 Proposed Risk and Description Proposed Mitigation Strategies 

Act of terrorism on Crown property Emergency and crisis management Terrorism Crown has in place security and 
and planning framework including: surveillance technology and 

The calculated use of violence (or the As Crown's properties are places procedures at each of its properties 
threat of violence) against Crown's • Emergency management where large crowds may congregate, which monitor for suspicious 
properties, employees and/or planning they may be the target of a terrorist behaviours. 
customers in order to attain goals of • Corporate crisis planning attack or the calculated use or threat 
a political, religious or ideological • IT disaster recovery planning of violence. In addition, Crown has a framework 
nature. • Terrorist risk assessments in place for responding to major 

undertaken at property level Any such event may have an incidents and works with key law 

• Counter terrorism escalation 
adverse impact on Crown's enforcement agencies for 

planning 
customers, employees and coordinated and rapid responses. 

• Tailored training across all 
operational and financial 

operational areas. 
performance. 

Ongoing assessments and 
enhancements of deterrent measures 
on property, including by third 
parties. 

24f7 monitoring by security and 
surveillance of relevant FOH and 
BOH areas for suspicious 
behaviours. 

Facial recognition technology in use. 

Maintenance of close and productive 
relationships with key law 
enforcement agencies and other 
authorities in relevant jurisdictions for 
intelligence gathering. 



CRW.507.005.2713 

Clvwn Rllll rnllm Directors' Statutory Report 

Rllll: ... Dl9allpllan K8fCGnlral9 Proposed Risk and Description Proposed Mitigation Strategies 

Major reputational damage Positive promotion of Crown's Reputation Crown has in place legal, 
businesses. governance and compliance 

Negative publicity/image of Crown 
Engagement of external advisers to 

Negative publicity of Crown may frameworks at each of its operations 
and/or its affiliate businesses which have an adverse impact on Crown's and provides relevant employees and 
may adversely impact Crown's assist with communications operational and financial contractors with training on Crown's 
reputation and/or performance and 

strategies and proactive performance. compliance obligations, policies and 
potentially jeopardise gaming 

management of negative media 
procedures (where applicable). 

licences. 
attention. 

Consideration of community Crown's Australian resorts have in 

expectations. place the following set of values 

Adherence to, and awareness of, 
which apply across the properties: 

relevant legislative and/or regulatory • we act respectfully; 
policy, adoption of group wide and 
property level Anti-bribery and • we are passionate; 
Corruption and other integrity related 
Policies and training of relevant • we work together; and 
employees/contractors where 
applicable. • we do the right thing. 

Employee/contractor/supplier probity In addition, Crown proactively 
checks and performance monitoring engages with key stakeholders, 
and regulator licensing for relevant including relevant regulators and 
staff. governments. 

Maintenance of close and productive 
relationships with key stakeholders, 
including with key law enforcement 
agencies and other authorities in 
relevant jurisdictions. 

Focus on corporate responsibility 



CRW.507.005.2714 

Clvwn Rllll Pnllm Directors' Statutory Report 

Rllll: ... Dl9allpllan K8fCGnlral9 Proposed Risk and Description Proposed Mitigation Strategies 

function and reporting. 

External advisory panels in place in 
key areas: RG, OSH. 

Business continuity management and 
planning. 

Corporate crisis planning. 

Development and adherence to 
Media Protocols and policy. 

Monitoring al l customer facing online 
channels and advertising for 
disruptions or events that may be 
damaging to reputation. 

Privacy program and strict 
confidentiality protocols in place and 
staff training on privacy awareness. 

Cyber security program in place and 
staff training on cyber security 
awareness. 

Escalation of material matters to the 
Board for oversight and guidance. 

Brand strategy, including 
engagement of external advisers. 

Establishment of Brand Committee -
replaced with ongoing management 
by the CEO - Crown Resorts, with 



CRW.507.005.2715 

Crvwn Rlllk Plullle Directors' Statutory Report 

Rllk and Daecrlpllan Kay Conlrole Proposed Risk and Description Proposed Mitigation strategies 

regular updates provided to the Chair 
and Deputy Chair and the full Board. 

Litigation Effective engagement from advice Litigation Crown proactively monitors and 
functions (Legal, Compliance, AML, responds to legal issues and 

Crown is exposed to potential RSG, WHS, Risk) to ensure Any potential material litigation engages legal advisors as required. 
material litigation by: proactive consideration of key risks in brought against Crown by third 

decision-making. parties may have an impact on In addition, Crown has in place legal, . Employees Crown's financial performance. governance and compliance . Customers Management monitoring of, and frameworks at each of its operations . Regulators response to, legal issues in relevant which are supported by insurance . Shareholders (including potential jurisdictions. programs as appropriate . 
class actions) Engagement of internal/external legal . Other third parties. advisors as required . 

Adherence to, and awareness of, 
relevant legislative and/or regulatory 
policy including training of relevant 
employees/contractors where 
applicable. 

Employee/contractor/supplier probity 
checks and performance monitoring. 

Legal, governance and compliance 
frameworks in place. 

Insurance programs as appropriate. 



CRW.507.005.2716 

Crvwn Rlllk Plullle Directors' Statutory Report 

Rllk and Daecrlpllan Kay Conlrole Proposed Risk and Description Proposed Mitigation strategies 

VIP bad debts Credit approval processes, including Third Party Default Crown has in place credit approval 
enhanced due diligence and and recovery processes and 

Crown is exposed to the risk of validation of patrons through Central The potential material default by procedures. 
default by customers across its Credit Reports . those with whom Crown has a 
affiliate businesses. business relationship may have an Crown maintains a provision for 

Management monitoring of financial adverse impact on Crown's financial doubtful debts which is monitored on 
performance and trends. performance. an ongoing basis and is audited by 
Management monitoring and review its external auditors. 

of credit policy. 

Engagement of external debt 
collectors and/or initiation of legal 
action (in authorised jurisdictions 
only). 

Hedging to manage any potential 
foreign currency loss. 



Material breaches of gaming and 
other relevant legislation! regulation 

Crown and its affiliate businesses 
operate in a highly regulated 
industry. 

There is a risk of systemic and/or 
serious breaches of regulatory 
requirements (including gaming, anti
money laundering, liquor, promotion 
of gaming and liquor, taxation or 
other regulatory I mandatory 
reporting requirements). 

Adherence to and awareness of 
relevant legislative and/or regulatory 
policy including development of 
compliant processes and guidelines 
and training of relevant employees 
and contractors (where applicable). 

Obtaining expert local and foreign 
legal advice in appropriate 
circumstances as required. 

Employee I contractor I supplier 
probity checks and performance 
monitoring. 

Extensive compliance training to 
relevant staff groups. 

VIP operating model protocols in 
place for foreign jurisdictions. 

Maintaining appropriate relationships 
with governments and regulators. 

Legal, governance and compliance 
frameworks in place in each 
business. 

Layers of operational auditing and 
compliance checks in place across 
critical areas (particularly gaming). 

AMUCTF program. 

Perodic internal audit reviews of the 
effectiveness of controls and 
processes in place to manage 
C Ii f k d 

Directors' Statutory Report 

Proposed Risk and Description 

Legal and Regulatory Compliance 

Crown operates in a highly regulated 
industry and is subject to regulatory 
approvals in the jurisdictions in which 
it conducts gaming operations. 
Crown's operations, financial 
performance and future prospects 
are dependent on the legal and 
regulatory frameworks in which it 
operates. 

Legislative and regulatory changes 
may have an adverse impact on 
Crown's operational and financial 
performance. 

Proposed Mitigation strategies 

Crown proactively engages with 
relevant stakeholders and has in 
place legal, governance and 
compliance frameworks at each of its 
operations. Crown monitors for 
legislative and regulatory changes on 
an ongoing basis. 

From time to t ime, Crown makes 
submissions relating to proposed 
legislative and regulatory changes 
which may impact the Crown group. 

Crown provides relevant employees 
and contractors with training on 
legislative and regulatory changes 
(where applicable). 

CRW.507.005.271 7 



CRW.507.005.271 8 

Crvwn Rlllk Plullle Directors' Statutory Report 

Rllk and Daecrlpllan Kay Conlrole Proposed Risk and Description Proposed Mitigation strategies 

Data misuse IT policy and security, with dedicated Data Security Crown has in place IT policies, 
in-house IT data governance focus. procedures and training programs 

Sensitive information may be leaked Crown maintains confidential which are further supported by a 
or sold to external parties including Cyber security program in place with customer and commercially sensitive cyber security program. 
customer information. 2417 monitoring performed by third data. 

party and staff training on cyber Crown also has in place legal and 
Loss of confidential customer or security awareness. The leak or unauthorised use of compliance frameworks at each of its 
commercially sensitive data is a Periodic penetration testing of IT confidential customer and operations and confidentiality 
growing risk as the online businesses systems, website and apps. commercially sensitive data may arrangements in place with its 
expand and the use of 3rd parties have an adverse impact on Crown's employees and contractors. 
and data volume increases. External review regarding integrity of operational and financial 

security systems such as source performance. In addition, Crown has adopted a 
code scanning. management framework for 

Employee/contractor/supplier probity responding to data breach incidents, 

checks and performance monitoring. should they occur 

Employee confidentiality agreements 
and restrictive covenants. 

Intellectual Property Register. 

User access management processes 
in place to key applications, data and 
reports. 

Data loss prevention tools. 

Privacy program and strict 
confidentiality protocols in place and 
staff training on privacy awareness. 

Whistleblower Policy and hotline. 

CDW and TM1 reporting 
systems.staff training on privacy 
awareness. 



CRW.507.005.2719 

Clvwn Rllll Pnllm Directors' Statutory Report 

Rllll: ... Dl9allpllan K8fCGnlral9 Proposed Risk and Description Proposed Mitigation Strategies 

Breakdown in relationships with Dedicated senior management and Relationships with Key Stakeholders Crown professionally and proactively 
government, legislative or regulatory Directors engaging with relevant engages with relevant stakeholders 
bodies government stakeholders A breakdown in Crown's and has in place legal. governance 

Continuous reporting to the Board. 
relationships with key stakeholders, and compliance frameworks at each 

Crown operates in many jurisdictions including regulators and of its operations. 
and has to engage with a large Strong compliance culture reinforced governments, may have an adverse 
number of government, legislative by the legal, governance and impact on Crown's operational and 
and regulatory bodies. A breakdown compliance frameworks. financial performance 
in these relationships could lead to 

Employee due diligence procedures 
targeted reviews, investigations, or 
actions by these bodies. 

and regulator licensing for relevant 
staff. 

Training and awareness. 

Brand Strategy, including 
engagement of external advisers. 

External disruptors out of our control Annual strategic planning and External Events Crown has in place strategic, 
business planning processes. business and contingency planning 

Unfavourable changes in Australian 
Contingency planning, including 

Unfavourable changes in local and processes and proactively engages 
and international economic international economic conditions with relevant stakeholders as 
conditions, including change in business continuity plans. and other events outside of the required. 
government; global geopolitical event Appropriate and targeted marketing control of Crown, including 
and hostilities, act of terrorism campaigns. pandemics and natural disasters, Crown also reviews and manages its 
(outside Crown). natural disaster, 

Management monitoring of: 
may have an adverse impact on capital structure. 

pandemic, etc. Crown's customers and employees, 

• international competitors; and operational and financial 
Loss of international commission performance. 
business to competitors in South • the VIP program and 

East Asia and Las Vegas. relationships; 

• local and domestic competitors in 



CRW.507.005.2720 

Clvwn Rllll Pnllm Directors' Statutory Report 

Rllll: ... Dl9allpllan K8fCGnlral9 Proposed Risk and Description Proposed Mitigation Strategies 

Increase in local competition (both all jurisdictions in which Crown 
gaming and non-gaming). operates; and 

• financial performance and 
trends. 

Appropriate capital structure. 

Capital investment in VIP facilities. 

Effective escalation framework 
ensures matters are provided with 
adequate level of management 
oversight and response effort. 

Targeted initiatives in product 
development, marketing, technology 
and people management to 
consistently demonstrate capability to 
differentiate gaming brands in a 
crowded market. 

Revised operating plans. 

Engagement with medical experts. 



CWN_LEGAL_181450.1

Audit & Corporate Governance Committee 
Memorandum

To: Audit & Corporate Governance Committee

From: Mary Manos

Date: 7 August 2020

Subject: Draft Corporate Governance Statement

Dear Committee Members

Draft Corporate Governance Statement

As you are aware, Crown is required under the Listing Rules to include a Corporate Governance 
Statement in its Annual Report disclosing the extent to which Crown has followed the third edition 
of the Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations set by the ASX Corporate 
Governance Council during the reporting period.

Attached is a draft Corporate Governance Statement for review by the Committee.  While well 
progressed, the draft is still in the process of being finalised.  

Subject to any comments of the Committee, the purpose of this paper is to ask the Committee to 
recommend to the Board that the Corporate Governance Statement (in a form, substantially the 
same as the attached) be approved.

The attached draft will be updated to reflect the data presented to the Committee in the Diversity 
Report, subject to any comments of the Committee.

It is also a requirement of the ASX Listing Rules that companies provide the ASX with a completed 
Appendix 4G. The Appendix 4G is a “tick-the-box” form which summarises the Principles and 
Recommendations.  Companies must tick which of the Principles and Recommendations they 
comply with. This will be provided to ASX at the same time that Crown lodges its annual report.

Fourth Edition – Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations

As the Committee is aware, Crown will be required to report against the Fourth Edition of the
Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations in respect of the period 1 July 2020 to 30 
June 2021.  

The ASX Corporate Governance Council has encourage listed entities to early adopt the new aspects 
of the Principles and Recommendations.

9.2

CRW.507.005.2721



CWN_LEGAL_181450.1

Crown has adopted the new recommendations and will report against the Fourth Edition in its 2021 
Corporate Governance Statement. 

Suggested Resolution

It was RESOLVED that the Committee recommends the approval of the draft Corporate Governance 
Statement, in the form presented to the Committee or in any other form approved by the Company 
Secretary, by the Board.

Kind Regards

Mary Manos
General Counsel & Company Secretary

9.2

CRW.507.005.2722



CRW.507.005.2723 

Corporate Governance Statement 
The Board of Crown Resorts limited (Crown or the Company) is committed to the implementation and 

maintenance of good corporate governance practices. This Statement sets out the extent to which Crown has 

followed the ASX Corporate Governance Council's Third Edition of the Corporate Governance Principles and 
Recommendations (the Principles and Recommendations). This Statement is current as at 9 September 2020 
and has been approved by the Board. 

Principle 1: Lay Solid Foundations for Management and Oversight 

Functions Reserved for the Board and Senior Management 

Functions Reserved for the Board 

The Board is responsible for guiding and monitoring Crown on behalf of its shareholders. In addition, the Board 

(in conjunction with management) is responsible for identifying areas of significant business risk and ensuring 
arrangements are in place to adequately manage those risks. 

The Board has adopted a formal Board Charter which sets out a list of specific functions that are reserved for the 
Board. 

Board appointments are made pursuant to formal terms of appointmenl 

More information 

A full copy of the Crown Board Charter is available at www.crownresorts.com.au under the heading Corporate 

Governance - Charters. 

Functions Delegated to Senior Executives 

Crown's senior executives have responsibility for matters which are not specifically reserved for the Board (such 
as the day-to-day management of the operations and administration of Crown). 

Crown Board Committees 

To assist in carrying out its responsibilities, the Crown Board has established the following Committees: 

Audit and Corporate Governance Antonia Korsanos (Chair) 
Committee Jane Halton 

Michael Johnston 

Corporate Responsibility 
Committee 

Finance Committee 

Investment Committee 

People, Remuneration and 
Nomination Committee 

CWN_LEGAL_l80002.2 

Harold Mitchell (Chair) 
Helen Coonan 
John Horvath 

Helen Coonan (Chair) 
Michael Johnston 

Antonia Korsanos 

Guy Jalland (Chair) 
Ken Barton 
Michael Johnston 

Harold Mitchell (Chair) 

John Horvath 
Michael Johnston 

1 



CRW.507.005.2724 

Occupational Health and Safety 
Committee 

John Horvath (Chair) 
Michael Johnston 
John Poynton 

Respons ble Gaming Committee John Horvath (Chair) 
Andrew Demetriou 

Antonia Korsanos 

Risk Management Committee Jane Halton (Chair) 
Andrew Demetriou 
Michael Johnston 

Antonia Korsanos 

Each Committee has adopted a fonnal Charter that outlines its duties and responsibilities. 

More information 

A full copy of each of the Crown Committee Charters is available at: www.crownresorts.com.au under the heading 
Corporate Governance - Charters. 

Director Probity Reviews and Elections 

Every appointment of a Crown Director is subject to the receipt of necessary gaming regulatory approvals. 

The gaming industry is highly regulated and each of the casinos and gaming operations in which Crown has an 
interest is subject to extensive regulation under the laws, rules and regulations of the jurisdiction where it is 

located. 

Officers, Directors and certain key employees of Crown and its licensed subsidiaries must file applications with 

relevant gaming authorities and may be required to be licensed in certain jurisdictions. These probity reviews 
generally concern the responsibility, financial stability and character of the owners, managers and persons with 
financial interests in gaming operations and generally include requirements to obtain police checks and credit 

checks. 

A Director will only be fonnally appointed once all necessary gaming regulatory approvals have been obtained. 
As a separate exercise, Crown undertakes its own internal investigations on the suitability of nominated Directors 
as a pre-condition to a recommendation to the Board to appoint a Director. 

The Company's Constitution requires that an election of Directors must take place each year. In addition, 
Directors appointed to fill casual vacancies during the year must retire from office at the next annual general 
meeting following his or her appointment but are eligible for re-election by shareholders at that time. The Notice 
of Meeting for an annual general meeting sets out the background for the election and re-election of Directors, 
infonnation on the skills and experience of the relevant Director and provides a recommendation of the Board in 
relation to the proposed election or re-election. 

Accordingly, shareholders are provided with all material infonnation relevant to a decision on whether or not to 
elect or re-elect a Director. 

More information 

Copies of Crown's past and present Notices of Meeting are available at: www.crownresorts.com.au under the 
heading Investors & Media - Annual Reports. 

Director and Senior Executive agreements 

Crown Directors are provided with an induction pack upon appointment which, among other things, includes a 
letter agreement setting out the tenns of that Director's appointment. The letter agreement, which each Director 
must countersign, describes when the appointment commences and when it ends, sets out the Director's powers 
and duties and the agreed remuneration arrangements and obliges the Director to comply with all Crown Policies, 
Procedures and the Code of Conduct. In addition, the letter agreement requires the Director to enter into a 
separate undertaking to infonn Crown of any interests that Director may have in Crown securities (and contracts 

CWN_ LEGAL_180002.2 2 



CRW.507.005.2725 

relevant to Crown securities) so that Crown is able to comply with its disclosure requirements under Listing Rule 
3.19A to provide the ASX with completed Appendices 3X, 3Y and 3Z within the time period allowed by the ASX 
Listing Rules. 

Each senior executive of Crown has an employment contract setting out the terms of that senior executive's 

appointment. 

Company Secretary Accountability 

The Company Secretary is accountable directly to the Board, through the Chair, on all matters to do with 
the proper functioning of the Board. The decision to appoint or remove a Company Secretary must be 
made or approved by the Board. 

The role of the Company Secretary is set out in the Crown Board Charter and includes: 

advising the Board and its committees on governance matters; 
monitoring that Board and committee policy and procedures are followed; 
coordinating the timely completion and despatch of Board and committee papers; 
ensuring that the business at Board and committee meetings is accurately captured in the minutes; 
and 
helping to organise and facilitate the induction and professional development of Directors. 

More information 

A full copy of the Crown Board Charter is available at www.crownresorts.com.au under the heading Corporate 
Governance - Charters. 

01vers1ty Policy 

Crown has established a policy concerning diversity and disclosed its policy on its website. The policy indudes 
requirements for the Board to establish measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity and for the Board to 
assess annually both the objectives and the progress in achieving them. 

In accordance with the policy, Crown has established the measurable objectives for achieving gender diversity as 
set out below: 

1. To require that at least one female candidate is (To be inserted following the Committee's review of the Diversity 
presented on candidate short lists and at least on Report. ] 

female from Senior Management is involved in the 
interview process for all Senior Management and 
Senior Executive positions within the group for 
which a recru~ment process is undertaken. 

2. To promote leadership opportunities for female [To be inserted following the Committee's review of the Diversity 
employees by maintaining the level of female Report.] 
participation in leadership and development 
programs (which incorporate targeted 

mentoring/coaching elements) across the group 
at no less than 45% of all participants. 

3. To conduct an internal review on an annual 
basis of the remuneration for key roles within the 
group, with an external validation review to be 
undertaken every second year, to ascertain the 
existence of any gender pay gaps and to 
implement action plans to address any such 
gaps. 

CWN_ LEGAL_180002.2 

(To be inserted following the Committee's review of the Diversity 
Report.] 

3 



CRW.507.005.2726 

4. To participate in local and national programs 

which promote gender equity and to implement 
relevant actions arising out of those programs. 

[To be inserted following the Committee's review of the Diversity 
Report. ) 

5. To progress the objectives of the Gender 
Action Plan for FY20 to FY23 (the Plan) and to 
annually assess the progress of the Plan's 

objectives. 

[To be inserted following the Committee's review of the Diversity 
Report. ) 

The proportion of women employees in the group, women in senior executive positions and women on the Board as at 
30 June 2020 is as follows: 

Proportion of women employees There were 5,255 women in the group. This represents 43.19% of the total workforce 
in the group. of 12, 166 employees. 

Proportion of women in senior There were 22 women in senior executive positions in the group. This represents 
executive positions in the group. 28.9% of senior executive positions in the group. This is a 0.9% decrease on FY19. 

Proportion of women on the 

Board. 

There were three female Directors out of a total of 11 Directors, or 27.27%. 

For the purpose of these statistics, the term "senior executive position• refers to Executive Team and Business 
Operations Team members of Crown Resorts Limited, Crown Melbourne and Crown Perth as well as the most 
senior leaders from each operational unit therein. The Executive Team is comprised of persons with titles in the 

nature of, or similar to, Executive General Manager, General Manager, Chief Information Officer, Chief Marketing 

Officer and General Counsel together with the Chief Executive Officers, Chief Operating Officers, Chief Financial 
Officers and Chief Legal Officers within the group. 

Crown's Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has been delegated responsibility for developing and 
monitoring the application of Crown's Diversity Policy. 

As noted above, Crown's Diversity Policy requires that Crown reviews its Gender Objectives annually to ensure 
that they remain relevant and appropriate for Crown. 

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee conducted a formal review of its Gender Objectives and 

resolved to adopt the Gender Objectives included in Crown's Gender Action Plan for F20 to F23. 

As detailed above, during the 2020 financial year, Crown published its first Gender Action Plan for F20 to F23 
(GAP) which has the following five areas of focus: 

Recruitment and Promotion - To achieve 40:40:20 representation across the group, with each Executive 

accountable for achieving this target within their business unit. 
Retention and Development - To ensure Crown retains women at a level equitable or better than the 
retention of their male colleagues and that women at Crown receive appropriate opportunities and 
encouragement so that they benefit from all that Crown has to offer. 
Cultural Change and Communication - To ensure that all employees work in a safe and respectful 
environment where their contributions are welcomed and valued. 
Flexibility - To have flexibility for every role at Crown. 
lntersectionality - To partner with Crown's Indigenous Program, CROWNabi/ity and Crown Pride 
Committee to address specific areas for women participating in those programs. 

CWN_ LEGAL_180002.2 4 



CWN_LEGAL_180002.2 5

Each focus area in the GAP, other than Intersectionality, includes a number of measurable objectives which are 

identified as mid-term and long-term targets. These targets incorporate elements of, and expand on, the 

measurable objectives which were set for financial year 2020.

In addition, in accordance with the ASX Corporate Governance Council’s Fourth Edition of the Corporate 

Governance Principles and Recommendations the Crown Board, in consultation with the Audit and Corporate 

Governance Committee and the People, Remuneration and Nomination Committee, set the following measurable

objective for achieving gender diversity in the composition of its Board:

To have not less than 30% of directors on the Crown Board of each gender by 30 June 2022.

A report on the progress against the five focus areas in the GAP and the Board diversity objective will be 

provided in the 2021 Corporate Governance Statement.

More information

A full copy of Crown’s Diversity Policy is available at: www.crownresorts.com.au under the heading Corporate 

Governance – Policies.

A copy of Crown’s Gender Action Plan for F20 to F23 is available at: www.crownresorts.com.au under the 

heading Our Contribution – Diversity & Inclusion.

Crown is a “relevant employer” under the Workplace Gender Equality Act 2012 (Cth) and, in accordance with the 

requirements of the Act, Crown lodged its annual Public Report with the Workplace Gender Equality Agency for 

the 2019-2020 period which reports on the most recent “Gender Equality Indicators”.

More information

A full copy of Crown’s Workplace Gender Equality Report is available at: www.crownresorts.com.au under the 

heading Corporate Governance – Gender Equality.

Process for Evaluating Performance of the Board, its Committees and its Directors

A performance evaluation of the Board and of its Committees is undertaken annually, following completion of 

each financial year, by way of a questionnaire sent to each Director.

The questionnaire covers the role, composition, procedures and practices of the Board and of its Committees. 

The individual responses to the questionnaire are confidential to each Director, with questionnaire responses 

provided to the Chair of the People, Remuneration and Nomination Committee for consideration and provision of 

a report to the Board.

Crown’s People, Remuneration and Nomination Committee is also responsible for reviewing Crown’s procedure 

for the evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees and its Directors.

An evaluation of the Board and its Committees took place following the end of the 2020 financial year in 

accordance with the processes described above.

Process for Evaluating Performance of Senior Executives

Crown has established processes for evaluating the performance of its senior executives. In summary, each 

senior executive is evaluated against the achievement of pre-agreed performance objectives. The evaluation 

process is conducted annually and is followed by the determination of appropriate remuneration of the relevant 

senior executive.

Detailed information regarding Crown’s remuneration practices is provided in the Remuneration Report. An

evaluation of senior executives took place following the end of the 2020 financial year and in accordance with the 

processes described in the Remuneration Report.

Principle 2: Structure the Board to Add Value

People, Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Crown has established a People, Remuneration and Nomination Committee. The Committee has adopted a 

formal Charter that outlines its duties and respons bilities.

9.2

CRW.507.005.2727



CWN_LEGAL_180002.2 6

The current members of the People, Remuneration and Nomination Committee are Harold Mitchell AC (Chair), 

Professor John Horvath AO and Michael Johnston, a majority of whom are independent, Non-executive Directors. 

Information about each Committee member’s qualifications and experience is set out in the Directors’ Statutory 

Report. Information regarding the number of times the Committee met throughout the period and the individual 

attendances of the members at those meetings has also been provided in the Directors’ Statutory Report.

The role of the Committee is to assist the Board to develop, maintain and implement policies in relation to:

1. the selection and appointment practices for Directors; and

2. the remuneration of Directors and relevant executives.

Selection, Appointment and Development of Directors

The People, Remuneration and Nomination Committee is required to:

∑ review Crown’s procedure for the selection and appointment of new Directors (Selection Procedure) and 

make appropriate recommendations to the Board in relation to the Selection Procedure;

∑ implement the Selection Procedure and make nomination recommendations to the Board;

∑ develop succession plans in order for the Board to maintain appropriate experience, expertise and diversity;

∑ review Crown’s procedure for the evaluation of the performance of the Board, its Committees and its

Directors and be primarily responsible for the implementation of the evaluation process; and

∑ oversee the induction process is in place for new Directors.

The Selection Procedure requires that, in the event that a new Director appointment is required, the People, 

Remuneration and Nomination Committee (on behalf of the Board) must adhere to procedures including the 

following:

∑ the experience and skills appropriate for an appointee, the skills of the existing Board and any likely changes 

to the Board will be considered;

∑ upon identifying a potential appointee, specific consideration will be given to that candidate’s:

o competencies and qualifications;

o independence;

o other directorships and time availability; and

o the effect that the appointment would have on the overall balance and composition of the Board,

including by reference to the Crown Board Skills Matrix adopted from time to time; and

∑ finally, all existing Board members must consent to the proposed appointment.

The People, Remuneration and Nomination Committee also has responsibility for reviewing the Board Skills 

Matrix on an annual basis to ensure it remains consistent with the objectives of Crown and existing regulatory 

requirements and recommendations.

Remuneration of Directors and Relevant Executives

The role of the People, Remuneration and Nomination Committee also includes:

1. the review and recommendation of appropriate fees to be paid to Non-executive Directors; 

2. consideration of remuneration arrangements and policies to be applied to executives, including any equity-

based remuneration plan that may be considered, subject to shareholder approval (where required); and

3. the review of succession plans for Executive Directors and relevant senior management.

Following the end of the financial year, the Committee reviewed and approved:

∑ the remuneration for senior executives which will apply during the financial year ending 30 June 2021; and

∑ the short-term incentive arrangements applicable to senior executives referable to the financial year ended

30 June 2020.

A summary of the current remuneration arrangements is set out in more detail in the Remuneration Report. The 

objective of Crown’s remuneration policy is to ensure that:

∑ senior executives are motivated to pursue the long-term growth and success of Crown; and

∑ there is a clear relationship between the performance of senior executives and their remuneration.

Board Skills Matrix

As noted above, the Selection Procedure for a Director nomination requires that the People, Remuneration and 

Nomination Committee (on behalf of the Board) considers the effect that any proposed Director candidate would 

9.2

CRW.507.005.2728



CRW.507.005.2729 

have on the overall balance and composition of the Board including by reference to the Crown Board Skills Matrix 

adopted from time to time. 

The Crown Board has adopted the following Board Skills Matrix which sets out the mix of skills and diversity that 
the Board is looking to achieve in its membership. The Board Skills Matrix highlights the key skills and experience 
of the Board and the extent to which those skills are currently represented on the Board and on each of its 

Committees as at 9 September 2020. 

Executive Experience 11 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 
E)(l)E!fience in senior positions at executive levels. 

Strategic Planning and Execution 

Abiltty to develop and i~ement successful strategy and deliver agreed 11 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 
strategic plannng goals. 

Risk Management 

E)(l)E!fience in the oversight and management ot material business risk 11 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 
includi1g Board Risk Management Committee membership. 

Financial Acumen 

Senior executive or eqlivalent experience in financial accounting and 

reporfug, capital management, industry taxation, internal financial controls 10 3 2 3 3 2 2 2 

and corporate financing arrangements. 

Governance 

E)(l)E!fience with listed and other organisations subject to robust 

governance tramewor11s with an abiity to assess the effectiveness of 11 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

relevant governance processes. 

Occupational Health and Safety 

E)(l)E!fience in relation to \NOll(place health and safety. 9 3 2 3 2 2 3 3 

Environment and Sustainability 

E)(l)E!fience in relation to environmental and social responsibiltty and 9 2 3 2 2 3 3 2 
community. 

Legal and Regulatory 

E)(l)E!fience in legal and regulatory matters including regulatory and 11 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 
contractual frameWOlks govemng gaming matters. 

Information Technology 

Senior executive experience in inloonation technology indudi1g gaming 6 2 
systems and data security. 

Human Res~ces I Remuneration 

E)(l)E!fience in relation to remuneration practices, development ol incentive 

plans, successiion planning and director appointment processes including 11 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 

Board Remuneration Committee membership. 

CWN_LEGAL_180002.2 7 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

4 

3 

4 

2 

4 



CRW.507.005.2730 

Capital Projects 

Senior executive experience in executing large scale projects with long

term investment holizons and substantial capital outlays. 

Sales and Mar1<eting 

Senior executive experience in marketing coupled with a detailed 

understanding of Crown's strategic direction and c~titive e1wirorunent. 

Industry Experience - Gaming and Entertainment 

Senior executive experience in the gaming and entertainment industry. 

Industry Experience - Hospitality and Management 

Senior executive experience in the hospitality, food and beverage 

industries. 

Industry Experience - Tourism 

Senior executive experience in the tourism industry. 

Industry Experience - Public Policy 

Experience in public and regulatory policy, including in relation to gaming 

related policy. 

9 

4 

4 

4 

4 

8 

3 2 3 2 2 2 

0 0 0 

0 0 0 2 

0 2 

0 2 

2 2 2 2 2 3 2 

The Board Skills Matrix, albeit important, is only part of the Selection Procedure that the Board is required to 
follow. As noted above, the People, Remuneration and Nomination Committee has responsibility for reviewing 
the appropriateness of the Board Skills Matrix on an annual basis. 

Succession planning is an important part of the respons bilities of the People, Remuneration and Nomination 
Committee as it ensures that the Board maintains appropriate experience, expertise and diversity. 

CWN_ LEGAL_180002.2 

4 

2 

2 

2 

3 

8 



Relationships Affecting Independence 

The table below sets out the Crown Directors as at 9 September 2020, indicates which of those Directors are 
considered to be independent Directors and notes the length of service of each Director from the date of their 
appointment to 9 September 2020: 

The Hon. Helen A Coonan, BA, LLB 
Chairman 

Professor John S Horvath AO, MB, BS (Syd), 
FRACP 
Deputy Chairman 

Ken M Barton, BEc 
Managing Director 

John H Alexander, BA 
Executive Director 

Andrew Demetriou, BA, BEd 
Non-Executive Director 

Jane Halton AO PSM, BA (Hons) Psychology, FIML, 
FIPAA, NAM, Hon. FAAHMS, Hon. FACHSE, Hon. 
DLitt (UNSW) 

Guy Jalland, LLB 

Michael R Johnston, BEc, CA 
Non-Executive Director 

Antonia Korsanos, BEc, CA 

Harold C Mitchell AC 
Non-Executive Director 

John H Poynton AO, BCom, Hon DCom, FAICD, SF 
Fin (Life), FAIM 

Independent Board Directors 

Independent 8 Years, 9 Months 

Independent 10 Years 

Non-independent 6 Months 

Non-independent 13 Years, 2 Months 

Independent 5 Years, 8 Months 

Independent 2 Years, 4 Months 

Non-independent 2 Years, 5 Months 

Non-independent 13 Years, 2 Months 

Independent 2 Years, 4 Months 

Independent 9 Years, 7 Months 

Non-independent 1 Year, 9 Months 

CRW.507.005.2731 

The Crown Board is currently comprised of eleven Directors, six of whom are independent Directors. A majority 

of Directors are therefore independent. The independence of Directors is assessed against a list of criteria and 
materiality thresholds. Those criteria have been formally enshrined in the Crown Board Charter. Each Director 
who is listed as an independent Director complies with the relevant criteria for independence set out in the Crown 
Board Charter. 

Board Chair Independence 

The roles of Chair and Chief Executive Officer are exercised by separate persons. In February 2020, the Crown 
Board appointed The Honourable Helen Coonan as independent Chair and Professor John Horvath as 
independent Deputy Chair of Crown. At the same time, Ken Barton was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer 

of Crown. 

Director Professional Development 

The induction process for new Directors involves both formal and informal elements. As noted above, new 
Directors are provided with a formal induction pack which includes important information that a Director must 
know about the Company and their appointment terms and includes copies of relevant constitutions, Board 

CWN_ LEGAL_180002.2 9 



CWN_LEGAL_180002.2 10

Charters and Policies. In addition, new Directors are provided with tours of Crown’s main businesses and the 

opportunity to spend time with various members of senior management.

The professional development program for Directors has largely consisted of presentations from time to time to 

the Board regarding issues including developments in accounting standards, updates on legal issues and 

governance processes.

In an attempt to provide more structure to Director professional development, the People, Remuneration and 

Nomination Committee has been formally delegated with responsibility for implementing a plan for enhancing 

Director competencies and ensuring that an effective induction process is in place for new Directors. This 

process involves, amongst other things, a review of the Crown Board Skills Matrix and consideration of the extent 

to which those skills are currently represented on the Board and on each of its Committees. Where skills are not 

currently adequately represented, appropriate professional development in this area will be considered.

Principle 3: Act Ethically and Responsibly 

Code of Conduct

With effect from 1 July 2020, the Crown Board adopted a new Code of Conduct which reflects the Company’s 

values and outlines the standard of ethical behaviour that is expected of its Directors and of its employees at all 

times.

Crown Directors also have an obligation to be independent in judgement and action and to take all reasonable 

steps to be satisfied as to the soundness of all decisions taken by the Board. Directors are required to maintain 

the confidentiality of confidential information received in the course of the exercise of their duties and are 

prohibited from engaging in conduct likely to bring discredit upon Crown.

More information

A copy of Crown’s Code of Conduct is available at: www.crownresorts.com.au under the heading Corporate 

Governance – Codes.

Principle 4: Safeguard Integrity in Corporate Reporting

Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

Crown has established a formal Audit and Corporate Governance Committee to review the integrity of Crown’s

financial reporting and to oversee the independence of Crown’s external auditors.

The current members of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee are Antonia Korsanos (Chair), Jane 

Halton AO PSM and Michael Johnston. All members of the Committee are Non-executive Directors and a 

majority of those Committee members are independent Directors.

The Chair of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee, Mrs Korsanos is an independent Director who has 

extensive financial experience with over 20 years’ experience in financial and general management.

Further information about each Committee member’s qualifications and experience is set out in the Directors’ 

Statutory Report. Information regarding the number of times the Committee met throughout the period and the 

individual attendances of the members at those meetings has also been provided in the Directors’ Statutory 

Report.

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee has adopted a formal Charter that outlines its duties and 

responsibilities. The Charter includes information on the procedures for the selection and appointment of the 

external auditor of Crown and for the rotation of external audit engagement partners.

More information

A full copy of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee Charter is available at: www.crownresorts.com.au 

under the heading Corporate Governance – Charters.

9.2

CRW.507.005.2732



CWN_LEGAL_180002.2 11

CEO & CFO Declarations

Before approving the financial statements for each financial period, the Board receives from the Chief Executive 

Officer (formerly the Executive Chairman) and the Chief Financial Officer a declaration that, in their opinion:

∑ the financial records of Crown have been properly maintained;

∑ the financial statements comply with the appropriate accounting standards and give a true and fair view of

the financial position and performance of Crown; and

∑ the opinion has been formed on the basis of a sound system of risk management and internal control which 

is operating effectively.

Auditor’s Attendance at AGMs

Crown shareholders are provided with an opportunity at the AGM to ask questions and make comments on 

Crown’s Annual Report and on the business and operations of the Company. Crown’s Auditor is required to 

attend the AGM and shareholders are therefore also provided a reasonable opportunity to ask the Auditor 

questions about the Auditor’s Report and the conduct of the audit of the Financial Report. Shareholders are 

informed of their opportunity to address the Auditor in the Notice of Meeting for the AGM.

Principle 5: Make Timely and Balanced Disclosure

Policy to Ensure Compliance with ASX Listing Rule Disclosure Requirements

Crown has a formal Continuous Disclosure Policy in place which is designed to ensure compliance with ASX 

Listing Rule requirements. The policy details processes for:

∑ ensuring that any information that could be market sensitive or could involve reputational or material

regulatory issues or risks are communicated to the Disclosure Officer;

∑ the assessment of information by the Disclosure Committee and, where appropriate, the Board, and for the 

disclosure of material information to the market; and

∑ the broader publication of material information to the media, analysts and investors.

More information

A full copy of Crown’s Continuous Disclosure Policy is available at: www.crownresorts.com.au under the heading 

Corporate Governance – Policies.

Principle 6: Respect the Rights of Shareholders

Providing Online Information to Investors

Crown has a dedicated corporate website which provides information about itself and its governance to investors. 

The website has a dedicated Corporate Governance tab which sets out Crown’s Charters, Constitution, Policies 

and Codes, describes Crown’s Board Committees and includes copies of current and historical Corporate 

Governance Statements and Remuneration Reports.

More information

For more information, visit: www.crownresorts.com.au under the heading Corporate Governance.

Promotion of Effective Communication with Shareholders

The Board aims to ensure that shareholders and prospective investors are kept informed of all major 

developments affecting Crown.

Crown’s investor relations program is designed to facilitate effective communication between shareholders, 

prospective investors and Crown.

Crown actively engages with shareholders and prospective investors through a program of scheduled 

interactions with institutional investors, sell-side and buy-side analysts and the financial media. In addition, 

9.2

CRW.507.005.2733



CWN_LEGAL_180002.2 12

meetings are held with shareholders and prospective investors on request and responses are provided to 

enquiries made from time to time.

Crown’s investor relations program works in tandem with its obligations under its Continuous Disclosure Policy, a 

copy of which is available on Crown’s website.

Crown’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer regularly report to the Board on investor relations 

matters.

In addition, Crown has a Communications Policy which seeks to promote effective communication with its 

shareholders. The policy explains how information concerning Crown will be communicated to shareholders. 

The communication channels include:

∑ Crown’s Annual Report;

∑ disclosures made to the ASX; and

∑ Notices of Meeting and other Explanatory Memoranda. 

Advance notification of results announcements is made via Crown’s website.

More information

A full copy of Crown’s Continuous Disclosure Policy and Communications Policy is available at: 

www.crownresorts.com.au under the heading Corporate Governance – Policies.

Shareholder Participation at Meetings

Shareholders are encouraged to both attend and participate in all meetings of shareholders. The date of Crown’s 

AGM is advertised well in advance on its website and is separately communicated to investors via its investor 

relations channels.

Shareholders are informed in the formal Notice of Meeting for the AGM of their opportunity to participate in the 

meeting by asking questions of either Crown Directors or its Auditor. The AGM is also webcast live on Crown’s 

website and an archive of the AGM webcast is subsequently available on the website.

At the AGM itself, as an introduction to the formal business of the meeting, the Chair encourages shareholders to 

ask questions on each item of business and offers a further opportunity to ask general questions at the

conclusion of the formal business of the meeting.

More information

Copies of Crown’s Notices of Meeting are available at: www.crownresorts.com.au under the heading Investors 

and Media – Annual Reports.

The webcast is available at: www.crownresorts.com.au under the heading Investors and Media – Annual General 

Meetings.

Shareholder Communications

Crown shareholders have the option to receive communications from Crown and to send communications to 

Crown electronically. Crown’s share registry (on behalf of Crown) actively encourages shareholders to receive 

their shareholder communications electronically and provides online access to shareholder information.

Separately, the Crown website includes a “Contact Us” feature which can be used by both shareholders and 

others to ask questions of the Company.

Principle 7: Recognise and Manage Risk

Policy for Oversight and Management of Material Business Risks

Crown has established a formal Risk Management Committee to provide strategic risk management leadership, 

oversight and analysis to the Crown Board.

The current members of the Risk Management Committee are Jane Halton AO PSM (Chair), Andrew Demetriou, 

Michael Johnston and Antonia Korsanos. The current Committee members are each independent, Non-executive 

Directors.

9.2

CRW.507.005.2734



CWN_LEGAL_180002.2 13

The Chair of the Risk Management Committee, Ms Halton AO PSM, is an independent Director who served a 33 

year career in the public service .

Further information about each Committee member’s qualifications and experience is set out in the Directors’ 

Statutory Report. Information regarding the number of times the Committee met throughout the period and the 

individual attendances of the members at those meetings has also been provided in the Directors’ Statutory 

Report.

The Risk Management Committee has adopted a formal Charter that outlines its duties and responsibilities.

More information

A full copy of the Risk Management Committee Charter is available at: www.crownresorts.com.au under the 

heading Corporate Governance – Charters.

Design and Implementation of Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

Crown has established a framework for the oversight and management of material business risks and has 

adopted a formal Risk Management Policy and articulated its Risk Appetite. Risk management is an integral part 

of the industry in which Crown operates.

Management is charged with monitoring the effectiveness of Crown’s risk management systems and is required 

to report to the Board via the Risk Management Committee.

The Board convened Risk Management Committee administers Crown’s Risk Management Policy and monitors 

management’s performance against the risk management framework, including whether it is operating within the 

Risk Appetite set by the Board.

The Risk Management Policy sets out procedures which are designed to identify, assess, monitor and manage 

risk at each of Crown’s controlled businesses and requires that the results of those procedures are reported in a 

Risk Profile to the Crown Board. The framework has been developed using the model outlined in AS/NZS ISO 

31000:2018 Risk Management – Guidelines.

Crown’s Risk Profile identifies specific head office risks in light of major risks identified at an operational level and 

provides the framework for the reporting and monitoring of material risks across the Crown group on an ongoing 

basis.

Management is required to conduct an annual review of its Risk Profile to ensure that risk ratings and definitions 

remain appropriate for Crown, and that adequate controls are in place to manage them.

A review has been conducted during the reporting period and presented to the Risk Management Committee for 

approval. In the course of that review, the current Risk Profiles of Crown’s major operating businesses were 

taken into account and the risk environment of its operations were also considered.

In addition, the Board has received, and will continue to receive, periodic reports through the Risk Management 

Committee, summarising the results of risk management initiatives at Crown.

Disclosure of Internal Audit Functions

Crown’s major operating businesses (namely Crown Melbourne and Crown Perth) had an internal audit function 

in place for the full year that meets the definition of “internal audit” under the Institute of Internal Auditor’s 

International Professional Practices Framework.

The function is internally led and resourced, with supplemental resourcing provided by specialist third parties as 

required.

Internal audit delivers a comprehensive audit program to provide additional comfort around significant risks, 

processes, systems and regulatory requirements where assurance is determined to be a priority for that period.

Internal audit coverage is determined using a structured approach. The Boards of each major operating business 

and management receive regular reports from internal audit on the control environment, areas for improvement 

and progress in addressing those areas for improvement.

To ensure independence of the function, the head of the Internal Audit department reports to the CEO –

Australian Resorts. Further, the head of the department periodically meets with members of the relevant 

operating subsidiary’s Board throughout the year.

9.2

CRW.507.005.2735



CWN_LEGAL_180002.2 14

As a holding company, Crown does not have a separate internal audit function, however its accounts are subject 

to third party independent audit.

Disclosure of Sustainability Risks

The Crown group is exposed to a number of economic, environmental and social sustainability risks.

Crown’s goal is to be a leader in the entertainment and tourism industry by creating long-term value for its 

stakeholders across economic and environmental dimensions. Crown aspires to be a model corporate citizen 

and recognises that a company is assessed not only on its financial performance, but also by its commitment to 

corporate responsibility, which includes consideration of, among others, the following factors:

∑ the quality of its workplace;

∑ its environmental footprint;

∑ its level of community engagement;

∑ the creation of a safe environment for its customers, employees and contractors; and

∑ the provision of employment opportunities.

Crown has established a Corporate Responsibility Committee to assist the Board in setting Crown’s corporate 

responsibility policies and programs and assessing Crown’s corporate responsibility performance. The Corporate 

Responsibility Committee has adopted a formal Charter that outlines its duties and respons bilities.

The current members of the Corporate Respons bility Committee are Harold Mitchell AC (Chair), Helen Coonan 

and Professor John Horvath AO. Information about each Committee member’s qualifications and experience is 

set out in the Directors’ Statutory Report. Information regarding the number of times the Committee met 

throughout the period and the individual attendances of the members at those meetings has also been provided 

in the Directors’ Statutory Report.

The responsibilities of the Committee extend to:

∑ establishing appropriate corporate responsibility policies and programs for Crown;

∑ monitoring and reviewing the operation and effectiveness of Crown’s corporate responsibility policies and 

programs;

∑ promoting and supporting continuous improvement in Crown’s corporate responsibility performance;

∑ encouraging and monitoring the establishment and maintenance of relationships with key stakeholders

including non-government organisations, sporting and cultural organisations and other community groups; 

and

∑ encouraging and promoting awareness of corporate responsibility related issues at Crown among Crown’s

employees and other stakeholders.

The Committee oversees the development and publication of Crown’s Corporate Responsibility Report. The 

Corporate Respons bility Report brings together the elements of Crown’s corporate responsibility activities and 

programs and identifies and addresses all material economic, environmental and social sustainability risks and 

Crown’s processes for managing them.

More information

A full copy of the Corporate Responsibility Report is available at: www.crownresorts.com.au under the heading 

Our Contribution – Corporate Responsibility Reports.

Principle 8: Remunerate Fairly and Responsibly

People, Remuneration and Nomination Committee

As noted in response to Recommendation 2.1, Crown has established a formal People, Remuneration and 

Nomination Committee. The People, Remuneration and Nomination Committee has adopted a formal Charter 

that outlines its duties and responsibilities.

The current members of the People, Remuneration and Nomination Committee are Non-executive Directors, a 

majority of whom are independent. Information about each Committee member’s qualifications and experience is 

set out in the Directors’ Statutory Report. Information regarding the number of times the Committee met 

throughout the period and the individual attendances of the members at those meetings has also been provided 

in the Directors’ Statutory Report.

9.2

CRW.507.005.2736



CWN_LEGAL_180002.2 15

Policy for Director Remuneration

A summary of current remuneration arrangements is set out in more detail in the Remuneration Report. Crown 

separately discloses the policies and practices regarding the remuneration of Key Management Personnel in the 

Remuneration Report.

Restrictions on Dealing in Equity Based Remuneration

The rules of the Senior Executive Incentive Plan and the Crown Digital Senior Executive Incentive Plan 

specifically provide that a participant must not assign, transfer, encumber, dispose of or have a Security Interest 

issued over Plan Shares, or any beneficial interest in Plan Shares, unless all restrictions on the transfer, 

encumbrance or disposal of the Plan Shares have been met or waived by the Board or the Board has provided 

prior written consent.  A Security Interest is defined to include any mortgage, charge, pledge, lien, encumbrance 

or other third party interest of any nature. The rules of the Senior Executive Incentive Plan and the Crown Digital 

Senior Executive Incentive Plan also require participants to comply with Crown’s Securities Trading Policy at all 

times.

9.2

CRW.507.005.2737



CWN_LEGAL_229035.1

AGENDA ITEM 10:
Political Donations Report

10

CRW.507.005.2738



CWN_LEGAL_183654.1

Audit & Corporate Governance Committee
Memorandum

To: Audit & Corporate Governance Committee

From: Mary Manos

Date: 7 August 2020

Subject: Political Donations Report

Dear Committee Members

Political Donations – Full Year to 30 June 2020

Attached in Annexure A is a list of Political Donations made by the Crown group during the period 
commencing 1 July 2019 to 30 June 2020. This list is in the process of being verified.

As required by the Commonwealth Electoral Act and consistent with past practice, the attached information 
will be disclosed to the Australian Electoral Commission.  The due date for lodgment is 20 weeks after the 
end of the financial year (ie mid November 2020).  The information contained in the lodgment will then 
become public in February of 2021. 

We will provide a copy of the lodged 2020 Return to the Committee at its February 2021 meeting.

Crown Resorts Limited Donations Policy

All donations have been made in accordance with the Board approved Crown Political Donations Policy
applicable for the period.  

A copy of the current Political Donations Policy is attached as Annexure B.

Suggested resolution

That the list of Political Donations made by the Crown group during the period commencing 1 July 2019 to 30 
June 2020 be noted.

Kind Regards

Mary Manos
General Counsel and Company Secretary

10

CRW.507.005.2739



CWN_LEGAL_183654.1

ANNEXURE A
POLITICAL DONATIONS – 1 JULY 2019 TO 30 JUNE 2020

Political Party Donations Analysis -

at 30 June 2020

Date Donating Entity Political Party Event or Donation Crown GST Total

FEDERAL

Liberal (Federal)
15/08/2019 L beral CREGH Liberal Party of Australia Attendance at dinner with Prime Minister and Treasurer - 26/2/19 12,500.00 1,250.00 13,750.00

28/10/2019 L beral Melbourne Enterprise Victoria Membership - 1/7/19 to 1/7/20 27,272.73 2,727.27 30,000.00

6/09/2019 L beral CREGH Liberal Party of Australia Victorian Division Federal Deakin for Federal campaign 3,000.00 - 3,000.00

16/10/2019 L beral CREGH Liberal Party of Australia Victorian Division Sponsorship of Federal Deakin 200 Club 5,000.00 - 5,000.00

20/11/2019 L beral CREGH Liberal Party of Australia Sponsorship of Michael Sukkar Dinner 818.18 81.82 900.00

48,590.91 4,059.09 52,650.00

ALP (Federal)
28/10/2019 ALP Melbourne ALP National Secretariat Federal Labor Business Forum - Membership 20,000.00 2,000.00 22,000.00

18/11/2019 ALP CREGH ALP NSW Branch Dinner with Chris Bowen. For the McMahon Federal Campaign Account 1,363.64 136.36 1,500.00

18/11/2019 ALP CREGH Australian Labor Party Macnamara ALP Campaign Donation 5,000.00 - 5,000.00

23/06/2020 ALP CREGH Australian Labor Party Donation to Anthony Chisholm Federal Campaign 5,000.00 - 5,000.00

23/06/2020 ALP CREGH ALP NSW Branch Donation to Hunter Federal Campaign 5,000.00 - 5,000.00

23/06/2020 ALP CREGH Australian Labor Party Donation to Mi ton Dick Federal Campaign 5,000.00 - 5,000.00

41,363.64 2,136.36 43,500.00

TOTAL DONATIONS TO FEDERAL POLITICAL PARTIES 89,955 6,195 96,150

VICTORIA

Liberal (Vic)

- - -

National (Vic)

- - -

ALP (Vic)

- - -

TOTAL DONATIONS TO VICTORIAN POLITICAL PARTIES - - -

WESTERN AUSTRALIA

Liberal (WA)
27/07/2019 L beral Perth Liberal Party of WA Provided voucher for Liberal Paty WA State Conference 598.00 - 598.00

05/09/2019 L beral Perth Liberal Party WA Leaders Forum of WA - membership 2019/2020 22,727.27 2,272.73 25,000.00

3/01/2020 L beral Perth Liberal Party WA Donation 22 000.00 - 22 000.00

45,325.27 2,272.73 47,598.00

ALP (WA)
01/07/2019 ALP Perth WA Labor Raffle Tickets at Annual Premier & Cabinet Dinner 45.45 4.55 50.00

21/10/2019 ALP Perth WA Labor Dinner at Silks 2,085.45 - 2,085.45

12/12/2019 ALP Perth WA Labor Labor Business Round Table Dinner 250.00 25.00 275.00

03/01/2020 ALP Perth WA Labor Donation 25,000.00 - 25,000.00

28/02/2020 ALP Perth WA Labor CCI Business event with Mark McGowan 500.00 - 500.00

27,880.90 29.55 27,910.45

National (WA)
03/01/2020 National Perth Nationals WA Donation 3,000.00 - 3,000.00

18/02/2020 National Perth Nationals WA Dinner at Silks 1,628.18 - 1,628.18

4,628.18 - 4,628.18

TOTAL DONATIONS TO WA POLITICAL PARTIES 77,834 2,302 80,137

TOTAL POLITICAL DONATIONS 167,789 8,498 176,287

Crown Resorts Group Summary:

ALP 69,245 2,166 71,410

Liberal 93,916 6,332 100,248

National 4,628 - 4,628

Other - - -

167,789 8,498 176,287

Crown Resorts Group Summary (excl WA & Qld Donations) Victorian Statutory Cap:

ALP 41,364 2,136 43,500

Liberal 48,591 4,059 52,650

National - - -

Other - - -

89,955 6,195 96,150

Group Summary:

CREGH 42,682 1,468 44,150

Melbourne 47,273 4,727 52,000

Perth 77,834 2,302 80,137

167,789 8,498 176,287

- - - 10

CRW.507.005.2740



CWN_LEGAL_183654.1

ANNEXURE B
CROWN RESORTS LIMITED POLITICAL DONATIONS POLICY

See attached.

10

CRW.507.005.2741



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Crown Resorts Limited 
Political Donations Policy 
Crown Resorts Limited ACN 125 709 953 
A public company limited by shares 

 

 

 
 

 

 

10

CRW.507.005.2742



 

Table of contents page 

 

1. Summary ........................................................................................................................... 1 

2. Political Donations ............................................................................................................ 1 

2.1. Crown policy ......................................................................................................................... 1 
2.2. Legislative restrictions .......................................................................................................... 2 
2.3. Donating party ...................................................................................................................... 2 
2.4. Monetary limits .................................................................................................................... 3 
2.5. Required approval ................................................................................................................ 3 

3. Political Donation Registers .............................................................................................. 4 

3.1. Political Donation Registers .................................................................................................. 4 
3.2. Responsibility for maintenance ............................................................................................ 4 
3.3. Content of Political Donation Registers ................................................................................ 4 
3.4. Periodic reporting ................................................................................................................. 4 

4. Policy responsibility .......................................................................................................... 5 

Annexure – Definitions ..................................................................................................................... 6 

Political Donation .................................................................................................................................... 6 
Political Party .......................................................................................................................................... 6 

 

 

10

CRW.507.005.2743



 

 

  page | 1 

 

1. Summary 
This Policy: 

• sets out Crown Resorts Limited’s policy and guiding principles in relation to the making of 
political donations; 

• imposes annual monetary limits on political donations; and 

• sets up a framework to ensure Crown Resorts Limited complies with relevant State based 
and Commonwealth reporting requirements. 

The Policy applies to Crown Resorts Limited and each of Crown Resorts Limited’s Australian 
wholly owned subsidiaries (the Crown Group). 

In this Policy, the term:  

“political donations” has the meaning given in the Annexure to this Policy; and 

“political party” has the meaning set out in the Annexure to this Policy and includes a political 
party as defined in any of the Commonwealth Electoral Act 1918 (Cth) (Commonwealth Act) or 
the Electoral Act 1907 (WA) (WA Act) and, for Victorian electoral purposes, includes a registered 
political party as defined in the Electoral Act 2002 (Vic) (Victorian Act). 

2. Political Donations 

2.1. Crown policy 

The Crown Group is committed to full compliance with all applicable legislative requirements 
and prohibitions in relation to political donations.   

Consistent with this, political donations may only be made by the Crown Group where: 

• the political donations do not contravene any legislative requirements or prohibitions from 
time to time, including those set out below; 

• the contributions support the democratic process and assist the political parties in 
developing good public policy which is in the interests of the Crown Group’s shareholders, 
customers, staff and the Australian community;  

• no particular political party is unduly favoured; and 

• contributions are approved, made and recorded in compliance with the requirements of 
this Policy and any other legislative requirements. 

Exempt Donations (as defined in section 2.2 of this Policy) may only be made with the prior 
written approval of the General Counsel and Company Secretary and any one of the Executive 
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer – Australian Resorts or Chief Financial Officer of Crown 
Resorts Limited or Crown Melbourne.   

10

CRW.507.005.2744



 

 

  page | 2 

 

2.2. Legislative restrictions 

Victoria 

The Victorian Act imposes a $4,000 cap on the amount any one donor and their related bodies 
corporate may donate to any one political party during an election period (being the period 
between one State election and the next, which is typically four years).   

For the purposes of calculating the $4,000 cap, a political party includes its endorsed 
candidates, groups and elected members and its nominated entities. 

Under the Victorian Act, donations made to associated entities and third party campaigners 
(e.g. activists and public interest groups) will not be considered a political donation where the 
donations are not used, or intended to be used, by the recipient to incur, or reimburse the 
recipient for, a political donation or political expenditure (as defined in the Victorian Act) 
(Exempt Donations). 

New South Wales 

The Election Funding, Expenditure and Disclosures Act 1981 (NSW) imposes a restriction on 
directors (and their spouses) of companies whose main business is gambling from making 
donations to New South Wales state political parties. 

The Crown Group, any of its directors (and their spouses) must not make donations to New 
South Wales state political parties. 

Commonwealth 

The Commonwealth Act requires “persons” to provide a political donations return for a financial 
year within 20 weeks after the end of the financial year.  The Return is to be filed on a group 
basis. 

Political donations made for Commonwealth electoral purposes must not be paid into a State 
campaign account of the corresponding party.  This must be communicated in writing to the 
recipient of any such political donation. 

Other jurisdictions 

The Crown Group may from time to time make political donations in other Australian states and 
or territories subject to: 

• compliance with relevant state or territory legislation and regulations; and  

• the prior written approval of the Crown Resorts Limited Executive Chairman, the Chief 
Financial Officer or the General Counsel and Company Secretary. 

2.3. Donating party 

For the purposes of relevant state/territory legislation, all entities within the Crown Group are 
aggregated (such that the relevant caps apply to the Group as a whole, rather than to individual 
entities within the Group).   

For the purposes of this Policy, political donations must be made as set out below. 10

CRW.507.005.2745



 

 

  page | 3 

 

Commonwealth 

Any political donations made for Commonwealth electoral purposes must be made by Crown 
Resorts Limited. 

Victoria 

Any political donations and Exempt Donations made for Victorian electoral purposes must be 
made by Crown Melbourne, and must not be made anonymously. 

Where Crown Melbourne makes an Exempt Donation, it should only do so in circumstances 
where it is provided with appropriate assurances that the funds donated will not be used for 
political expenditure.   

Western Australia 

Any political donations made for Western Australian electoral purposes must be made by 
Crown Perth. 

2.4. Monetary limits 

Except with the prior written approval of the General Counsel and Company Secretary and any 
one of the Executive Chairman, Chief Executive Officer – Australian Resorts or Chief Financial 
Officer of Crown Resorts Limited or Crown Melbourne, the following monetary limits apply to 
political donations: 

• Crown Resorts Limited: Crown Resorts Limited must not make political donations in excess 
of $100,000 (in aggregate) per financial year; 

• Crown Melbourne Limited: Crown Melbourne Limited must not make political donations in 
excess of $4,000 for Victorian electoral purposes to a political party or its nominated entity, 
a candidate or group of candidates or an elected member during an election period; 

• Crown Perth: Crown Perth entities must not make political donations in excess of $50,000 
(in aggregate) per financial year to any Western Australian political party and must not 
make political donations in excess of $100,000 (in aggregate) per financial year. 

The monetary limits set out above are inclusive of Goods and Services Tax. 

2.5. Required approval 

Crown Resorts Limited 

All political donations proposed to be made by or on behalf of Crown Resorts Limited, must be 
approved by at least one of the Crown Resorts Limited Executive Chairman, the Chief Financial 
Officer or the General Counsel and Company Secretary prior to being made. 

Crown Melbourne 

All political donations proposed to be made by or on behalf of Crown Melbourne, must be 
approved by at least one of the following persons prior to being made: 

• the Crown Resorts Limited Executive Chairman, Chief Financial Officer or General Counsel 
and Company Secretary; or  10

CRW.507.005.2746



 

 

  page | 4 

 

• the Australian Resorts Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer. 

Crown Perth 

All political donations proposed to be made by or on behalf of Crown Perth, must be approved 
by at least one of the following persons prior to being made: 

• the Crown Resorts Limited Executive Chairman, Chief Financial Officer or General Counsel; 
or  

• the Australian Resorts Chief Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer. 

3. Political Donation Registers 

3.1. Political Donation Registers 

The Crown Group will have Political Donation Registers in place at each of: 

• Crown Resorts Limited; 

• Crown Melbourne;  

• Crown Perth, 

which record all political donations made by or on behalf of that entity. 

3.2. Responsibility for maintenance 

The maintenance of the Political Donation Registers is the responsibility of the Chief Financial 
Officer of each relevant Crown Group entity. 

3.3. Content of Political Donation Registers 

The Political Donation Registers will include: 

• The name of the party that the political donation was made to; 

• The address of the relevant political party; 

• The date on which the donation was made; 

• The purpose of the political donation together with an appropriate description; 

• The value of the donation; and 

• The names of Crown Group employees or representatives attending any particular event. 

3.4. Periodic reporting 

Each of Crown Melbourne and Crown Perth will provide a monthly report to the Crown Resorts 
Limited Chief Financial Officer (or their delegate) summarising the content of their respective 
Political Donation Registers.  

Crown Resorts Limited will be responsible for the annual disclosure of political donations under 
relevant legislation. 

10

CRW.507.005.2747



 

 

  page | 5 

 

A political donation made by Crown Melbourne for Victorian electoral purposes of $1,000 or 
more (either individually or in aggregate) must be notified in writing to the Chief Financial 
Officer of Crown Resorts Limited within five days of making that donation.  Crown Resorts 
Limited must then ensure that a disclosure return is provided to the Victorian Electoral 
Commission within 21 days of the making of that political donation. 

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee will be provided with a report twice a year 
summarising the donations which have been made in the preceding sixth month period. 

4. Policy responsibility 
Each director and employee of the Crown Group is responsible for adhering to this Policy. 

The Company Secretary has responsibility for maintaining the policy. 

This Policy will be reviewed from time to time to ensure it remains consistent with the Crown 
Group’s objectives, the Constitution and existing regulatory requirements and 
recommendations. 

 

Crown Resorts Limited 
June 2019 

10

CRW.507.005.2748



 

 

  page | 6 

 

Annexure – Definitions 

Political Donation 

Any disposition of property made by a person to a political party without consideration in money or 
money's worth or with inadequate consideration, including: 

• the provision of a service (other than volunteer labour); and 

• the payment of an amount in respect of a guarantee; and 

• the making of a payment or contribution at a fundraising function. 

“Political donations” can extend to both cash payments and payments in kind.  Political donations will 
include things like providing free or subsidised goods or services such as: 

• accommodation; 

• marketing support; 

• functions; 

• prizes at political auctions; or 

• winning bids for items at political auctions. 

Payments to political parties for attending dinners, functions and conferences should also be considered 
political donations.  Further, notwithstanding that the cost of a ticket to attend a function may exceed the 
cost of the dinner and refreshments received, the entire cost of the ticket should be counted. 

A political donation does not include a gift to an individual made in a private capacity. 

Political Party 

An organisation the object or activity, or one of the objects or activities, of which is the promotion of the 
election to a public office or a house of parliament of a candidate or candidates endorsed by it. 

 

10

CRW.507.005.2749



CWN_LEGAL_229043.1

AGENDA ITEM 11:
Other Business

11

CRW.507.005.2750



CWN_LEGAL_181452.1

Audit & Corporate Governance Committee 
Memorandum

To: Audit & Corporate Governance Committee

From: Alan McGregor

Date: 7 August 2020

Subject: External Auditor Appointment

Dear Committee Members

Following approval of the Committee by written resolution in July 2020, a recommendation will be made 
to the Board at its 18 August 2020 meeting that KPMG be appointed as the Company’s external auditor 
for the financial year beginning 1 July 2020 subject to receipt of the following:

∑ written consent from KPMG to act as the Company’s external auditor;
∑ consent from the Australian Securities and Investments Commission to Ernst & Young’s

resignation to take effect from the conclusion of the Company’s 2020 Annual General Meeting;
∑ all necessary regulatory approvals; and
∑ shareholder approval at the Company’s 2020 Annual General Meeting.

A verbal update will be provided at the meeting in relation to the progress of above requirements.

Kind Regards

Alan McGregor
Chief Financial Officer – Australian Resorts

11.1

CRW.507.005.2751



CWN_LEGAL_181452.1

Audit & Corporate Governance Committee 
Memorandum

To: Audit & Corporate Governance Committee

From: Mary Manos

Date: 7 August 2020

Subject: Annual Financial Report – CEO and CFO Declarations

Dear Committee Members

Background

The Corporations Act requires Crown’s Annual Financial Report to include a declaration of directors 
(Directors’ Declaration) to the effect that:

∑ Crown will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due;

∑ the financial statements and notes included in the Annual Financial Report have been prepared 
in accordance with accounting principles and give a true and fair view of the financial position of 
Crown; and

∑ the directors have been provided with declarations made by the CEO and the CFO, in a form 
required by the Corporations Act, providing various assurances to the Board in relation to the 
financial records and statements of Crown (CEO/CFO Declaration).

An Audit & Corporate Governance Committee meeting to review the Annual Financial Report is 
scheduled for 2 September 2020 and the full Board will be asked to approve the Report at a 
subsequent meeting on 9 September 2020.  

It is proposed that, once approved by the Committee and the Board, the signing of the Directors’ 
Declaration will be delegated to one director of the Board.

Purpose

Receipt of the CEO/CFO Declaration is a prerequisite to being able to make the Directors’ 
Declaration.  A draft form of the CEO/CFO Declaration is attached. The form of statement is 
consistent with forms presented to the Committee in previous years.

The purpose of this paper is to provide the Committee with an advance opportunity to review a draft 
form of CEO/CFO Declaration.  

11.2

CRW.507.005.2752



CWN_LEGAL_181452.1

Content of the CEO/CFO Declaration

Section 295A of the Corporations Act specifies the matters which the CEO and CFO must attest to in 
the CEO/CFO Declaration.  The CEO/CFO Declaration is consistent with those requirements.

In addition, the ASX Corporate Governance Principles and Recommendations (3rd Edition)
recommend that the Board should obtain separate assurance from the CEO and CFO that their 
Declaration is founded on a sound system of risk management and internal control and that the 
system is operating effectively (Assurance Statement).

The draft Assurance Statement that we have included in the CEO/CFO Declaration provides that 
Crown has a sound system of risk management and internal controls and that the system is 
operating effectively in all material respects in relation to financial reporting risks.  The Assurance 
Statement is in the same form as last year.

Crown Group Operating Subsidiaries – declarations and certifications

In support of the CEO/CFO Declaration from the Crown Resorts Limited CEO and CFO, corresponding 
declarations have been obtained from the Crown Melbourne and Crown Perth CEO and CFO and 
equivalent positions at Crown Aspinalls, Betfair and DGN.

In addition, Crown Melbourne, Crown Perth, Crown Aspinalls, Betfair and DGN have been asked to 
complete a comprehensive Financial Reporting Certification and Internal Control Questionnaire.  The 
responses in the Certifications and Questionnaires have assisted the businesses in making their 
declarations. 

The Declarations and Questionnaires received from the businesses can be made available to the 
Committee should they be required.

Recommendation and suggested resolution

The draft CEO/CFO Declaration meets relevant legal requirements and is recommended to the 
Committee for approval.  It is recommended that the Committee resolve as follows:

RESOLVED that the draft CEO/CFO Declaration be approved for use in a form substantially the same 
as the attached draft.

Kind Regards

Mary Manos
General Counsel & Company Secretary

11.2

CRW.507.005.2753



CWN_LEGAL_181452.1

Crown Resorts Limited
CEO and CFO Declaration

To: The Board of Directors, Crown Resorts Limited

From: Ken Barton, Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

The following declaration is provided in relation to the financial report of Crown Resorts Limited 
(and its respective subsidiaries) for the financial year ended 30 June 2020.

CEO/CFO Declaration

I, Ken Barton, occupying the positions of Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of Crown 
Resorts Limited declare that in my opinion:

1. the financial records of Crown Resorts Limited for the financial year ended 30 June 2020
have been properly maintained in accordance with section 286 of the Corporations Act 
2001 (Cth);

2. the financial statements, and the notes required by the accounting standards, for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2020 comply with the accounting standards; and

3. the financial statements and notes for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 give a true 
and fair view of:

(a) the financial position and performance of Crown Resorts Limited; and

(b) the financial position and performance of the consolidated entity.

Assurance Statement

Basis for declaration

My declaration is founded on the following:

∑ that Crown Resorts Limited has a sound system of risk management and internal controls in 
place (Risk Management System); and

∑ that that Risk Management System is operating effectively in all material respects in relation to 
financial reporting risks.

System of risk management and internal controls

Crown Resorts Limited has in place formal policies for the oversight and management of material 
business risks and has adopted a formal Risk Management Policy (see attached Annexure A).

The Policy sets out procedures which are designed to identify, assess, monitor and manage risk at 
each of Crown Resorts Limited’s controlled businesses and requires that the results of those 

11.2

CRW.507.005.2754



CWN_LEGAL_181452.1

procedures are reported to the Crown Resorts Limited Board via the Board convened Risk 
Management Committee.

The Board has received, and will continue to receive, periodic reports through the Risk Management 
Committee, summarising the results of risk management initiatives at Crown Resorts Limited.

In addition to the Risk Management Policy, Crown has adopted further policies and frameworks 
which foster a strong ethical climate.  These include, the Crown Securities Trading Policy and the 
Code of Conduct.

Effective operation of systems in relation to financial reporting risks

Crown Resorts Limited’s Appendix 4E and Annual Financial Report comprising:

∑ statement of financial position;

∑ statement of comprehensive income;

∑ cash flow statement;

∑ statement of changes in equity; and

∑ accompanying notes and declarations,

have each been audited by Crown Resorts Limited’s independent external auditor, Ernst & Young.

Ernst & Young was provided unrestricted access to all financial records and related data (including 
minutes of all meetings of members, the Board of Directors and committees of the Board), and other 
information, explanations and assistance necessary for the conduct of its audit.

Ernst & Young has, as part of its audit, confirmed that the Appendix 4E and the Annual Financial 
Report complies with the accounting standards.

All representations that Ernst & Young requested during the conduct of their audits have been made 
and we therefore understand that Ernst & Young’s audit opinion on Crown Resorts Limited’s Annual 
Financial Report for the financial year ended 30 June 2020 will be unqualified.

Operating businesses – declarations

Notwithstanding that a formal audit of the Crown Resorts Limited consolidated group has been 
undertaken, we have asked the senior executives of each of Crown Melbourne, Crown Perth, Crown 
Aspinalls, Betfair and DGN to provide corresponding declarations in relation to the entities and 
businesses for which they are primarily responsible (see attached Annexure B).

The senior executives of each of Crown Melbourne, Crown Perth, Crown Aspinalls, Betfair and DGN
have also completed a comprehensive Financial Reporting Certification and Internal Control 
Questionnaire in relation to the entities and businesses for which they are primarily responsible (see 
attached Annexure C).

11.2

CRW.507.005.2755



CWN_LEGAL_181452.1

Limitations to be borne in mind

There are inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of risk management and internal 
compliance and control, including the possibility of human error and the circumvention or overriding 
of controls.

Accordingly, even an effective system, no matter how well designed, can provide only reasonable 
assurance with respect to compliance with the Board’s policies and the integrity of the preparation 
of the Annual Financial Report.

Our judgment about the operation of Crown’s systems is based upon currently known facts and 
circumstances.

The effectiveness of Crown’s systems of risk management and internal compliance and control may 
vary over time.

Declaration made on _______________ 2020 by:

Ken Barton
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

………………………………….

11.2

CRW.507.005.2756



Audit & Corporate Governance Committee 
Memorandum

To: Audit & Corporate Governance Committee

From: Alan McGregor

Date: 7 August 2020

Subject: Tax Governance Policy

Dear Committee Members

The purpose of this paper is to present the Tax Governance Policy for annual review by the 
Committee.

Background

The attached Tax Governance Policy, which was adopted by the Board in August 2019, sets out the 
requirements for tax governance and tax risk management at Crown.

The Policy was drafted in line with the tax corporate governance requirements for corporate 
taxpayers set by the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) in the Tax Risk Management and Governance 
Review Guide.

Management has undertaken a review of the Policy and is not recommending any changes.

Proposed Resolution

It was RESOLVED that, having conducted an annual review of the Tax Governance Policy, no 
amendments to the Policy be recommended to the Board for implementation this stage.

Kind Regards

Alan McGregor
Chief Financial Officer

11.3

CRW.507.005.2757



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Crown Resorts Limited 
Tax Governance Policy 
Crown Resorts Limited ACN 125 709 953 
A public company limited by shares 

 

 

 

 

 

 

11.3

CRW.507.005.2758



 

 

Table of contents page 

 

1. Introduction & Purpose .................................................................................................... 1 

2. Policy ................................................................................................................................. 1 

2.1. Overall Approach to Taxation and the Regulator ................................................................. 1 
2.2. Tax Risk Appetite .................................................................................................................. 2 
2.3. Company-wide Roles and Responsibilities ........................................................................... 2 

3. Tax Risk Tolerance and Actions ......................................................................................... 2 

4. Tax Risk Reporting and Monitoring................................................................................... 2 

5. Amendment and Review................................................................................................... 3 

11.3

CRW.507.005.2759



 

  page | 1 

 

1. Introduction & Purpose 

This Tax Governance Tax Policy (Policy) sets out the requirements for tax governance and is to 
operate in conjunction with any other documented or operational policies and procedures that 
operate within Crown Resorts Limited (Crown or the Company) with respect to tax governance 
and tax risk management.  The establishment of this Policy is one of the steps taken by the 
Board to monitor tax risks of Crown and guide management in the evaluation and resolution of 
those risks. 

This Policy has been drafted in line with the tax corporate governance requirements for 
corporate taxpayers set by the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) in the Tax Risk management 
and Governance Review Guide. 

This Policy applies to Crown, as Head Entity of the Tax Consolidated Group, and its Subsidiaries.  
This includes the Board, the Board committees, all Crown employees, all Crown Business units 
and employees of support functions with roles that impact tax. 

2. Policy 

2.1. Overall Approach to Taxation and the Regulator 

Crown pursues an approach to tax that is principled, transparent and sustainable in the long 
term.  The Board endorses the following principles governing its approach: 

 Commitment to ensure full compliance with all statutory obligations, and full disclosure to 
Revenue Authorities.  

 Establishment of documented policies and procedures in relation to tax risk management 
and completion of thorough risk assessments including escalation and reporting to the 
Board in accordance with its adopted risk appetite.  

 Sustaining engagement with Revenue Authorities, and actively considering the implications 
of tax planning for Crown’s wider reputation.  

 Management of tax affairs in a pro-active manner that seeks to maximise shareholder 
value, while operating in accordance with the law. 

The Board also recognises that tax: 

 Must fit comfortably with Crown’s business strategy, and  

 Can impact Crown’s reputation as a good corporate citizen. 

As part of Crown’s ongoing and co-operative relationship with the ATO, management is 
responsible for meeting with the ATO twice a year as part of the ATO’s Top 100 Program. 

Where appropriate, Crown also seeks to engage in consultation with the Government on tax 
matters, particularly with regard to improvements to existing processes and commentary on 
proposed tax changes.  

11.3

CRW.507.005.2760



 

  page | 2 

 

2.2. Tax Risk Appetite 

Tax risk can be defined as follows: 

Any event, action, or inaction in tax strategy, operations, financial reporting, or compliance that 
either adversely affects Crown’s tax or business objectives or results in an unanticipated or 
unacceptable level of monetary, financial statement or reputational exposure. 

2.3. Company-wide Roles and Responsibilities 

The ultimate responsibility for tax governance and therein the establishment of a tax risk 
management framework is borne by the Board, noting that the Board has delegated oversight 
of tax matters to the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee. 

Crown has a risk management framework which is overseen by the Risk Management 
Committee which enables the identification and management of material risks in accordance 
with Crown’s risk appetite. 

The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee considers and actions the tax issues and tax 
risk management issues that are brought to its attention. 

The Chief Financial Officer (CFO) and the Head of Tax support the Committee in discharging this 
responsibility. 

3. Tax Risk Tolerance and Actions 

Tax risk, particularly the reputational component, extends beyond Crown’s relationship with 
Revenue Authorities and impacts almost every area of Crown, including shareholders, investors, 
staff, management, the Board and all other stakeholders. Risk to Crown as Head Entity and its 
Subsidiaries can cause a significant negative impact to Crown and the Subsidiaries’ reputation or 
finances. Tax risk and its impact on stakeholders must also be managed by the Board in meeting 
its fiduciary duties to shareholders. 

Crown ensures that, as a minimum, the tax position adopted with regard to particular issues or 
transactions is more likely than not to be correct. This is achieved through:  

 Early engagement of the tax team.   

 Using external advisers to assist the tax team in areas that are complex or uncertain. 

 Obtaining tax rulings from the ATO on complex or uncertain areas of the law.  

4. Tax Risk Reporting and Monitoring 

The Board bears the ultimate responsibility for tax governance and tax risk management 
standards. To assist the fulfilment of these obligations, the Audit and Corporate Governance 
Committee requires the Tax Status Report to be prepared and presented at least bi-annually.  

The tax function follows the Crown Resorts Risk Management Framework, in that process 
material risks are identified and where appropriate consolidated in the corporate risk profile, 
which is reviewed by the Crown Resorts Risk Management Committee at least annually.  In 
addition any material events that materialise are reported to the Risk Management Committee 
on an ongoing basis. 

11.3

CRW.507.005.2761



 

  page | 3 

 

In addition, significant transactions and events will be brought to the attention of the Audit and 
Corporate Governance Committee more frequently than as prescribed in this Policy, that is, in 
real time when necessary. 

The CFO with the assistance of the Head of Tax will report against general tax items to the 
Board or its constituted committees on a bi-annual basis. The reporting will highlight the 
compliance, operational, financial and strategic tax attributes for Crown.  

5. Amendment and Review 

The Board must review this policy on an annual basis to ensure it remains consistent with its 
objectives and existing regulatory requirements and recommendations. 

 

Crown Resorts Limited 
August 2019 

11.3

CRW.507.005.2762



CWN_LEGAL_165812.1
CWN_LEGAL_226256.1

Audit & Corporate Governance Committee 
Memorandum

To: Audit & Corporate Governance Committee

From: Mary Manos

Date: 7 August 2020

Subject: Future Meetings

Dear Committee Members

The remaining meeting for 2020 of this Committee has been scheduled as follows:

Meeting Date Time

Wednesday, 2 September
(Teleconference)

10.00am

Kind Regards

Mary Manos
General Counsel & Company Secretary

11.4

CRW.507.005.2763


